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SHARE LISTING
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GENERAL OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present the audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December,
2021. There was an increase in consolidated net profit of the Group for
the year under review as compared with that of the corresponding period
in 2020.

The improvement in results was mainly attributable to an increase in
segment profit generated from property development and investment
business to HK$455,963,000 for the year under review (2020:
HK$268,854,000). A higher gross profit was generated from both of
sale and leasing of the properties. In addition, an unrealized loss on fair
value changes of the investment properties of the Group in Shanghai, the
People’s Republic of China (“China”) of HK$3,540,000 was recorded,
lesser than that of HK$12,329,000 for the year 2020, upon market

valuation as at year end pursuant to applicable accounting standards.

For the year under review, the Group recorded a net gain on
trading securities investment of HK$12,838,000 (2020: net loss of
HK$7,070,000) while dividend receipts from the long-term equity
investments of the Group amounted to HK$23,209,000 (2020:
HK$26,046,000).

During the year 2021, there were decreases in the interest income and net
exchange gain recognized while the administrative expenses and finance

costs were also reduced.

As a result, excluding the changes in revaluation of the investment properties,
the Group reported operating profit before taxation of HK$591,250,000
for the year under review (2020: HK$419,044,000). Taking account of
taxation of HK$297,027,000 (2020: HK$226,639,000), it was reported
a consolidated profit after taxation attributable to shareholders of the
Company of HK$283,448,000 (2020: HK$174,993,000). Basic earnings
per share amounted to 14.38 HK cents, an increase of approximately 62% as
compared with that of 8.88 HK cents for the corresponding period in 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
PR ok B 53 M

DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of 5.50 HK cents per share
for the year ended 31st December, 2021 (2020: 5.50 HK cents per
share) payable to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Monday, 13th June, 2022. The dividend
is payable in cash and dividend warrants are expected for despatch on
Wednesday, 22nd June, 2022.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Mainland of China, particularly Shanghai, is the principal base of

the Group’s operations.

For the year ended 31st December, 2021, the property development and
trading segment was the Group’s primary profit maker by contributing
a segment profit of HK$277,287,000 (2020: HK$139,885,000) which
was attributable to the properties sales in Shanghai and the Macao Special
Administrative Region (“Macau”) of China.

The property investment segment was the secondary profit contributor
of the Group and this generated a segment profit of HK$178,676,000
(2020: HK$128,969,000), which was derived from the rental and
management income from the investment properties of the Group in
Shanghai, however, it was partly offset by the unrealized loss on fair value

changes of these investment properties upon revaluation at year end.

The operating results of leisure business improved and this segment
ranked third in terms of profit contribution amongst the operating
segments of the Group by delivering a segment profit of HK$12,892,000
(2020: loss of HK$14,745,000). The Group also shared a profit from its

investment in the hotel operation.

Securities trading business reported a segment profit of HK$12,580,000
(2020: loss of HK$7,350,000).

The other business segment of the Group reported loss during the year

under review.
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Property Development and Investment

Property development and investment in Shanghai and Macau remained
the core business and the principal source of profit of the Group for
the year ended 31st December, 2021 by contributing a total profit of
HK$455,963,000 (2020: HK$268,854,000). Tomson Riviera was the

prime source of operating profit of the Group.

This business segment generated total revenue of HK$714,750,000
which accounted for approximately 90.82% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group for the year 2021. Projects in Pudong
of Shanghai were the primary source of revenue and accounted for
approximately 88.29% of the gross proceeds from operations of the
Group whereas the project in Macau accounted for approximately 2.53%.
However, an unrealized loss on fair value changes of the investment
properties of the Group in Shanghai of HK$3,540,000 was recorded at
the year end date.

Tomson Riviera, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera is a notable high-rise residential development along the
riverfront of Lujiazui of Pudong and right opposite the Bund. There
are four residential towers and in order to maximize the return on
investment, two residential towers are earmarked for sale while the other

two towers are for leasing.

As at 31st December, 2021, the total residential gross floor area available
for sale of Towers A and C was approximately 3,200 square meters
while of the total residential gross floor area of Towers B and D of

approximately 58,400 square meters, about 78% were leased.

For the year 2021, total revenue of HK$573.65 million was recognized
and this accounted for approximately 72.89% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group. The revenue was principally attributable to sale
proceeds with the rest derived from rental income and management fee.
In addition, sale deposits of HK$208.60 million have been received by
the Group and such amount is expected to be recognized in 2022 upon
delivery of the properties to the buyers. Nevertheless, the Group recorded
an unrealized loss on fair value changes of this project of HK$3.30

million in the annual results of the Group for the year 2021.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Miscellaneous Residential Developments in Shanghai

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden have been developed in phases around
the periphery of Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in Pudong since
1996 and there are now less than ten residential units and around one
hundred car parking spaces available for sale. During the year under
review, the project recognized revenue of HK$4.69 million from sale of
car parking spaces and leasing of the residential units and this represented
approximately 0.60% of the gross proceeds from operations of the
Group.

The Group received management fee of Tomson Riviera Garden of
HKS$1.10 million for the year under review and this accounted for
approximately 0.14% of the gross proceeds from operations of the
Group. Tomson Riviera Garden, which was developed by a 70%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, is a low-density residential project adjacent
to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club and the Group has sold out all

its interests in this project.

In addition, the Group holds less than ten car parking spaces at Xingguo

Garden, the sole residential development of the Group in Puxi, for sale.
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Jinqiao-Zhangjiang Project, Shanghai

As disclosed in the interim report of the Company for 2021, the Group
holds three land lots with aggregate site area of approximately 328,687.5
square meters located in Jinqiao-Zhangjiang District of Pudong and to
the north of a stream named Zhangjiabang for residential purpose. Real
estate ownership certificates of the said land lots were obtained in June
2020. It is planned that the development of this project will be phased in

over few years.

The first phase of the project is a low-density residential development
with total gross floor area of approximately 25,900 square meters and the
construction works are under way. Subject to the policies of and approval
from the local government, it is expected to launch the first phase for sale
by the end of 2022 or early 2023 and deliver the properties to the buyers
in 2023. Construction of the next two phases of residential development
of the project with total gross floor area of approximately 100,000 square

meters is scheduled to commence within 2022.

One Penha Hill, Macau

The Group holds a 70% interest in the development of a luxury
residential condominium, namely One Penha Hill, at Penha Hill within

a designated World Heritage Zone of Macau.

For the year ended 31st December, 2021, the project recognized sale
proceeds of HK$19.95 million and this accounted for approximately
2.53% of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group. As at 31st
December, 2021, residential units with saleable area of approximately

6,700 square meters were available for sale.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Hospitality and Leisure Industry
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, Shanghai

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, situated in Pudong of Shanghai,
generated revenue of HK$63,487,000, being approximately 8.07% of
the gross proceeds from operations of the Group, and reported gross
profit of HK$38.53 million for the year ended 31st December, 2021.
The revenue was mainly attributable to golfing activities of the Club and
the annual membership fee was the secondary source of income. After
making provision for depreciation of fixed assets, the Club reported a
segment profit of HK$12,892,000 for the year under review (2020: loss
of HK$14,745,000).
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InterContinental Shanghai Pudong, Shanghai

InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel, situated in Lujiazui of Pudong,
Shanghai, reported an average occupancy rate of approximately 51%
in 2021. Owing to the alleviation of the COVID-19 pandemic in the
Mainland of China during the year under review, there was improvement
in the occupancy rate and operation profit though the results were
below budget. As a result, the Group, which holds a 50% interest in
the hotel, shared a net profit of HK$1,342,000 from this investment
for the year 2021 (2020: net loss of HK$2,552,000). It is expected that
the hotel operations remain to face challenges in 2022 subject to the
travel restrictions imposed under the impact of the worldwide pandemic
spreading. The hotel management will continue to focus on controlling
operating costs, increasing marketing efforts on guest rooms operations
and food and beverage operations to maintain the profitability of the

hotel.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Securities Trading

For the year under review, the Group’s securities trading business in
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) of China
reported revenue of HK$7,946,000 and this accounted for approximately
1.01% of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group. The revenue
was mainly attributable to the dividend income from trading securities
while gross proceeds from sale of those securities was the secondary
source. After taking into account an unrealized gain on changes in fair

value, a net gain on the trading securities investments held by the Group
of HK$12,838,000 (2020: net loss of HK$7,070,000) was recorded.

As at 31st December, 2021, the aggregate fair value of the Group’s
securities investments held for trading amounted to HK$101,593,000,
representing approximately 0.49% of the Group’s total assets. Those

were mainly securities in the financial industry.

Media and Entertainment Business

The Group has participated in the production of live entertainment
shows for years and also set up its film distribution business in 2011.
Suffering from the COVID-19 pandemic, gross revenue received and
receivable from this segment for the year ended 31st December, 2021
only amounted to HK$829,000 and this accounted for approximately
0.10% of the Group’s gross proceeds from operations. The revenue
for the year under review was solely derived from investments in
the production of live entertainment shows and a segment loss of
HK$622,000 (2020: HK$3,526,000) was recorded. The Group intends
to continue in participating in investments in various live performances

under appropriate conditions in the future.

R
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PVC Operations

With the intention of capitalizing on the Group’s established brand
and goodwill in the industry, the Group had set up a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Shanghai in mid-2013 to engage in export trade of PVC
fictings and pipes. Owing to unfavourable market conditions, this
business was closed down in 2020 to focus the Group’s resources on its
property development and investment business. No profit was recorded
in 2021 (2020: loss of HK$113,000) and the subsidiary was dissolved in
the second half of 2021.

Investment Holding

In addition to its own property development projects, as at 31st
December, 2021, the Group held interests in Shanghai Zhangjiang
Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd. as a long-term equity investment and the
fair value of this investment amounted to HK$293,452,000, representing
approximately 1.43% of the Group’s total assets.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.

The Group holds a 13.483% interest in the registered capital of Shanghai
Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd. (“SZMP”), an unlisted
company established in Shanghai, and this company is principally
engaged in property development and investment in Shanghai. Dividends
of HK$23,209,000 (2020: HK$15,819,000) were received from SZMP
during the year under review and an unrealized gain on change in fair
value of such investment of HK$26.56 million was credited to the
investment reserve of the Group in 2021 (2020: loss of HK$21.61

million) pursuant to applicable accounting standards.

Rivera (Holdings) Limited

As at st January, 2021, the Group held a 9.8% interest in the issued
shares of Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”), a then listed company
in Hong Kong. As stated in the interim report of the Company for the
year 2021, RHL and Step Famous Investment Limited (“Step Famous”)
issued a joint announcement on 18th January, 2021 that a proposal for
the privatisation of RHL by Step Famous (the “Proposal”) by way of a
scheme of arrangement under section 673 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance (the “Scheme”) would be put forward to the registered
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holders of the shares of RHL (other than those held by Step Famous
and its concert parties (excluding the Group)) (the “Scheme Share(s)”).
On 18th January, 2021, Step Famous entered into a rollover agreement
(the “Rollover Agreement”) with Best Central Developments Limited
(the “Rollover Shareholder”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-
Tech”)) that Step Famous and the Rollover Shareholder agreed to
remain as the shareholders of RHL after the Scheme becoming effective.
In addition, there was a proposed transfer of approximately 10.503%
interests in the registered capital of SZMP held by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of RHL to Zhangjiang Hi-Tech (the “SZMP Transfer”).
The arrangement between Step Famous and the Rollover Shareholder
under the Rollover Agreement and the SZMP Transfer (collectively the
“Special Deals”) constituted special deals under the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”).

RHL and Step Famous issued a composite document containing details
of the Proposal, the Scheme and the Special Deals on 30th June, 2021.

On 23rd July, 2021, RHL and Step Famous issued a joint announcement
that on the even date, a resolution was duly passed to approve the
Scheme at a meeting of the registered holders of the Scheme Shares (the
“Court Meeting”) which was convened at the direction of the High
Court of Hong Kong (the “High Court”) and an ordinary resolution
was passed by the then independent shareholders of RHL to approve
the Special Deals at a general meeting of RHL and a special resolution
to give effect to the Scheme, including the reduction of the share capital
of RHL, was approved by the shareholders of RHL at such general
meeting. Step Famous is wholly owned by Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert
Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (collectively “Tong Family”), the
executive Directors and substantial sharcholders of the Company. The
Company was presumed under the Takeovers Code to be acting in
concert with Step Famous and Tong Family, by virtue of the Company
and Step Famous being controlled by Madam Hsu Feng and her close
relatives. Hence, the Group abstained from voting at the Court Meeting
and abstained from voting on the resolution on the Special Deals at the

said general meeting of RHL.

On 19th August, 2021, RHL and Step Famous issued a joint
announcement. The Scheme was sanctioned by the High Court without
any modification or addition or condition on 17th August, 2021 and
the reduction of the share capital of RHL involved in the Scheme was
also confirmed by the High Court on the same day. All of the conditions
of the Scheme were fulfilled and the Scheme became effective on 19th
August, 2021. In this connection, all the RHL shares held by the Group,
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constituting a part of the Scheme Shares, were cancelled and extinguished
on 19th August, 2021 and the Group ceased to have any interest in
RHL. A total sum of HK$166,190,000, representing the payment of
the cancellation price of HK$0.65 per Scheme Share under the Scheme
from Step Famous, was received and a profit of HK$85,652,000 was
recognized and credited to the retained earnings of the Group during the

year under review.

Apart from the said cancellation price, no income was generated from the
equity investment in RHL during the year under review (2020: dividend
of HK$10,227,000).

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing Position

As at 31st December, 2021, total assets of the Group increased by
approximately 0.72% to HK$20,534,605,000 (2020: HK$20,387,155,000).
Equity attributable to owners of the Company was HK$13,500,950,000
(2020: HK$12,888,642,000) in total, or approximately HK$6.85 (2020:
HK$6.54) per share, representing an increase of approximately 4.74% which
was mainly attributable to appreciation in value of Renminbi during the year

under review.

The Group’s operations and investments for the year ended 31st
December, 2021 were funded by cash on hand, revenue from operating

and investing activities, and bank borrowings.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to HK$4,445,869,000 (2020: HK$3,711,525,000),
an increase of approximately 19.79%. During the year under
review, the Group achieved net cash inflows of HK$83,596,000
and HK$1,435,748,000 from its operating and investing activities
respectively. After taking into account net cash outflow of
HK$879,690,000 from its financing activities, the Group recorded a
net increase in cash and cash equivalents of HK$639,654,000 (2020:
net decrease of HK$70,841,000). The net cash inflow for the year
under review was mainly attributable to the withdrawal of pledged bank
deposits and the receipt of the cancellation price for the cancellation and
extinguishment of the RHL shares held by the Group pursuant to the
Scheme, but this was partly offset by the repayment of borrowings and
the Company’s dividend payment.
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Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly denominated in
the local currencies of the jurisdictions in which it operates. Hence, of
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents of HK$4,445,869,000 as at 31st
December, 2021, around 90.34% and 8.36% were denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar respectively.

As at 31st December, 2021, excluding contract liabilities which
represented the deposits received from sale of properties, of the liabilities
of the Group of HK$6,487,567,000 (2020: HK$7,123,907,000), about
64.74% were taxation under current liabilities, about 19.25% were
deferred tax liabilities, about 11.29% were trade and other payables and
accruals, about 4.54% were borrowings and the remainder was lease
liabilities. Details of the trade and other payables and accruals, lease
liabilities, borrowings and deferred taxation are shown in Notes 23(d),
23(e), 26 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year under review on pages 143 and 144, and pages 147 to 149

respectively.

The Group’s borrowings as at 31st December, 2021 amounted
to HK$294,333,000 (2020: HK$1,019,758,000), equivalent to
approximately 2.18% (2020: 7.91%) of the equity attributable to
owners of the Company at the same date. The Group did not employ
any financial instruments for financing and treasury management. All
of the borrowings were in Renminbi, under security and subject to
floating interest rates. Of these borrowings, approximately 10% were
due for repayment within one year from the end of the reporting period,
approximately 10% were repayable more than one year but not exceeding
two years from the end of the reporting period, approximately 30% were
due for repayment more than two years but not exceeding five years from
the end of the reporting period while the remaining 50% were repayable
more than five years from the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
in relation to expenditure on properties under development of
HK$428,732,000 (2020: HK$224,499,000) which were contracted but
not provided for. The Group anticipates that these commitments will
be funded from its future operating revenue, bank borrowings and other
sources of finance where appropriate.

As at 31st December, 2021, the Group recorded a current ratio of
2.15 times (2020: 1.94 times) and a gearing ratio (total liabilities to
equity attributable to the owners of the Company) of 49.60% (2020:
55.64%). There was no significant change in the current ratio while
the improvement in the gearing ratio resulted from the repayment of

borrowings.
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Charge on Assets

As at 31st December, 2021, assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$544,173,000 (2020: HK$1,573,082,000) were
pledged for securing bank facilities of the Group of HK$294,333,000
(2020: HK$1,019,758,000). Details of the assets pledged are set out in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the

year under review on page 170.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, and the liabilities are well covered by the assets. Should there
be a depreciation in value of Renminbi, there may be an adverse impact
on the Group’s results and net asset value. The other assets and liabilities
of the Group are denominated in either Hong Kong Dollar or United
States Dollar. Hence, the Group anticipates that the exchange risk
exposure is manageable.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31st December,
2021 (2020: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial situation, operating results and business
prospects may be directly or indirectly affected by a number of risks
and uncertainties including business risks, operational risks, financial
risks and changes of local laws and regulations in the jurisdictions in
which it operates. Information on the estimation uncertainty, capital
risk management and financial risks management is set out respectively
in Notes 4, 28 and 29(b) to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year under review on pages 113 and 114, and pages 149 to
162.

Property development and investment is the principal business segment
of the Group and price fluctuation is a major risk that may affect the
Group’s results and asset value. The management holds a positive view of
the potential demand from target customers for properties in Shanghai
and Macau of China and will be cautious in formulating the Group’s
business plan and monitor closely the marketing and pricing strategies of

the Group’s property projects to maximize the return on investment.
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There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those stated
above which are not known to the Group or which may not be imminent
or material now but could turn out to be impending or significant in the

future.

PROSPECTS

The spread of COVID-19 has inflicted serious blows and disruptions to
economic, business and social activities worldwide. The recent military
conflicts between Russia and Ukraine and the associated economic
sanctions against Russia have further led to severe uncertainties in the
financial and political situation of the whole world and even food and
energy crises. The mid-term repercussions on the operations of the Group
have yet to be assessed in light of the fluidity of the evolving situation.
However, the Group remains optimistic about the economic situation of
the Mainland of China and have confidence in the underlying demand
for properties catering to a high-income middle class and high net-worth

individuals in the Mainland in the long run.

The Group has built up its reputation as a developer of high-end
residential properties in the Mainland of China. The Group will
endeavour to maintain the momentum in its sale and leasing plans for
the property portfolio in Shanghai and Macau. It is anticipated that
Tomson Riviera and One Penha Hill will be the Group’s principal
sources of profit in the year 2022. At the same time, the Group is actively
proceeding with the construction works of Jingiao-Zhangjiang project in
Pudong, Shanghai and this project will form an important component of
the Group’s property development and investment segment and will be

the major profit contributor in next few years.

In light of volatility in the Hong Kong and global financial markets
and economic conditions, the management will continue to adopt a
conservative approach in managing the securities trading portfolio of the

Group, with an emphasis on securities with steady recurrent yield.

Whilst property development and investment will remain the focus of the
Group’s business and investment strategies, the Group will continue to
explore and evaluate prudently other potential investment opportunities.
It will be the objective of the Group to maintain an optimum balance
in the allocation of its resources both geographically and in different

business segments.
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The COVID-19 pandemic may not end in the short term. The overall
extent to which national and global economies and financial markets
would be adversely impacted by the pandemic would be difficult to
predict with any accuracy at this stage. Though the coronavirus variants
are more infectious, it is cautiously optimistic that the economy will be
recovered and the social activities will resume normal gradually with the
development of various medication and increase in the vaccination rate
all over the world. The Group will continue to monitor the situation
closely and any financial impact on the operations of the Group, should
this happen, would be reflected in the financial statements of the Group
for the financial year 2022.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2021, the Group engaged around 450 employees
in total in its various offices including Hong Kong and Shanghai.
Total emoluments paid to staff and directors of the Group during the
year under review amounted to HK$68,669,000. Remuneration and
benefits packages are generally structured with reference to market terms
and practice, as well as individual responsibilities, performance and
qualifications. Discretionary bonus may be paid based on individual
contribution. In addition, the Company has established a share option
scheme pursuant to which the employees of the Group may be granted
options to subscribe for shares of the Company as a performance

incentive.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its gratitude
to the management and all the staff members of the Group for their

devotion and dedication over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Hsu Feng
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2022
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to
maintaining good corporate governance standards and procedures which
emphasize management of high quality, transparency and accountability

to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) in force during the year
ended 31st December, 2021 and has complied with the code provisions

contained therein throughout the year, except that:

(@ Madam Hsu Feng takes up both the posts of Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company. While this is a
deviation from the CG Code, dual role leadership provides the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) with a
strong and consistent leadership and allows for more effective
operation of the business. The Board is of the view that adequate
check and balance of power is in place. Responsibilities for the
Company’s daily business management are shared amongst Madam
Hsu and other members of the executive committee of the Board.
Besides, all major decisions are made in consultation with members
of the Board or appropriate committees of the Board in accordance
with the provisions of the code on risk management and internal

control of the Group;

(b) none of the existing independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a specific term, but they are subject to
retirement and re-election at least once every three years at annual
general meetings of the Company pursuant to the Articles of

Association of the Company (the “Articles”);
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(0)

(d

in accordance with the Articles, any Director of the Company
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
instead of being subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment as
stipulated in the CG Code. Such arrangement not only complies
with Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules but also streamlines the
mechanism of re-election of Directors so that both new Directors
appointed by the Board (either for filling a causal vacancy or as
an additional member) and existing Directors retiring by rotation
shall be subject to re-election at the annual general meeting for the
relevant year. Furthermore, extraordinary general meetings will
be reserved for considering and approving notifiable/connected
transactions or other corporate actions under the Listing Rules
only, which should enhance efficiency in procedures for corporate

matters; and

save as disclosed below, the Company has not established a
nomination committee comprising a majority of independent
non-executive Directors as stipulated in the CG Code. The
Board has considered the participation of executive Directors
indispensable when identifying individuals of the appropriate
calibre and qualification to be Board members and when assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors, because
it is necessary to have a thorough understanding of the structure,
business strategy and daily operation of the Company. In 2021, the
Board as a whole was responsible for reviewing its own structure,
size and composition and for considering the nomination of
Directors for re-election as well as assessing the independence of

independent non-executive Directors.

A nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established with effect from 31st December,
2021, details of which are set out in the sub-paragraph headed

“Nomination Committee” in this Report.

(o)

(d)

Corporate Governance Report
(e oL

MRIBRCERR A Z HE > AT HE A
TH 5 Ja Iy ey 22 R T A S R R AT 2 A
AAESR > HMEMEEARRF T
PR AR A Ak o TG R AR A
SERIRSTRD P EOR > A ZRALAR
ATV E YR B2 IR
B o B PRBR T AR SFCE TR
Mok =4t MEERZRLZHESR
(5% SR T B 222 Skl 2 T3 ) B
oy (B 75 28 2 BT 1 [R] A A B 4 2
ZBFHEE R BT EE > RO E
BETE AR S NG — B o Besh
P SRR 1| 1 A SO T S A
CEMBANDIAT 28T A M,/ B
B oy B H A AR SEATE) - AT £ TR P
R 2R 5 &

BRSO ER AN AR R R
PR SEAEG SF) Z B o7 2
B AT ERAN A ERE
R S Rl Y B S E A s &
A% AT YEAL R R BN o R
SEIFHATE SRR B RE  FR Y]
AR 7] 2 2R ~ S5 SR e H i
o BMPTERNS2HEHER -
TERCAE HREEBEATREE
RN ~ NBURALAL > N0 ek
AEHPUEHEATFE > HA L IF
YATHER B SLIE -

HREENZRAZAEG(IRAZEER
ghen " F_—F+-H=1+—H
Rt VAN ¥ = R s S I A
HNEE AR R B G |25

Annual Report 2021 4 & 4747

22



23

Corporate Governance Report
SRR HE

THE BOARD

The Board commits itself to acting in the best interests of the Group and
the sharcholders of the Company. It is accountable to the shareholders for
the long-term performance of the Group, while taking into consideration

the interests of other stakeholders.

The Company recognizes that a diverse board is crucial to the Board’s
performance and development of the Company. The Board has adopted
a board diversity policy which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. It believes that diversity should be viewed from its widest
perspective. Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is based
on a range of measurable objectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience and
qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service, having due regard
to the Company’s own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the candidates will bring to the Board with due regard to the benefits
of diversity on the Board. During the year under review, the Board has
conducted an annual review of its structure and composition at a regular

meeting.

The Board is composed of six members, including three executive
Directors, namely Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing
Director), Mr Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman) and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles (Vice-Chairman), and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr
Sean S ] Wang. All the Directors have signed service contracts or letters
of appointment with the Company which set out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment. Biographical details of the Directors
and relevant relationships among them together with their respective
roles on the Board and its committees are set out in the Profile of the

Directors and Officers on pages 38 to 42.

With the Board members coming from a variety of business and
professional background and one out of the six Board members being
female, the Company considers that the Board has an appropriate size
and balanced structure and composition with diverse mix of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business and development. The Directors
have disclosed to the Company the offices held in other public companies
or orgainsations and the time involved and the Company has received
confirmations from each Director that he/she has devoted sufficient time
to perform his/her responsibilities as a Director and has given sufficient

attention to the affairs of the Company during their tenure of office.
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There are three independent non-executive Directors of the Company
representing one-half of the Board and two of them have either
appropriate professional accounting qualifications or related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing Rules. The Company
has received an annual written confirmation for the year 2021 from each
of the independent non-executive Directors of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all of the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
formulation of corporate strategy, approval of annual and interim
results, changes of members of the Board and its committees, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and monitoring and
controlling other significant operational and financial matters of the
Group. The independent non-executive Directors have contributed
valuable independent views and proposals for the Board’s deliberation
and decisions. In addition to the Nomination Committee, the Board
has established an executive committee, an audit committee and a
remuneration committee (collectively, together with the Nomination
Committee, the “Board Committees”). There are clear written terms of
reference of each of the Board Committees to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing the Board’s responsibilities.
The Board Committees report regularly to the Board on their decisions

and recommendations.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the management and the management also provides
support to the Board to formulate overall strategic direction, long-
term objectives and business plans of the Group. Both the Board and
the management have clearly defined authorities and responsibilities
under various risk management, internal control and check-and-balance
mechanisms. The management is responsible for implementing the
strategies and plans adopted by the Board and the Board Committees and

assumes full accountability to the Board for the operation of the Group.
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The Board meets regularly throughout the year and as and when
required. Sufficient notices are given to all Directors at least 14 days
before the regular Board meetings. All Directors are consulted whether
to include any matters in the agenda. Agenda and accompanying board
papers are given to all Directors in a timely manner before the appointed
date of each regular Board meeting. Drafts and final versions of minutes
are circulated to the Directors for comment and record respectively.
During the year 2021, there were four regular Board meetings. Besides, a
Vice-Chairman of the Board had an annual meeting in 2021 to exchange
opinions with the independent non-executive Directors of the Company

without the presence of the other Directors.

All members of the Board have been provided with monthly management
updates to keep them up-to-date with material developments of the
Group’s operations, performance, financial position and prospects.
The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the Directors to seek
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary, at the

Company’s expense, to assist them to perform their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors for their liabilities arising out of the discharge of their duties.

The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of corporate
governance best suited to the needs and interests of the Group. Good
corporate governance is crucial to an orderly and effective operational
system, which will enhance operational efficiencies, thereby bolstering
shareholder value. The Board is responsible for the corporate governance
functions. During the year ended 31st December, 2021, the Board has

discharged the following corporate governance duties:

(a)  develop, review and revise the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance including, inter alia, establishment of
the Nomination Committee with written terms of reference,
formulation of anti-corruption policy, as well as revising board
diversity policy, shareholders’ communication policy and

whistleblowing policy;
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(b) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, including
reviewing and revising the provisions of the code on risk

management and internal control of the Group;

(c)  review and monitor the Company’s code of practice for securities
transactions by the Directors and relevant employees (the “Code of

Practice for Securities Transactions”);

(d) review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions of the
CG Code and relevant disclosure in interim and annual reports;

and

(e) arrange seminars and briefings to the Directors, review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors, details of which are set out in the paragraph headed
“Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development”

in this Report.

Executive Committee

An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) was established
by the Board in June 2005 with specific written terms of reference. The
Executive Committee is composed of all the executive Directors of the
Company at all times, namely Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles. Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of the
Executive Committee. The Executive Committee may convene meetings
as it considers necessary for reviewing and approving, inter alia, any
matters concerning the day-to-day management of the business of the
Company and any matters to be delegated to it by the Board from time

to time.

Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was set up by the Board
in April 1999 with specific written terms of reference. The Audit
Committee is composed of all the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company, namely Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai
and Mr Sean S ] Wang. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Cheung
Siu Ping, Oscar who possesses appropriate professional accounting

qualifications as required under the Listing Rules.
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Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required to
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Company, to
review significant financial reporting judgements, to evaluate the overall
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, and to oversee the relationship with the Company’s auditor (the
“Auditor”). The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the Company’s website.

During the year 2021, the Audit Committee held three meetings for
reviewing the interim and annual financial statements as well as the
accounting and financial reporting matters of the Group; evaluating
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group, the
significant risks faced by the Group and also the resource adequacy and
effectiveness of internal audit function; reviewing the internal audit and
enterprise risk assessment reports of the Group for approval by the Board;
reviewing the whistleblowing policy and considering the engagement and

scope of services of the Auditor.

The Audit Committee concluded that in 2021 the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and the internal audit function
of the Company were implemented effectively. The Audit Committee
was satisfied with the related resources of the internal audit function and
the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and related budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions as well as the implementation, application and effectiveness of

the whistleblowing policy.

In March 2022, the Audit Committee held a meeting to review the
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for 2021 and
consider the re-appointment of the Auditor. On the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, the Board resolved to submit the consolidated
financial statements for review and to propose the re-appointment of the
Auditor for approval by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company for 2022.
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Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) was
established by the Board in June 2005 with specific written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Company’s website. The principal duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management’s remuneration and the remuneration packages
of individual Directors and senior management of the Company. Mr
Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang,
being all independent non-executive Directors of the Company, and Mr
Albert Tong, an executive Director of the Company, are members of the
Remuneration Committee while Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar acts as the

chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year 2021, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held for an annual review of the remuneration policy and packages for
all the Directors and senior management of the Company. Details of
the emoluments paid to the Directors and senior management of the
Company for the year ended 31st December, 2021 are set out in Note
11 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 124 and 125.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with effect
from 31st December 2021 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board, to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors. Mr Cheung Siu Ping,
Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang, being all independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, and Mr Albert Tong, an
executive Director of the Company, are members of the Nomination
Committee while Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar acts as the chairman of the

Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31st December, 2021, no Nomination

Committee meeting was held.
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Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of individual Directors at general meeting, regular
meetings of the Board and meetings of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee held during the year ended 31st December,
2021 is set out below and there was no meeting of the Nomination

Committee in 2021:

o wdk R o B

HEFREE —F _—F+ A=+~
H R4 R8T 2 RO &~ #R R E
ko ULFERZBEEMHMEZ B e gk
ZAHERIIEAT > MEAZEER —F
T AR e e

Number of meetings attended/held

TR BT frk

General Audit Remuneration
Meeting Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors HHEA BRKE H#HR HUZEE HMZEE
Executive Directors WirESH
Madam Hsu Feng fr Lt 11 4/4 N/A AN F N/A AN H
(Chairman of the Board and (EF T
Managing Director) HFHH)
Mr Albert Tong LrREE 11 404 N/A R 11
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (EH R )
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles it REkE /1 414 N/A A N/A AR
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (HHFIR )
Independent Non-Executive Directors B JE BT F
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar IR 11 4/4 3/3 11
(Chairman of the Audit Committee, (HBRZERE
the Remuneration Committee and FNZE A e R
the Nomination Committee) REFRELE)
Mr Lee Chan Fai R 1/1 4/4 313 11
Mr Sean S ] Wang Eoalkk 1/1 414 3/3 1/1
Appointment and Re-election of Directors WP Z R AR

In accordance with the Articles, new Directors could be elected by the
Company or appointed by the Board. Any Director so appointed by
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and the retiring Director shall be eligible for

re-election.
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The Board is responsible for reviewing its own structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience of its
members), and identifying, selecting and considering any appointment
or re-election of its own members. The Board is also responsible for
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has adopted a director nomination policy to set out the
approach to nominate candidates to the Board to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. After the
establishment of the Nomination Committee on 31st December, 2021,
the Nomination Committee has assumed responsibility for performing

the aforesaid duties.

No new Board member was appointed during the year under review.
Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Lee Chan Fai retired by
rotation and were re-elected as Directors at the Company’s annual

general meeting for 2021.

An annual review of the Board structure and composition was made by
the Board during the year under review and the Board resolved to keep

the structure and composition of the Board unchanged.

In addition, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar
shall retire by rotation at the Company’s annual general meeting for 2022
pursuant to the Articles and being eligible, offer themselves for election.
Having considered the selection criteria of the Company including the
review of the overall contribution and service to the Company and a
range of diversity perspectives concerning, inter alia, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience and qualifications,
skills, knowledge and business experience of the retiring directors, and
upon the recommendation by the Nomination Committee after its
meeting held in March 2022, the Board recommends that Mr Tong and
Mr Cheung be re-elected as Directors at the annual general meeting for
2022.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each of the new Directors of the
Company is given a comprehensive orientation package, including the
latest information of the Group, induction into their responsibilities and
duties, terms of reference of the relevant Board Committees and other

related regulatory requirements.

Throughout the course of their directorship, to keep them abreast of
the latest developments in the legislative or regulatory environment, the
Directors are regularly provided with updates and briefings on the Listing
Rules and other applicable legal and regulatory requirements. Circulars or
guidance notes issued by various regulatory authorities or organizations,

where appropriate, are given to the Directors for reading and reference.

In order to assist the Directors to participate in continuous professional
development, the Company encourages the Directors to enroll in a wide
range of professional development seminars and conferences. During the
year ended 31st December, 2021, the Company organized three in-house
seminars on areas of money laundering, financing and financial risk
management, and anti-corruption regulations so as to help the Directors

refresh their knowledge and skills.

A summary of the continuous professional development in which the
Directors participated during the year ended 31st December, 2021 is as

follows:

ERFZ ARG R fr B H R

AR RV L BRAENES > £ HEZREM
AR > kB — B 2T i/ 3
> EAEALE R BOF Bk - H A
RERY A48~ AR BH o T & B 6 10 T HE o
o DURCHAR BE B R ORI ER -

I 2% 2 S A 0 ] AR R P
B BRI I ok 9 S > B O IR
b AR R ) B oAt A8 ) 2 3k B KA K
ZEHTER A o b A [ B A A
RRCEE I K AR T (CndE ) g e it 7
HAMB K27
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S A 2N AN R T ) TS R
Al S S T o o AR R R
H=1—HILFEER » AR AR T =)
REREE I 2R B e R - RN B S
JE\ B B R DL R R BTG B A B
SR HL A S B RE

BREE - EFE - —F 1T A= —HILF
B ERTSHENSEE LR REHREN
T

Continuous Professional Development

Types Subjects
Name of Directors wWHES 3 B
Executive Directors HiTHEE
Madam Hsu Feng R MLt 1,2 AB
Mr Albert Tong R RCiP s 1,2 A B
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles RE Pt 1,2 A B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BonIE AT HE S
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RIEF-HEAE 1,2 A'B
Mr Lee Chan Fai RS Fiwan 1,2 A B
Mr Sean S J Wang EL R 1,2 A, B
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Types:

I:  Attending in-house briefings/training, seminars, conference or

forums

2:  Reading relevant information and updates, and watching training

webcasts

Subjects:
A:  Subjects relevant to the businesses of the Group

B:  Legal, regulatory, finance and general management updates

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Practice for Securities
Transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company
and each of the Directors has confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the Code of Practice for

Securities Transactions throughout the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that proper risk
management and internal control systems are maintained within the
Group and for overseeing the effectiveness of these systems in order to
safeguard the shareholders’” investments and the Group’s assets against
misappropriation and to manage the operational risks. The Company has
adopted a code applicable to the Group in respect of material internal
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and
risk management functions since 2005. The code on risk management
and internal control is reviewed by the Company regularly and modified

pursuant to operational requirements of the Group.
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The risk management and internal control systems are intended to
manage, not eliminate, significant risks of failure to achieve the Group’s
business objectives, so they can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The operating units of the Group, as the risk owners, go through
the following processes on an ongoing basis and report results to the

management:

(a) identify their own significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the

Group’s business and financial position;
(b)  develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
(c) monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the code on risk management and internal
control to ensure that inside information remains confidential until the
disclosure of such information and the dissemination of such information

is efficiently and consistently made.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to review the
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal control
of the Group regularly and the Audit Committee held a meeting in
2021 for that purpose. The Board, based on the review of the Audit
Committee, considered that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems had been adequate and effectively implemented and
the Group had complied with the provisions on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG Code and the Group’s code on risk
management and internal control during the year ended 31st December,
2021.

An external service provider has been engaged for providing internal audit
services to the Group during the year under review. The Board reviewed
and approved, after a review made by the Audit Committee, the internal

audit and enterprise risk assessment reports of the Group for 2021.

The Board also considered that, after a review made by the Audit
Committee, the Group’s internal audit function had been effectively
implemented and adequately resourced with experienced external service
provider in 2021 and the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and related budget of the Company’s accounting

and financial reporting functions were adequate.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for each financial period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2021, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently; have made judgements and
estimates that were prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to form an
independent opinion, based on the audit, on those consolidated financial
statements and their opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2021 is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 60 to 66.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fee in respect of audit service provided to the Group by the Auditor
for the year ended 31st December, 2021 amounted to HK$3,045,000,
and the Auditor did not provide any non-audit services during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs and supports the Board by ensuring board procedures are followed
and board proceedings are efficiently and effectively conducted. The
incumbent is also responsible for apprising the Board of all applicable
law, rules, regulations and corporate governance developments. During
the year under review, the Company Secretary has taken relevant
professional training as required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders through various channels including the Company’s annual
general meetings. In 2021, all the Directors of the Company (including
the Chairman of the Board and chairman of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee) attended the annual general meeting of the
Company and answered questions from the shareholders. Representatives
of the Auditor also attended that meeting to answer questions about the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2020.
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In order to further enhance communication with the shareholders of the
Company and enable the Company’s shareholders to have timely and
updated information of the Group, the Company has set up its own
website at htep://www.tomson.com.hk where corporate information,
interim and annual reports, environmental, social and governance
reports, announcements, circulars, business development and other

information of the Company are posted.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) and
Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

(a) Any three shareholders of the Company holding in aggregate not
less than 5% of the total paid up capital of the Company and
having the right to vote at general meetings of the Company have
the right to ask the Board to convene an EGM by depositing a duly
signed written requisition stating the general nature of business(es)
to be transacted at the EGM or the objects of the EGM at the
office of the Company in the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“Hong Kong”) of the People’s Republic of China at
Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary of the Company.

If within 21 days of deposit of a valid requisition (which has been
duly verified with the share registrar of the Company) the Board
does not proceed to duly convene an EGM, the requisitionists may

themselves convene an EGM.

(b) The procedures for nomination of Directors by the shareholders
of the Company are available on the Company’s website at

hetp://www.tomson.com.hk.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders can direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

To the extent that such information of the Group can be made available
to the public, shareholders may at any time put forward enquiries to the
Board through the Company Secretary in writing by mail to the office of
the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor,
Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or by e-mail

to ir@tomson.com.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which
the Company aims at providing stable and sustainable returns to the
shareholders of the Company. The dividend payout ratio shall be
determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its absolute
discretion after taking into account, inter alia, the Group’s operation
performance and business development plan, consolidated financial
results, liquidity position and indebtedness, capital and investment
requirements and any other factors that the Board may deem relevant,
and subject to the statutory and regulatory restrictions under the
Cayman Islands laws and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association. Besides, no dividend would be payable except out of the

retained earnings and/or share premium of the Company.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption policy, pursuant to
which the Company aims at setting out the basic standard of conduct
expected of all directors of the Group and employees of all levels, and the
Company’s policy on acceptance of advantage and handling of conflict of

interest when dealing with the business of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31st December, 2021.
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CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribute to the well-being of the society.
During the year under review, the Group has made charitable donations
to various international and local charitable organizations, including
World Vision Hong Kong and Orbis Hong Kong, to support their
activities in the provision of relief against poverty and education, children

sponsorship, health promotion and communal welfare.

The Company has participated in the “Heart to Heart Project” organized
by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups since its launch in
2005, to sponsor service projects proposed by volunteer groups of those
schools enrolled under the project so as to encourage youth volunteers to
serve the community and to promote the concept of mutual help among

neighborhood.

K S W1 2020-22

Corporate Partner

LB,

HEEEARAE

Tomson Group Limited

o1l pateuLN 49T GHLTY

IRE PR T BLELHT IR N )
Thanks for your organization's donation
of being “Orbis Caring Partner”

BPIMPHIOM S3AY] JO S

FIME HILH 28
Mary Lau Executive Director - Hong Kong

On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2022
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 71, has been a director of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) since January 1990 and now acts
as an executive Director of the Company. She was appointed Managing
Director of the Company in December 2001 and the chairman of the
executive committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) in June 2005. She was also elected as Chairman of the Board in
December 2006.

Madam Hsu has over 10 years’ experience in film production, and
in property development and investment as well as retail industry
in Taiwan. She has been engaged in the property development, and
hospitality and leisure business in the Mainland of the People’s Republic
of China (“China”) for nearly three decades. She is also the Honorary
Consul of the Principality of Monaco in Shanghai, China.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, who are Vice-Chairmen of the Board and executive Directors
of the Company. Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles (collectively “Tong Family”) are all directors of Step
Famous Investment Limited (“Step Famous”) and altogether hold the
entire interests in the issued capital of Step Famous. Tong Family are
also directors of Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”, formerly a listed
company in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong
Kong”) of China until withdrawal of the listing of its shares with effect
from 4:00 p.m. on 20th August, 2021) and altogether hold 70.1%
interests in the issued capital of RHL. In addition, both Madam Hsu and
Mr Albert Tong are directors of King China Holdings Limited (“King
China”) while Tong Family are all directors of E-Shares Investments
Limited (“E-Shares”). Madam Hsu is the owner of King China and
E-Shares. Mr Albert Tong, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Step Famous,
RHL and King China are substantial sharcholders of the Company while
E-Shares is a shareholder of the Company. All of them have notifiable
interests in the Company under Part XV of the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”).

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant to the SFO,
Madam Hsu is interested and taken to be interested in a total of
908,001,416 issued shares of the Company.
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Mr Albert Tong, aged 39, has been appointed an executive Director
of the Company since December 2001 and a member of the executive
committee and remuneration committee of the Board since June 2005.
He was elected as Vice-Chairman of the Board in December 2006. He
was also appointed to act as a member of the nomination committee of
the Board with effect from December 2021. He has joined the Group
and taken up directorships of the subsidiaries of the Company since
March 2001. He has actively participated in the Group’s business
development, corporate management, property trading and securities

investment for more than two decades.

Mr Albert Tong is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board
and Managing Director of the Company, and the younger brother of
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Vice-Chairman of the Board and executive
Director of the Company. They all are directors of Step Famous and
RHL and altogether hold the entire interests and 70.1% interests in
the issued capital of Step Famous and RHL respectively. They are also
directors of E-Shares. In addition, both Mr Albert Tong and Madam
Hsu are directors of King China. Madam Hsu Feng is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Step Famous,
RHL and King China are substantial shareholders of the Company while
E-Shares is a shareholder of the Company. All of them have notifiable
interests in the Company under Part XV of the SFO.

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant to the SFO, Mr
Albert Tong is interested in 278,981,024 issued shares of the Company.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, aged 41, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the executive committee of
the Board since October 2008. He was also elected as Vice-Chairman of
the Board in December 2010. He has joined the Group since December
2000 and has participated in property trading and business management
of the Shanghai office of the Group. Mr Tong also acts as a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. He now principally engages in

property development and trading business in the Mainland of China.

In addition, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles had been a member of the
13th Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political

Consultative Conference during the period from January 2013 to January
2018.
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Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of
the Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the elder brother
of Mr Albert Tong, Vice-Chairman of the Board and executive Director
of the Company. They all are directors of Step Famous and RHL and
altogether hold the entire interests and 70.1% interests in the issued
capital of Step Famous and RHL respectively. They are also directors of
E-Shares. Madam Hsu Feng is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
Mr Albert Tong, Step Famous and RHL are substantial shareholders
of the Company while E-Shares is a sharcholder of the Company. All
of them have notifiable interests in the Company under Part XV of the
SFO.

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant to the SFO, Mr
Tong Chi Kar Charles is interested in 284,807,445 issued shares of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, aged 57, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the chairman
of the audit committee of the Board since September 2004. He was also
appointed a member of the remuneration committee of the Board in
June 2005 and then was appointed as the chairman of this committee
in April 2011. He was further appointed to act as the chairman of the

nomination committee of the Board with effect from December 2021.

Mr Cheung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

He is practising as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong and is the

sole proprietor of Oscar S. P. Cheung & Co..

The annual director’s fee of Mr Cheung has been increased from
HK$174,000 to HK$177,000 with effect from 1st January, 2022,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
sharcholders at the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company and
on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Board with

reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.
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Mr Lee Chan Fai, aged 59, has been appointed an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Board since December
2005. He was also appointed to act as a member of the nomination

committee of the Board with effect from December 2021.

He graduated from Department of Architecture of The University of
Hong Kong, is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and
is qualified as a Registered Architect in Hong Kong and a First Class
Registered Architect in the Mainland of China.

Mr Lee has acted as a director of Marco Asia Limited and J&P Architects
Limited (28 ZEEMIA FRA ) since the 1990’s, and a director of J&P
Architects Limited (#2508 851344 FR/A F]) since January 2015.
He was a director of JSP Architects Limited during the period from 2008

to July 2012. He has extensive experience in architectural design.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Lee has been increased from
HK$174,000 to HK$177,000 with effect from 1st January, 2022,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company and
on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Board with

reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

Mr Sean S ] Wang, aged 58, has been appointed an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Board since April 2011.
He was also appointed to act as a member of the nomination committee
of the Board with effect from December 2021.

He graduated from Peking University and studied economics. He then
went to the United States of America and obtained a bachelor of science
degree from Hamline University in 1986 and a MBA degree from
University of Minnesota in 1989. Mr Wang has in-depth and extensive
experience in corporate management and funds operation. He has many
years of experience in financial operation and project management at
various multinational firms listed on the New York Stock Exchange,

NASDAQ and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr Wang has held the positions of president and chief operating officer
of Hurray! Holding Limited, a company listed on NASDAQ), a non-
executive director of China Advanced Construction Materials Group,
Inc., a company listed on NASDAQ), and an executive director and the
chief financial officer of SOHO China Limited, a company listed in
Hong Kong. He was awarded “CFO of the Year in China” in 2009. In
addition, he was an executive director and the chief financial officer of
China Huarong Energy Company Limited, a company listed in Hong
Kong, during the period from October 2010 to October 2016, and was
an executive director and the chief executive officer of ENN Energy
Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong, during the period
from March 2017 to January 2018. He now acts as chairman of the
board of Shanghai E-Talent DigiTech Investment Company Limited
subsequent to his post of senior vice president of ENN Group.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Wang has been increased from
HK$174,000 to HK$177,000 with effect from 1st January, 2022,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company and
on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Board with

reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 55, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March 1998 and
the Deputy General Manager of the Company in August 2005. She
has become the Senior Deputy General Manager of the Company since
March 2022.

She attained a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s degree
in business studies, and is an associate of The Chartered Governance
Institute established in England and The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of

Chartered Secretaries).

Mr Wong Chi Keung, aged 45, joined the Group in 2008. He was
appointed the Chief Accountant of the Company in February 2018
and has become the Financial Controller of the Company since March
2022. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present its Report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st December, 2021 and the Independent Auditor’s
Report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group in the course of the year were
property development and investment, hospitality and leisure business,
securities trading, as well as operation of and investment in media and

entertainment business.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an investment
holding company and the principal activities and other particulars of the
principal subsidiaries of the Company are listed under Note 38 to the

consolidated financial statements on pages 173 to 180.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the performance and position of the Group’s business
for the year ended 31st December, 2021, an indication of the future
development of the Group’s business as well as an analysis of the
Group’s principal risks and uncertainties are set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 20. This discussion forms part of

this Report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance as
well as its compliance with laws and regulations, and an account of the
Group’s relationships with its employees, customers and suppliers are set

out below in this Report.

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December, 2021
and the Group’s financial position as at the end thereof are set out on
pages 67 to 182. An analysis by operating segments and geographical
location is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements on

pages 117 to 121.
As at the date of this Report, the Board is not aware of any important

events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the year

under review.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of 5.50 HK cents per share
for the year ended 31st December, 2021 (2020: 5.50 HK cents per share)
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Monday, 13th June, 2022. The dividend is payable in cash
and dividend warrants are expected to be despatched on Wednesday,
22nd June, 2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has resolved to convene the annual general meeting of the
Company for Friday, 17th June, 2022 (the “2022 AGM”).

For the purpose of determining the sharcholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the 2022 AGM and qualify for the interim dividend
for 2021, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 13th June, 2022 to Friday, 17th June, 2022, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of HK$0.50 each
in the capital of the Company (the “Share(s)”) will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM and qualify for the
interim dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with Tricor Secretaries Limited, the
Company’s share registrar in the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“Hong Kong”) of the People’s Republic of China (“China”), not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 10th June, 2022 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
contributed approximately 55.48% of the Group’s gross proceeds from
operations with the largest customer accounting for approximately
28.52% of the Group’s gross proceeds from operations while
approximately 96.39% of the Group’s purchases were attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers with the largest supplier accounting for
approximately 77.40% of the Group’s purchases.

None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
interest in the number of issued Shares) have any interest in the Group’s

five largest customers or suppliers.
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DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2021, the Group donated
approximately HK$1,426,000 for charitable and other causes.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2021, the Group added fixed
assets amounting to HK$9,542,000 (2020: HK$102,332,000) while it

disposed of and wrote off fixed assets with an aggregate net book value of

HK$664,000 (2020: HK$4,911,000).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown in
Notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 129 to
133.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, either under
development or for sale or investment purposes, is set out on pages 183
to 188.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31st December, 2021 are set
out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 147 and
148.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any of its

subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

No interest expenses attributable to properties under development were
capitalized by the Group during the year (2020: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st December, 2021, 1,971,025,125 Shares were in issue and fully
paid. The Company did not issue any new Shares or buy back any Shares
during the year under review. Details of the share capital of the Company

are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements on page

145.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2021, there was no purchase, sale
or redemption made by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the

Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than a share option scheme adopted by the Company in 2012 as
disclosed in this Report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Company during the year under review or subsisted at the end of
the year.

RESERVES

The retained earnings and share premium of the Company as
at 31st December, 2021 amounted to HK$992,615,000 (2020:
HK$1,085,727,000) and HK$451,755,000 (2020: HK$560,161,000)

respectively. These reserves are available for distribution.

The Board recommends that the retained earnings of the Group as at
31st December, 2021 amounting to HK$9,405,283,000 be carried
forward.

Other movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are shown in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 72 and 73,
and page 172 respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company and the Companies Act of
the Cayman Islands.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for the

preceding five financial years is set out on pages 190 and 191.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and those
who were in office during the year under review and up to the date of

this Report are:

Executive Directors

Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar

Mr Lee Chan Fai

Mr Sean S ] Wang

A profile of the Directors of the Company is shown on pages 38 to 42.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s Directors
during the year is set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial

statements on pages 124 and 125.

All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles
of Association of the Company. Article 116 of the Articles of Association
of the Company provides that at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors of the Company for the time being or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the nearest number to but not more
than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Directors to retire each year shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last election and are eligible for re-election.
In this connection, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Cheung Siu Ping,
Oscar shall retire by rotation at the 2022 AGM. Being eligible, they offer

themselves for re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company is subject to
separate resolutions to be approved by the shareholders at the 2022 AGM
and details of those retiring Directors will be disclosed in a circular of the
Company to be despatched to the shareholders together with the notice
of the 2022 AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

The Directors of the Company who are proposed for re-election at
the 2022 AGM do not have any unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’
liability insurance throughout the year under review, which provides

appropriate cover for the directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and underlying shares of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein (including interests and short
positions which they were taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO)
or which were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the

“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(I) The Company
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Name of Directors Interests Interests Interests Interests
HHEY YN £ KB RE Al JLAth B 5
Madam Hsu Feng e #at @ 226,678,292 (B)(i) Nil & 681,323,124 (B)(ii), (iii) Nil 4%
Mr Albert Tong R (4) 278,981,024 (C) Nil 4 Nil # (B)(iii) Nil 4
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles %5 ¥ 5554 (4) 284,807,445 (D) Nil Nil % (B)(iii) Nil 4%
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(II) The Company’s associated corporations

Notes:

(A)

)

(1) China Boom Enterprises Limited (“China Boom”)

)

Shares of US$1 each

(ID) A2y w) ZAH 6 22 1

(1) BESEARAE(EE])

Name of Director

EHREA

AR 130 Z By
Number of shares of China Boom
i B3 2 1y 8 H
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests

5\ 2 X R AL FC At BE £

Madam Hsu Feng B WL @®

Tomson Entertainment Co. Limited
(“Tomson Entertainment”)

Shares of NTD10 each

716,800 Nil 4 563,200 Nil 42

(2) HEBERN AR W

Name of Director

HEHLEH

(TG R4 ])
BB AR B W 1oc 2 iy
Number of shares of Tomson Entertainment
i B 4 2 sy 8 H
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests

5\ i 5 Bl 2 2R AR Lt HE £

Madam Hsu Feng &% #iZ+ (F)

1,350,000 Nil % 1,125,000 Nil f

Wit :

Madam Hsu Feng is the mother of Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar ~ (A) WL A% TR RG TR EZ
Charles. All of them are shareholders and directors of Rivera (Holdings) BB o BSE R ) A R A A ()]
Limited (‘RHL”).

) 2 RS ER -

Madam Hsu Feng was interested and deemed to be interested in an ®) MIBCEF LB B - R L L

aggregate of 908,001,416 issued Shares, representing 46.067% interests in LR B00r K Fe Al R pe il 2 15 A A 3L
the total number of issued Shares, pursuant to the SFO in the following 908,001,416/ CL 84T Bt 1 > A EL 4847 iR

ways:

0]

R 46.067%HERS -

She held in her capacity as a beneficial owner an interest in (i) BLHAERESHA N Z S hE

226,678,292 issued Shares (being 11.500% of the total number of

issued Shares);

Tomson Group Limited 15 Fi 4E B 47 FR 22 7]

226,678,292 I T #5847 & £ (B %%
AT B8 11.500% ) Z HERS
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(i)  She held the entire interests in the issued capital of the following (i) TRHEAE FHIARRNE 2 BR 2 BT
shareholders of the Company and was therefore deemed to have ARz A B AR
interest in 434,023,124 issued Shares (being 22.020% of the total %% N Al B iR 1A 2 434,023,124
number of issued Shares) which were beneficially held by these Ji 2 B AT I 4y (P 2 AT MR A 2R 0
companies: Z2.22.020%) Z A4 -

Name of companies Number of Shares held
VNCEA i1 Fide i et < 8 H
King China Holdings Limited e AR [ A FRA 7 252,919,265
E-Shares Investments Limited 181,103,859

434,023,124

(iii) The following companies, being wholly-owned subsidiaries of RHL, (i) FANA T (35 W2 2GS A
beneficially held an aggregate of 247,300,000 issued Shares (being A B i A A 35247,300,000 % E
12.547% of the total number of issued Shares): BEAT 4 (R #B AT Bt iy A i 2

12.547%) -

Name of companies Number of Shares held
VNCIEA P R 2 B H
Forty Enterprises Company Limited & 4 3EA FRA 16,909,030
Shine Trip Limited Fifi AT BR A 7 230,390,970

247,300,000
Madam Hsu Feng was entitled to exercise 12.15% interests in the AR L R AT 2 BB AT AR
issued capital of RHL and control the exercise of 50.02% interests B12.15%ME #5 > 3l 375 38 H P i 66%
in the issued capital of RHL through Step Famous Investment TE 25 2 HEE A PR /i el A T
Limited in which she controlled 66% interests. Pursuant to the i1 3T 2 B 38 AT B AR 19 50.029% HE
SFO, Madam Hsu Feng was therefore deemed to be interested in T o MRIFCGES BRG] - 1R
the aforesaid Shares through corporations controlled by her. T O 2 8 T R R 2 A )

Fifr B ey i -

(C)  Mr Albert Tong held in his capacity as a beneficial owner an interest in ~ (C) %5 1°[A] RAEDHAERES#HA AN 50

278,981,024 issued Shares (being 14.154% of the total number of issued Fif 278,981,024 1% C 8547 %4 (BN & 88 47
Shares). A B 2 14.154% ) Z HEZS ©

(D)  Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles held in his capacity as a beneficial owner an (D) GTFEEEUEELRESRBAE N2 S0
interest in 284,807,445 issued Shares (being 14.449% of the total number 284,807,445 B B EEA T (B E 8817
of issued Shares). A BB 2 14.449% ) Z HEZS -
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(E) Madam Hsu Feng held, in her capacity as a beneficial owner, a personal
interest in 716,800 shares (being 56%) in the capital of China Boom.
The Company held the balance of interest of 563,200 shares (being 44%)
in the capital of China Boom through its wholly-owned subsidiary and
Madam Hsu was (by virtue of her beneficial interest in the Company as
disclosed in the above Note (B)) deemed to be indirectly interested in these
shares through a corporation controlled by her pursuant to the SFO. In
conclusion, Madam Hsu was interested and deemed to be interested in an
aggregate of 1,280,000 shares (being 100%) in the capital of China Boom

pursuant to the SFO.

(F)  Madam Hsu Feng held, in her capacity as a beneficial owner, a personal
interest in 1,350,000 shares (being 54%) in the capital of Tomson
Entertainment. The Company held an interest in 1,125,000 shares (being
45%) in the capital of Tomson Entertainment through its wholly-owned
subsidiary and Madam Hsu was (by virtue of her beneficial interest in
the Company as disclosed in the above Note (B)) deemed to be indirectly
interested in these shares through a corporation controlled by her pursuant
to the SFO. In conclusion, Madam Hsu was interested and deemed to
be interested in a total of 2,475,000 shares (being 99%) in the capital of

Tomson Entertainment pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company and
their associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
debentures and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31st December, 2021, which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein (including interests or short positions which they were taken
to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) on 1st
June, 2012. Under the 2012 Scheme, no options were granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31st December, 2021, nor was
there any option outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the year.
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(B) M+ HIELE DA A2 S 0A
NEEA B # A 2 716,800 5 M £ (B
56% ) Z Mg o A F i R A IR
NEIFEA BN 2 B RS R 2 563,200/
JEEAy (Rl 44%) 2 fE 45 > T AR IR CEE 5 M 1
BBy > ¥4 AR L SCREEE B) Br il
WA ANF 2 B MER B AER
— 5% B R PE I 2 N D T B A R S I
MERS o BUERTE > WRIECGESR L& K
Bl i FEA B A A B IR A

A 31,280,000 B 173 (B 1009%) 2 Fif 4

(F) i LR ESHA A2 S0
N FRA P B R 8 I AR 21,350,000 11 ik
1y (B154%) 2 WERs o A/l 3 it H A it
&N FI A B R I AR 221,125,000
JBEREAS (Bl 459%) 2 HEZS - MIARTECGE S M
W B RFY > Lt AR B SO R B) B
WREMRANT Z Bt > i AS
i — 5 R B 2 s FD B A RS A
iEss o BIETE > IRIEGES LBk
B > B e R A B 2 R U B e 4
TR 4 322,475,000 B B 453 (1999 ) 2 K
% o

B ESCTER #4h » R F 4 A
=t H > ARFSEF LEAFRBEA
AL HE 77 A > ) S HLAT AT A BB 325 ) 22 Je Ay
fRURE RS B A B B0 Hh B A ZE R IR CRE O I
H B AGA) 55 352 2 B E R A wZ M6k 151 B
At Y 6 M A (6 4 AR R Rl 2 SO B
191 ) 565 3440 15 25 WO 1 B A 110 HE £ SR
) - sZHE IRCE TR 2 B E R A
28 T RIS B AT AT 2 R

B Foe i i

ANFN - FE—TFERNA—HEMN T —IE
PERRREST S ([ B — —4E5HE ) - R
SR AR A= HIEFERN > 1E
TE ARG o I S R R
FEATRE ~ RSN BRA > JAE A B B 1R B
GEARIRE > Y EATAA] 3 AT 2 B RO HE o



Major terms of the 2012 Scheme

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
selected persons for their contribution to any member of the Group or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest
(the “Invested Entity”).

The participants include, inter alia:

(i)  any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or part
time) of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity,

including any executive director of any of these companies; or

(i) any non-executive director (including independent non-executive

director) of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(iii) any adviser or consultant or customer of, or any supplier of goods

or services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(iv) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity.

As at the date of this Report, save as otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company, the maximum number of Shares available
for issue upon exercise of options which may be granted under the
2012 Scheme is 137,252,380, representing approximately 6.96% of the

number of issued Shares.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to each participant (including exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
of options shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the date of grant
(the “Individual Limit”). If any further grant of options to a participant
would result in the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant to be in excess of the
Individual Limit, such further grant must be subject to the shareholders’
approval in general meeting of the Company with such participant and

his or her associates abstaining from voting.
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The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made within
28 days from the date on which such offer is made with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the Company by way of a

consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price per Share in respect of any option that may be
granted shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall

determine, save that such price will not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the option, which

must be a business day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares on the date of offer.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not be more than 10 years commencing from the

date of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board and stated in the offer of the relevant
options, there is no minimum period for which an option must be held

before it can be exercised under the 2012 Scheme.

The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective until 31st May, 2022
subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by
the Board. After the expiry of such valid period, no further options will
be offered or granted but in all other respects the provisions of the 2012

Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ARRANGEMENTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the 2012 Scheme, at no time during the year nor at the end
of the year ended 31st December, 2021 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and Managing Director
of the Company, along with Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, being Vice-Chairmen of the Board and executive Directors of

the Company, are directors and shareholders of RHL.

RHL is engaged in property development and investment in Shanghai
of China, particularly in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area,
through its subsidiaries and associated company. Property development
and investment, with particular focus on Pudong New Area in Shanghai,
is one of the principal businesses of the Group. The business of RHL in
the property sector in Shanghai (the “Excluded Business”) may therefore

potentially compete with the Group’s business.

In this connection, Madam Hsu, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles are considered to have interests in a business which may compete
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group, other than that business where the Directors of the Company
have been appointed or were appointed as directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group, pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Nevertheless, both the Group’s business and the Excluded
Business are managed by their respective independent management and
administration. The target market segments of the Group’s business are
different from that of the Excluded Business. Besides, the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company will be monitoring the
operations of the Group. The Group is capable of carrying on its business

independently of, and at arm’s length from, the Excluded Business.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as the cancellation and extinguishment of the shares of RHL
disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 16,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company or any entity connected with
him (within the meaning of Section 486 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were
entered into during the year ended 31st December, 2021 or subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31st December, 2021.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to achieve its short-term
and long-term goals. To maintain its competitive status, the Group aims

at providing quality products and services to its customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company recognizes that employees are one of the Group’s valuable
assets and the Group is conscious of the importance of an effective staff
management and incentive structure. The Group provides competitive
remuneration packages and makes regular review to attract and motivate
the employees. Remuneration and benefits packages are generally
structured by reference to market terms, individual responsibilities,

performance and qualifications.

Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to their
responsibilities and prevailing market conditions. The emoluments of the
executive Directors of the Company for their services in management of
the Group are determined by the Board on the recommendation of its
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”). The fees of
the independent non-executive Directors of the Company are fixed by
the Board under the authorization of the shareholders of the Company

and on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.
In addition, the Company has adopted the 2012 Scheme pursuant to

which it may grant the directors and employees of the Group options to

subscribe for Shares as a long-term incentive.
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PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was registered
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees in Hong Kong. The scheme
is a defined contribution scheme effective from December 2000 and is
funded by contributions from employer and employees in accordance
with the provisions of the MPF Ordinance. If the employer makes any
voluntary contributions for the employees under the scheme, forfeited
contributions in this nature can be applied to reduce the amount of

future voluntary contributions payable by the employer.

The employees of the Group in the Mainland of China are members
of respective state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes operated by the local governments. The employers and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage of

the payroll under rules of the schemes.

Furthermore, the Group and its employees in the Macao Special
Administrative Region (“Macau”) of China shall make contributions
of a fixed amount per quarter to the Social Security Fund under the

obligation system pursuant to the laws of Macau.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the said schemes and charged to the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss amounted to HK$5,182,000 (2020: HK$1,156,000) and

no contributions were forfeited.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2021, the following shareholders (other than the
Directors of the Company) were interested, directly or indirectly, in 5%
or more of the number of issued Shares and underlying shares of the
Company and those interests were required to be recorded in the register

required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

Substantial Shareholders of the Company

Name of shareholders

B 34

0 AnwlZERBHR

Number of Shares held
(proportion to the

number of issued Shares)
ket ety < B H
(MGCB#ITBREBEZAER)

King China Holdings Limited
Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”)

Step Famous Investment Limited (“Step Famous”)

Other Person

Name of shareholder

K A1

MELMARAA )
JIS S A BR A =] (IR D) ()
EBRREARAR (THER]) (o

252,919,265 (12.832%)
247,300,000 (12.547%)
247,300,000 (12.547%)

an Hip AN+

Number of Shares held
(proportion to the

number of issued Shares)
Pk f e tn < $H

(B TREBAZ AR

E-Shares Investments Limited ()

King China Holdings Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited were the
beneficial owners of these Shares respectively. They were wholly owned by
Madam Hsu Feng in her capacity as a beneficial owner. Pursuant to the
SFO, their interests in these Shares therefore constituted part of the total
interests of Madam Hsu Feng in the capital of the Company as disclosed
in Note (B) to the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short

Positions in Securities” in this Report.

RHL was deemed to have interests in these Shares through corporations
under its control in accordance with the SFO. Details of these interests
are set out in Note (B)(iii) to the above paragraph headed “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities” in this Report. Pursuant to the
SFO, these interests constituted part of the total interests of Madam Hsu
Feng in the capital of the Company as disclosed in Note (B) to the above
paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities”

in this Report.
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Amongst these Shares disclosed, 230,390,970 issued Shares were
beneficially held by Shine Trip Limited, which was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Superwell Development Limited in which RHL held its entire
equity interest. Therefore, Shine Trip Limited, Superwell Development
Limited and RHL were interested or were taken to be interested in these

Shares pursuant to the SFO.

(¢)  Pursuant to the SFO, Step Famous, which held 50.02% interests in the
issued capital of RHL, was deemed to be interested in these Shares, details

of which are set out in the above Note (b).

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are not aware
of any person (other than the Directors of the Company) who had,
directly or indirectly, interests or short positions in the number of issued
Shares and the underlying shares of the Company and those interests or
short positions were required to be recorded in the register kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st December, 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this Report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as prescribed by the
Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENT POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. It continually
seeks to identify and manage environmental impacts attributable to its
operation activities to minimize the impacts as far as possible. It adheres
to the principle of recycling and reduction and implements green office
practices such as double-sided printing and copying and reducing energy

consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical appliances.

The Group also seeks to reduce its material consumption and construction
wastes in construction works. During the year under review, the Group

added environmental protection measures in its operation control.

Report of the Directors
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group commits itself to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations including, inter alia, the Listing Rules, Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and other applicable local laws and regulations
in various jurisdictions in which it operates. Furthermore, the Group,
acting as a property developer, is subject to environmental protection
law and regulations, including air and noise pollution and discharge of
construction wastes and water in the Mainland and Macau of China. To
the best knowledge of the Board, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on the Group

during the year under review.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2021 have been audited by the Auditor of the Company,
Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and there was no change in the

Auditor of the Company in the previous three financial years.

Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have been registered with the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as a Registered Public
Interest Entity Auditor.

They will retire at the conclusion of the 2022 AGM and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TOMSON GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tomson Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) set out on pages 67 to 182 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
December, 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the assets and involvement of the management

judgement and estimation in determining the fair value.

The fair value of investment properties (which included commercial
properties, residential properties and industrial properties in Shanghai
of the People’s Republic of China (the “Mainland China”)) at 31st
December, 2021 was HK$8,598,847,000, with loss on fair value
changes recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of
HK$3,540,000 for the year then ended.

As disclosed in Notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements,
in estimating the fair value of these investment properties, the Group
engaged a professional independent valuer (the “Valuer”) to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation technique and inputs to the
valuation. The valuation was arrived by capitalising the net rental income
derived from existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary
income potential of the properties on a recurring basis. This involves
making certain assumptions and the use of estimates in respect of the
reversionary yield by the Valuer. A slight increase in the reversionary

yield would result in a significant decrease in fair value, and vice versa.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties

included:

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer;
e Obraining an understanding of the valuation process and significant

assumptions and critical judgement areas from the management to
assess if the investment approach is appropriate for the respective

properties and industry norms;

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the estimations used, in particular,
the underlying assumptions and methodologies, based on our

knowledge of the properties market of the relevant locations; and

e Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs used by the Valuer
in the valuation model, including the reversionary yield, net rental
income derived from existing tenancies and annual unit market
rental by comparing them against current market data and entity

specific information on a sample basis.

Provision for land appreciation tax

We identified the provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
calculations as a key audit matter since significant judgement and
estimation are required in determining the amount of LAT to be paid by

the Group within each of the property development projects.

The Group is subject to LAT in the Mainland China. As disclosed in
Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the Mainland China
LAT of HK$198,781,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31st December, 2021. The Group had
provision for LAT payable amounted to HK$4,097,002,000 as at 31st
December, 2021.

LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation
value, with certain allowable deductions including land costs, borrowing
costs and the relevant property development expenditures, which are the
key inputs in the calculation of the LAT based on the management’s best

estimates.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Our procedures in relation to the provision for LAT included:

o Obtaining an understanding from the management of the Group

about the basis adopted in arriving at the provision for LAT;

e Assessing the Group’s provision for LAT computation prepared by
the management of the Group with reference to relevant rules and

regulations with the assistance of our tax specialists; and

o Checking the financial information, including land costs,
borrowing costs and relevant development expenditures, used
in the calculation of provision for LAT to the Group’s historical

financial data.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.
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o Obrtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Wan Wai Nga.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25th March, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

RYN
fra R R
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 #%2 —F _~—4F+_H =+—H L&

2021 2020
= —EoE
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
R 5T Ry TH#IT
Gross proceeds from operations KB A AR 5&6 787,012 936,303
Revenue A 5 779,066 929,947
Cost of sales P A (102,602) (426,591)
Gross profit B 676,464 503,356
Net gain (loss) on financial assets Y N PR AR 5 2 R B
at fair value through profit or loss ZWss (18 T AE 12,838 (7,070)
Other income FHAB A 7 163,245 235,062
Other gains and losses oAl £ M s 18 8 10,960 16,817
Selling expenses ST (120,368) (143,393)
Administrative expenses 1T HE (129,619) (145,012)
Loss on fair value changes of BEYE N TEHE B R A
investment properties b 7| 15 (3,540) (12,329)
Finance costs il & 2 9 (22,270) (40,716)
587,710 406,715
Share of results of associates i /N e ¥ (552) 2,598
Share of result of a joint venture JEME— R A B £ 1,342 (2,552)
Profit before taxation I i i e Al 10 588,500 406,761
Taxation i IH 12 (297,027) (226,639)
Profit for the year A BV ) 291,473 180,122
Profit for the year attributable to: JEAG AR BV A 40T
Owners of the Company AN FRER AN 283,448 174,993
Non-controlling interests A B P R 2 8,025 5,129
291,473 180,122
Earnings per share (HK cents) BEREELR) (A1) 14
— Basic — HAR 14.38 8.88
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o 1 g B R A v WA B 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 #%£ —F _~—4+_H =+—H L&

2021 2020
TROME DR
HK$000 HK$°000
Ry T
Profit for the year A B Vi ] 291,473 180,122
Other comprehensive income 3L At 2 i W 5
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to HE R E i i E 1w 7
profit or loss: JEH :
Exchange difference arising from translation of: a8 IRy EE A 2 T 2R
— subsidiaries — Mg A w) 401,881 659,685
— a joint venture ——RXEEMRE 6,065 10,378
— associates — B A 284 375
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: S Er BRI E R 7
HH :
Fair value gain on equity instruments at fair value %23 (BT A A 2 I 4R 2
through other comprehensive income JeAR TH 2 A8 FE IR
(net of deferred tax) (RENBRIESERIIH) 35,264 10,814
Other comprehensive income for the year B At A T A 443,494 681,252
Total comprehensive income for the year A B 2 i WA A AR AR 734,967 861,374
Total comprehensive income attributable to: JREAG 2 ThG i 2 SEBR TN T -
Owners of the Company KA FRERFA A 720,714 846,030
Non-controlling interests FEFE 1 S SR 2 14,253 15,344
734,967 861,374
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fai i A5 IR D e

At 31st December, 2021 A —F _——4+_H=+—H

2021 2020
TR R OFRE
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
M EE Tt T
Non-Current Assets eV B A
Fixed assets [ 7 B
— Investment properties —REYE 15 8,598,847 8,311,639
— Property, plant and equipment — W~ MR Kokt 16 229,732 258,202
Goodwill P 18 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets R SR T A 27 - 37,941
Interests in associates R AR 2 HE RS 19 13,962 14,225
Interest in a joint venture =R EEREZ ML 20 183,147 175,740
Club debentures S 515 515
Equity instruments at fair value through $%22-FEFHA AL 2 T #i 2
other comprehensive income AR T H 21 293,452 408,816
Pledged bank deposit HEAPERAT K 35 84,172 218,721
Other receivable HoAth B ISR K 2,361 2,361
9,439,476 9,461,448
Current Assets B E
Properties under development BIRPYIE 17 4,734,530 4,348,666
Properties held for sale rEYE 1,573,112 1,547,246
Trade and other receivables and FESCEE B Bk ~ oAt R AR 3k
prepayments B AR 23(a) 222,781 297,962
Financial assets at fair value through N THERFT AR #5 2 PHES &
profit or loss 22 101,593 90,302
Inventories & 23(b) 3,754 4,212
Pledged bank deposits PR TAE K 35 - 912,755
Bank deposit AT 23(c) 13,490 13,039
Cash and bank balances B M sRAT & R 23(c) 4,445,869 3,711,525
11,095,129 10,925,707
Current Liabilities b /RER
Trade and other payables and accruals — FEAT 5 Z) Bk ~ HA R HEK
e yE % A 23(d) 709,464 732,465
Lease liabilities HEARE 23(e) 7,536 7,645
Contract liabilities ERIAME 23(f) 208,603 46,874
Tax liabilities BiIH A R 4,200,054 4,105,724
Borrowings & 26 29,433 735,263
5,155,090 5,627,971
Net Current Assets i B A 5,940,039 5,297,736
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 48 % & I it B £1 1 15,379,515 14,759,184
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B A A IR DL

At 31st December, 2021 ® —F ——#+ " H=+—H

2021 2020
R TR TR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
R 5T Tt Tt
Capital and Reserves B A B f
Share capital il &S 24 985,512 985,512
Share premium and reserves P8y Vi B % £ 5 12,515,438 11,903,130
Equity attributable to owners AN mIRE R R A NEAG HE 4R
of the Company 13,500,950 12,888,642
Non-controlling interests FE P JBE A8 R 2 337,485 327,732
Total Equity AP £ 13,838,435 13,216,374
Non-Current Liabilities FEvi B £ 08
Other payables At FE A BR AR 23(d) 23,194 12,541
Lease liabilities HEAE 23(e) 4,209 11,745
Borrowings fErak 26 264,900 284,495
Deferred tax liabilities PEIERIH A E 27 1,248,777 1,234,029
1,541,080 1,542,810
15,379,515 14,759,184

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 25th March, 2022 and are signed on

its behalf by:

Hsu Feng
i
Chairman

L

BEMBBECR - F__HF=A"+1
H &8 38 S5 R I vl A E T 3 > Sl el R A
EHAREE

Albert Tong
A
Vice-Chairman

e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
f 1 HE 4 5 )
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 B2 —F _—F+ A =+—HILFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(¢)

The special reserves of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) arose from the difference between the aggregate amount of the
then share capital and share premium account of Tomson Investment
Limited, the former holding company of the Group, and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued pursuant to a scheme of

arrangement in 1989.

Capital redemption reserve arose from repurchase of shares. The amounts

represent the nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

The enterprises expansion reserve is an appropriation from retained
earnings in relation to tax concession granted by the relevant government
authorities. This reserve is only used for the future development or

expansion of that company where concession is granted.

The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation from retained
earnings by subsidiaries of the Company in the Mainland of the People’s
Republic of China (“Mainland China”). In accordance with the Company
Law of the Mainland China, the Mainland China subsidiaries of the
Company are required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax to the SSR
until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of that subsidiary.
The SSR may be converted to increase capital subject to certain restrictions

set out in the Company Law of the Mainland China.

Of the retained earnings of HK$9,405,283,000 (2020:
HK$9,044,400,000), retained earnings of HK$11,013,000 (2020:
HK$9,671,000) and accumulated losses of HK$6,066,000 (2020:
HK$5,514,000) are attributable to a joint venture and associates of the

Group respectively.

Tomson Group Limited 15 B 4 [ A R/ 7]

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

AN m) B LM 7 (s AR ]) 2
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BOEA BR A 7] 2 8 5 A 2 B v 1 M
AR R — L\ JUAE AR IR — T Hh
e B BAT D 2 H{E 2 2250 -

A T ] AR R T [ B TR0 o %S R
I R ] S A S T (B

1> SE R Al A 75 B A B BURF RS T BL
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58 B R R AR R AE 2 N RIE A
B A 3 (T e A 3 ] ) ) BA Jag 2 ) e £ B
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HGoleia®

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 #%£ —F _~—4+_H =+—H L&

2021 2020
—Ro— R
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Tt T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES W
Profit before taxation R B i s A 588,500 406,761
Adjustments for: KLU R
Share of results of associates JEAL W A Al 2 34 552 (2,598)
Share of result of a joint venture FEIE—REERFEZ ES (1,342) 2,552
Interest expenses B B 3 22,270 40,716
Depreciation of property, plant and U BN N S E

equipment 42,346 45,044
Net impairment losses on trade and (F ) fERR B E &) Rk I

other receivables (reversed) recognised HoAth B ISR X 2 WEL S 48 15 AR (182) 822
Net (gain) loss on disposal/write off of WSS ZE - WS s 2

property, plant and equipment (Ui i ) R 15 5% (516) 4,854
Loss on fair value changes of investment WEWENTEHEB R EA 2

properties JE18 3,540 12,329
(Gain) loss on fair value changes of N ERT AR 2 M &=

financial assets at fair value through INPESE R RE AR 2 (fas )

profit or loss IR (5,345) 13,426
Interest income FLEMA (76,865) (165,267)
Dividends from equity instruments B PERF A A A T i 4R 2

at fair value through other AR TH 2 BB A

comprehensive income (23,209) (26,046)
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEEE  SEE AT

in working capital 549,749 332,593
Decrease in properties held for sale CALIES %) 12,435 368,537
(Increase) decrease in trade and other  FEUSCE 2 MRaK ~ HoAth BEMCHR R L

receivables and prepayments FEATRIE (3 m) w8 (9,071) 23,508
Increase in financial assets at fair value &/ T{EFI ARG 2 M EE

through profit or loss a4 (5,946) (103,728)
Decrease in inventories FERAD 603 76
Decrease in trade and other payables AT B 7 B~ HABRE A AR &

and accruals i E H Wb (42,656) (55,920)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities & &) & &0 (3 2) 163,349 (246,879)
Increase in properties under B P SERS N

development (235,468) (70,690)
Cash from operations WEEBELEZHE 432,995 247,497
Income taxes (paid) refunded (ELA5F) VAR ] pr A5 A (349,399) 74,200
NET CASH FROM OPERATING BB EHEEZHETH

ACTIVITIES 83,596 321,697
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BaBlenng

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
:g:#_fqa — ? — R E'E
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T#x THIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BE W
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits ~ #&H L HEAFER1T 475K 1,086,435 260,786
Withdrawal of time deposit with SRS A H =8 H 2L L
original maturity over three months ZE IR - 12,333
Placement of pledged bank deposits B A RATAE K - (134,280)
Placement of time deposit with o R H =08 H LR
original maturity over three months 2 ALK - (13,039)
Additions in investment properties WEEEYE (3,295) (8,654)
Purchase of property, plant and WEEYIZE ~ s Kzt
equipment (6,247) (70,627)
Interest received AR 168,281 76,848
Dividends from equity instruments FE PR R A A 2 i A 2
at fair value through other A T H 2 BBl A
comprehensive income 23,209 26,046
Dividend from a joint venture PR —KEGEREZRE
(net of withholding tax) (B ANBRINAEL) - 15,582
Proceeds on disposal of equity AR A AL 2 T U £
instrument at fair value through A TR 2 g kI8
other comprehensive income - 1,752
Receipt of cancellation price of FEEH M ARAB I N TERTA
cancellation and extinguishment of o 2 i s 2 AR TR
equity instrument at fair value through Firifc i 2 s S 1E
other comprehensive income 166,190 -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant  HEWZE - M7 K2
and equipment REE e 1,180 57
(Advance to) repayment from —RIBE A F) 2 (BGK) 12K
an associate ) 7
NET CASH FROM INVESTING BB B 2 B
ACTIVITIES 1,435,748 166,811

Tomson Group Limited 15 B 4 [ A R/ 7]




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HaBleiEg

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
SR CERTRAF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
R 5T Tt T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il ¥ % B
New borrowings raised A K 30 - 216,813
Repayment of borrowings B K 30 (735,733) (509,010)
Interest paid EATFLE 30 (23,406) (42,381)
Cash dividend paid ST HL 4R (108,4006) (216,813)
Repayment of lease liabilities BRAEAR (7,645) (7,958)
Dividend paid to non-controlling EAT IR IR AR R
shareholder (4,500) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING &% 3% By in il 2 Bl &35 5
ACTIVITIES (879,690) (559,349)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN B4 KB4 %iHE H T8
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 34 m (3%4>) 639,654 (70,841)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #—H —HzZB4& Rk
AT 1ST JANUARY H&EMEH 3,711,525 3,654,035
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE 4] [ [ 3 5 B =~ 5%
RATE CHANGES 94,690 128,331
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A +H=1+—HZBHE&K
AT 31ST DECEMBER, REFHEH -
represented by cash and bank balances B/ Bi 4 M SR1T45 % 4,445,869 3,711,525
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are

disclosed in the Corporate Information of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Group for the year were property
development and investment, hospitality and leisure business,
securities trading, as well as operation of and investment in media

and entertainment business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD?”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on
or after Ist January, 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent

Concessions

Amendments to HKERS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKAS 39, HKERS 7, Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKERS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the
International Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations
Committee (the “Committee”) of the International Accounting
Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified the costs an
entity should include as “estimated costs necessary to make the

sale” when determining the net realisable value of inventories.

Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 A 205 e Wi

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 #%2 —F _~—4F+_H =+—H L&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKEFRSs in the current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

Impacts on application of the agenda decision of
the Committee — Cost necessary to sell inventories
(HKAS 2 “Inventories™)

The Group’s accounting policy prior to the Committee’s agenda
decision was to determine the net realisable value of inventories
taking into consideration incremental costs only. Upon application
of the Committee’s agenda decision, the Group changed its
accounting policy to determine the net realisable value of
inventories taking into consideration both incremental costs and
other cost necessary to sell inventories. The new accounting policy

has been applied retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda decision has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and

performance.

VB F T T A 8 B 5 i o
L ) B HAB RT A (42)

BT SO E AL > TR AR A E
(BB s MR B RT A B AR
VB 7 74 S0 ] e 208 A 300 ] 2 B s R 90 B
RE I/ S5 A a B R T
PRI R

M1 3% 7% 7 2 A ek —
94/ 0 O A RS (7
G VS 285 115 |) 2

TER% T B G IR R ek 2 AT - A SE
B IR R TE e A B T S R R
R R A - BAZZ B EH
AR PR R o AN B ok Sl E A7 T
SEBLFHEM B FHBOR > W R 8 &
JAS 2 5 B A7 P s B HAB AR < SR
BRIECRC BB -

M2 B 2 aliE el A R Y
BAS AR L B 2 B 7 0 TR S 2B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new HKFRS and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKERS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKERS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’
Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture!

COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions beyond
30th June, 2021*

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-Current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transacton’

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2023.

determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all above new HKFRS and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements

in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The Directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best

usec.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and
. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. The results of subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss from the date of the Group gains control until the date

when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those

used by the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interest entitling their holders to a proportionate share

of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations of
another entity for which the agreement date is before 1st January,
2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and

liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

From Ist January, 2005 onward, the Group will carry goodwill at

cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is presented

separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the

determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but not

control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the

parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates or joint ventures are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture, less
any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds its interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate
or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payment on behalf of that associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The associate’s and joint venture’s financial statements used for
the application of equity method of accounting are prepared using
uniform accounting policies with the Group for transactions and

events in similar circumstances.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in associates or joint ventures may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. When a group entity
transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits
or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the

relevant associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture and the fair value of any retained
interest, and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interests
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate

or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]

R 3 S i o o B e
FEHREBUOR &)

&mTH

SR I 5 R R R A
7y 4 TR B 2R S0 RT 2T ey e
W TA B EEZ B EE R
by H FEMERERE R B R o H W IS5
B R R T 5 K 00 A (o e
SEZ R N RN 2 B o

AR R I s R AR T T
B M YRR U I B i R SR
1555 R B % P #las st B EAE A
SRS )& #) 2 EIUE 5 BRARER ST -
DRT WS S 3 AT B 5 L S A
T B 1 7 AR 2 52 5y RAS (AL 1%
FEFFA B 1 2 B E BB A
f50) > A 1 YR AR I % LA
BN A %S B R E S B R R
PFE o RO L A FHERF AR Z
S5 A B S R T B A 2 58
Zy A RV i o 5 18 4 R T e RE

B R A AL T w5 s B B B
TR 2 W A S H A T S0 20 1),
WA RABBH L2 J7 ik o B A4
e B i BB A AR
W ] (A ) > Al T H AR
B S A B A 3K (RLAE BT A B S A B
Jr WS BCRE A FSCH PR R 2

38 5y AR Je A 6 15 B3 ) HE e
B 22 U R 2 R TR R (L2 A6 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
[financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity

investment is not held for trading.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified

financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
Sfinancial assets (Continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of

the reporting period following the determination that the asset

is no longer credit-impaired.

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
reserve and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss

on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred

to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
Sfinancial assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at fair value

3. ok B VO o A R 1 e
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St T H 49)
WA & e (4
HMBEEEZ PR EGH ()

(i) F5E B HLL P A A

through other comprehensive income (Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the

cost of the investment.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss includes any dividend or interest

earned on the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
losses (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, pledged bank deposits,
bank deposit and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment is
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables

individually.

For other financial assets, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]

R 3 S i o o B e
FEHREBUOR &)

St T H 49)
WA & e (4
BB 2 e

AR ol AR A 7 s 5 i o Y D 58
ORI SZ IR ARG B AR 2 B (2
175 W B2 5 MRk B A WK ~ W
BTG~ IRARATIER ~ RATHF
KUK ERAT #5865 (i 1 TR Bk 1R
BT E T - NG Bk K
TEA A Hrt B SERT > DL k(5 B

SR SRR 1 B TR R
SERAR BT A T REE A R A 2 TR
WG SEHE - A > 128 HEBES
AR TR it H AR 1208 A A A]
RESEIE B A R A 2 W 2
WEEREE - wIREA R ER A
R EEHRARIELT - WRLEH N 24
FERIER ~ — IRACIR DL L BB i
H 31 2 B R DL SR AR I < 5F
(CHESELE

7S T — AU 1 i B % R
EHFMEEER -

HHALA B BT 5 > AL EFHEA
SF R 1248 H FEAE B R 2k R
fli > BRIEE R BB A E KRS LU
BRI > AR AR B AR A TR
BoEiE o SR RERE AR A TN
B R R > JIRER BB UCHERE DA 3t
PR 2 T REVE SR B B S -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost

or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread or

the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant

decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when the financial instrument is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

95

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined

with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. For
a lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining the ECL is
consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable

in accordance with HKFRS 16.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost

of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
and other receivables and amounts due from associates where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance

account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment reserve is not reclassified to the consolidated statement

of profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded

at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrument is recognised
and deducted directly in share capital for par value and in share
premium for total amount paid in excess of par value. The same
amount recognised in share capital will be transferred from
share premium to capital redemption reserve. No gain or loss
is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits is expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss in the year in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes other than construction
work-in-progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. When the construction is completed and the asset
is available for use, the related cost is transferred to appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment and depreciated in

accordance with the following policy.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant leasehold land classified as right-of-use assets)
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be

transferred directly to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other
than construction work-in-progress less their residual values over

their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year

in which the item is derecognised.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair

values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” under
property, plant and equipment in the consolidated statement of
financial position except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant

and equipment.

Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]

R 3 S i o o B e
FEHREBUOR &)

Y3k ~ W Bkt (4g)

BRIEEE TSN - TR E AT
FRERD. > LM LA 1 o D 4 S e
S PSS R BR R A

Wi ~ JBs Rt A E R A s
RRAE(S 2% Y S AR R AR A
gt fRF o w2 IE H & SO R o 1EBUH
ik R L R T E A AR AT LS (AR 9
TEH 45 B A5 s E i AR B i (E 2 22
BRI & 16 % IH H BUBUOH iR 2 4R
BENFE ARG IRE R -

PR B e R 5 ) A AR 4

7S B L W 6 BN B A R A (2
AR o AT ) ke > &
FRARE A FE B -t B M 5 1Ay 2 TR 3
EERVS Y 0k /N S (= NN R
AL o

TEBE S T 5e 0 WL AT B S sk) E E A
TR o ) R i 1 2 R A TR A
EMBHR IR 25 Y - RS Kk
TR AREE E ] > MBI
B LA PSR BRAD
AU ST T 5 7 O A B s i IR A
BEHET Y R B ai by - BIHY)
SENBUME - s S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of premises that have lease terms of 12 months or less from
the commencement dates and do not contain purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building components,

unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:
o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group is
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to be condition required by the terms and conditions of the

lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease terms.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding

underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and

included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. The lease payments include fixed

payments less any lease incentives receivables.

After the commencement dates of the leases, lease liabilities are

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) when the lease term
has changed, in such case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate
at the date of reassessment. The Group presents leases liabilities
as a separate line item on the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if
the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right
to use one or more underlying assets and the consideration for the
leases increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone
price for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular

contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using

a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for

investment properties measured under fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part
of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided through

forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease

payments from lessees.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as

part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Impairment losses on fixed assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its fixed assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is

estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if

any).

The recoverable amounts of its fixed assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount

of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on fixed assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)

for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero value. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Properties held for sale/
properties under development (current asset)

Except for the leasehold land element which is measured at cost
model in accordance with the accounting policies of right-of-
use assets, properties held for sale/properties under development
(current asset) are stated at the lower of cost/deemed cost and
estimated net realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which
the Group must incur to make the sale. No depreciation charge is
made on the leaschold lands that included in the properties held for
sale/properties under development (current asset). Properties under
development which are intended for sale in the ordinary course of
business upon completion are classified as current assets.

Properties under development are transferred to properties held for
sale upon completion.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to

the customer.

A performance obligation represents a goods or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or

services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of

the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

. the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with

an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to

date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from

customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of

goods or services.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would

not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises sales commissions as an asset if it expects to
recover these costs. The asset so recognised is subsequently charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the Group
transfers to the customer of the relevant goods to which the assets

relate.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (“foreign currencies”) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign

currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
arise except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on disposal or

partial disposal of the Group’s interest in associates/a joint venture.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currencies translation reserves (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate). Such exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operations attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax is not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests in
associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the general
principles set out in HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” (i.e. based on the

expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same

taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised to other comprehensive income, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of share-based payments determined by reference
to the fair value of equity instruments granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase
in share option reserve. If a director or an employee chooses to
exercise options, the related share option reserve is transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the related

share option reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits and
termination benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All the short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits

the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
Directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the certain Group’s
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors of the Company have determined whether the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted and the Group has recognised deferred tax on
changes in fair value of investment properties on the basis that the
deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that will follow from the
manner in which the Group expects at the end of the reporting
period to recover the carrying amount of the investment properties.
Deferred taxation on changes in fair value of investment properties
please refer to Note 27.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumption concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date of reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year.

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the Mainland China. However,
the implementation and settlement of the tax vary amongst
different jurisdictions in various cities in the Mainland China
and Certain subsidiaries of the Group have not finalised its
LAT calculation and payments with local tax authorities in the
Mainland China. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the LAT and its related income tax
provisions. LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive rates of
the appreciation value, with certain allowable deductions including
land costs, borrowing costs and the relevant property development
expenditures, which are the key inputs in the calculation of the
LAT, the Group recognised the LAT based on the management’s
best estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these differences
will have impact on the income tax provisions in the periods in
which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities. The carrying
amount of Group’s LAT provision at 31st December, 2021 was
HK$4,097,002,000 (2020: HK$4,049,949,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31st December, 2021 at their fair values,
details of which are disclosed in Note 15. The fair value of the
investment properties was determined by reference to valuations
conducted on these properties by an independent firm of qualified
professional valuers (the “Valuer”) using investment approach
which is reflective of current market conditions. Property valuation
techniques involve key inputs including reversionary yield, net
rental income derived from existing tenancies and annual unit
market rentals. This involves making certain assumptions and the

use of estimates in respect of the reversionary yield by the Valuer.

The Group considers these valuations are the best estimates.
Changes to these assumptions may result in changes in the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the changes in fair value reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The carrying amount
of Group’s investment properties at 31st December, 2021 was
HK$8,598,847,000 (2020: HK$8,311,639,000).

Valuation of unlisted equity instruments

Unlisted equity instruments are measured at fair values being
determined based on valuation techniques that involve unobservable
inputs with reference to the market capitalisation of listed entities
in similar industries with consideration of marketability discount
of 25% and adjustment of idle cash. Judgements and estimation
are required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and
the relevant inputs thereof. The Group considers these valuations
are the best estimates. Changes in assumptions relating to these
factors could affect the reported fair values of the instruments. The
carrying amount of Group’s unlisted equity instruments at 31st

December, 2021 was HK$293,452,000 (2020: HK$257,967,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS
AND REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of revenue under the following
headings:
(i) Property investment
—  represents revenue from property management and
rental income
(ii) Property development and trading
—  represents gross revenue received and receivable from
sale of properties
(iii) PVC operations
—  represents the gross revenue from sale of PVC pipes and
fittings
(iv) Leisure
—  represents the income from golf club operations and its
related services
(v) Media and entertainment
—  represents the gross revenue received and receivable

from investment in the production of live entertainment

shows, film distribution and related income

Gross proceeds from operations include the gross proceeds from
sale of and dividend income received and receivable from financial
assets at FVTPL under the business of securities trading, in

addition to the above aggregated revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS 5. REWas AR )

AND REVENUE (Continued)
Revenue and gross proceeds from each type of business consist of BHE IS 2 A T B8 2 AR AR RIS
the following: NANEIA -
2021 2020
SR S
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THsT
Revenue from sale of properties SHEYIHEZ A 435,487 647,698
Revenue from sale of goods SHEE P 2 I - 353
Revenue from rendering of services from = AR BR e R IR T 2
golf club operations A 63,487 42,315
Revenue from property management fee LEX=SLIE I PN 40,723 37,008
Revenue from media and entertainment TR K e S S 2 WA
business 829 3,244
Revenue from contracts with customers REHBEFGHIZEA 540,526 730,618
Revenue from lease payments that are fixed — [& & fHEATUIA 238,540 199,329
Total revenue e A 779,066 929,947
Gross proceeds from sale of and dividend N TEFIABRGEZ MEEEZ
income from financial assets at FVTPL o B A g AR R HL R A 7,946 6,356
Gross proceeds from operations R Wik A 787,012 936,303
The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers are mainly AEMREEFAHZIMATERA
derived from the Mainland China except for revenue from media o B A - AR A R R R e
and entertainment business which are derived in Hong Kong and SEB WA AR T4 2E 88 & B A
certain properties sales derived in Macau as disclosed in Note 6. (UIBF e TP R ) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

5.

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS
AND REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligation for contracts with customers

Revenue from property management fee is recognised over time as
income when the services and facilities are provided. Other revenue
from contracts with customers are recognised at a point in time
when customer obtains control of the distinct goods and services.
For the revenue from sale of properties, the payment term is less

than one year upon signing the sales and purchase agreement.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

Except for the revenue from property management fee, all other
revenue from contracts with customers are contracted for periods of

one year or less.

Contracts for property management services typically have more
than one year non-cancellable term in which the Group bills a fixed

amount each month according to the terms.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are based on
information reported to the chief operating decision makers, the
Executive Directors of the Company, for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment. In addition to those set out
in Note 5(i) to (v), the Group’s operating segments under HKFRS
8 “Operating Segments” include securities trading segment which is

dealing in financial assets at FVTPL.

1 17 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]

5.

28 W g AR WL (4)

g 9akeg a)ii) i s ol

A WS B B Wi 7R e A RS K
SOt R BE R R A« RA KT
B A0 FC A2 A R A S R R
F 2 il BEE % R 255 B I {1 B[] B e
iR o BIREEYEZ A > FFIHIR
Ty PR AT R T el R AR D A —4F

SRR P& R8T A RAL
A2 5 fEL MG

BRok B S8 BB I g A > SR A%
J5 & #IH9 FAh B A IR 3 RT S — 4
DA 95 23] o

Yy SEE PR & B W T 5L —4F DL b
AT HIPR > AR B AR SR s A
B [ 7E AR o

51 JEE R

AR 2 T R 0 R o R
3 L K SERT T AL B AT i) 3 2
RH (AR ATESR) il 2 &
B & 73 o BREFFRESG) Z(v)Ah > A%
P AR AR T P s S o R I D S 8 R
BRI R e BB BRUERE
BEFI AR S 2 B B 2 iS5

HENH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. FHER )
Property
Property  Development PVC Media and Securities
Investment  and Trading ~ Operations Leisure Entertainment Trading Total
ES Rk

B34 Rk BBSE O WNEE  RERE  ERER il
HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
T T T T T T T

2021 Y e
GROSSPROCEEDSFROM A&l

OPERATIONS

- SEGMENT REVENUE - ARRA 279,263 435,487 - 63,487 829 7,946 787,012
RESULTS £
Segment profi (oss) il ) 178676 277287 - 12,892 (622) 12580 480813
Other unallocated income EATFHRRA 173,507
Unallocated expenses zﬁ%ﬁ B (44,340
Finance costs HEER (22,270)

587,710

Share of results of associates il NP (552)
Share of result of ajoine venrure NG —H AL ES 1,342
Profit before taxation BanEAl 588,500
2020 i S <2
GROSSPROCEEDSFROM ~ ## i

OPERATIONS

- SEGMENT REVENUE L LN 236,337 647,698 353 4315 3,244 6,336 936,303
RESULTS £ |
Segment profit (loss) IR (B8 128,969 139,885 (113) (14,749) (3,526) (7350 43,120
Other unallocated income RHATHEA 257,555
Unallocated expenses Tﬂ} 15 (53,244)
Finance costs HEEH (40,716)

406,715

Share of results of associates Al UNGVE S 2,598
Share of result of a joint venture e a8 e Ve (2,552)
Profit before taxation BBt Al 406,761
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is different
from the reported revenue in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. For
details of revenue from each type of business and reconciliation
of segment revenue to the Group’s revenue of HK$779,066,000
(2020: HK$929,947,000), please refer to Note 5.

Segment profit (loss) represents the results by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, directors’ salaries, share
of results of associates and a joint venture, other non-recurring

income and expenses and finance costs.

This is the measure reported to the Executive Directors for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as the chief
operating decision makers review the consolidated financial
position of the Group as a whole to assess their performance. The

management focuses more on the results of the Group.

In October 2020, the Group commenced to liquidate a subsidiary,
which engaged in sale of PVC pipes and fittings and represented
the whole PVC operations segment of the Group. That subsidiary
was dissolved in September 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Other Information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss:

Property
Property Development PVC
Investment  and Trading ~ Operations
S

hREE  RME EBRH
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Tt T T#x

6. IER )
H At & B

AR RIR G 2 SR

)

Mediaand ~ Securities
Leisure Entertainment Trading  Unallocated Total
BRR
kS meEE  WFHE AP it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Fitr Tin Tt it T

2021 I

Depreciation of property, ES BT

plant and equipment ik 7,100 6,119 -
Impairment losses on tade and  HigR (BE1ET ) FE B 5

other receivables recognised TR B AR

(reversed) ya 1iil 7 274 - -
Loss on fair value changes of REMEATHEEG
investment properties v o 3,540 - -

Gain on fair value changes of BATEG ARG
financial assets at FVTPL HHEEATE
BENEL G - - -

2020 e <

Depreciation of property, EN e

plant and equipment i 7,080 9,350 6
Impairment losses on trade and () e 5

other receivables recognised Bt B SRR

(reversed) ba 1] 7 (1,230) - -
Loss on fair value changes of REWENTEEH R
investment properties v 12,329 = =

Loss on fair value changes of BATEGABRE
financial assets at FVTPL MEEEATE
BRI R BR = - -

20,908 - - 8,219 42,346

- (456) - - (182)

- - - - 3,540

- - 5)345 - 5)345

20,298 122 = 8,188 45,044

- 2,052 - - 822

- - = - 12,329

- - 13,426 - 13,426
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31st December, 2021, revenue from two single
customers in property development and trading segment amounted
to HK$224,435,000 and HK$179,729,000 which contributed to
approximately 28.81% and 23.07% respectively, of the Group’s

total revenue.

For the year ended 31st December, 2020, revenue from three single
customers in property development and trading segment amounted
to HK$203,437,000, HK$201,179,000 and HK$182,338,000
which contributed to approximately 21.88%, 21.63% and 19.61%
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue.

Geographical Information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the
location of the operations and information about its non-current
assets (excluding deferred tax assets, amounts due from associates
and a joint venture, club debentures, other receivable, pledged
bank deposits and equity instruments at FVTOCI) by geographical

location of the assets are detailed below:

6. HEER )

HEEEEP ZER

@@47# F+H=+—HIL4E
B A2 T K G AR T
i —% 5 Z WA 5 Al £5224,435,000
T 5 179,729,000%6 7T > 4 Fl Ak A4
M 2 A B R %28.81% 5% 23.07% ©

B2 X -FTF+H=1+—HIF
BE > iR R R E A BPAR A =
i —%F 2 WA 5 Al £5203,437,000
#EIT > 201,179,000%% 7T %% 182,338,000
W0 > AL AL 2 AU A B R
21.88% ~ 21.63%/19.61% °

il I8 53 TR

LR 2 B LA T B R~ s
TP o

f%%%iﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%@?ﬁ EE-pl e

Z WA B A E IR BB R A B
WL E A (LA 1R S Bl TH
B A m k- R e ERER - g
% ~ HAMMEUCRK ~ HRAPERAT A7 3K
BB ~FAEREA LA T U i 2 JBEAS
TR ERFE T

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

HEEIEFZBA FETR B
2021 2020 2021 2020
:g:—ﬂﬁ #?#?E :g:—ﬁi #?#?fﬁ
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tl T 0 T T T
Hong Kong it 829 3,244 52,733 59,629
Macau T 19,949 33,840 - =
The Mainland China FH ] A 758,288 892,863 8,996,229 8,722,171
779,066 929,947 9,048,962 8,781,800

Analysis of Group’s revenue by each type of business is set out in A A ] 25 B SE S WA 2 o i A B
Note 5. kS o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME 7. HAGBA
2021 2020
SR TERTEAE
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt Tt
Other income included: HAb YA GLE -
Interest income FE A 76,865 165,267
Dividends from equity instruments N PR A A 2 T i 4 2
at FVTOCI A TR Z BBl A
— listed — bk - 10,227
— unlisted —JF b 23,209 15,819
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hitas K18
2021 2020
RO R CFUE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt TH#ITT
Net impairment losses on trade and other 8 1m] (RRERR) B WAL ' 2 M S oAt
receivables reversed (recognised) JRE WA B R 2 Uk (e L A 182 (822)
Net gain (loss) on disposal/write off of W EE 2 ~ RS M
property, plant and equipment Z Wtk (K518 48 516 (4,854)
Net exchange gain REE 5o i 4 13 10,262 22,493
10,960 16,817
FINANCE COSTS 9. MEEHM
2021 2020
R TR TRAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Interest on borrowings (EE %G 21,791 40,204
Interest on lease liabilities FHE & R 479 512
22,270 40,716
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B A 5 S P

1 23 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 #% X~ —F+_H=+—H 1EAFERE
10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BB i i A
2021 2020
R4 TR
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt Tt
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BRBLAT G A 2 F0BR
after charging:
Staff costs I= %N 63,487 67,500
Retirement benefits scheme contributions HRARAE AT B 5,182 1,156
Total staff costs (including Directors’ HE T RA (R 45 4)
emoluments) 68,669 68,656
Auditor’s remuneration 12 BRI 4 3,045 2,978
Depreciation of property, plant W3 - R B es
and equipment 42,346 45,044
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses TERR 2 B T 2 AF B A 45,128 367,604
and after crediting: WEFHA :
Gross rental income from investment PEY) 2EF S I A 40
properties 238,540 199,329
Less: direct operating expenses from B FERNEERSKRAZ
investment properties that generated RS- L/E VK-
rental income during the year B2 (27,105) (19,410)
Net rental income from investment BEYEM S WA T
properties 211,435 179,919




EMOLUMENTS

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11.

The emoluments paid or payable to Directors of the Company as

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

55 KR B M

EATEEN T AL FEE 2 ME

follows: h
Salaries,
allowances  Employer’s
and other contribution
benefits  to pension Total
Fees (Note (i) scheme emoluments
He W WEZ
B HoAb#E Al NG
Name of Director HHEA e (Bt @) ik il 4 4%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T Tt
2021 R
Executive Directors HiTER
Madam Hsu Feng G
(Managing Director) (EFALH) - 15,155 - 15,155
Mr Albert Tong o FRSEE - 3,720 18 3,738
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles R s - 8,216 18 8,234
Independent Non-Executive B ERTES
Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar sRIETHEE 174 - - 174
Mr Lee Chan Fai BB 174 - - 174
Mr Sean S ] Wang EHRSA 174 - - 174
522 27,091 36 27,649
2020 TR T
Executive Directors T ES
Madam Hsu Feng r Wt
(Managing Director) (HE AL — 14,875 = 14,875
Mr Albert Tong B FIR etk - 3,704 18 3,722
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles LR — 8,228 18 8,246
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi (retired) s oA (14T = 2,384 = 2,384
Independent Non-Executive B IR E S
Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar IR T 171 — - 171
Mr Lee Chan Fai ZERAE S e 170 — — 170
Mr Sean S ] Wang EAR%eA 170 - — 170
511 29,191 36 29,738
Note (i): Other benefits include the market rentals of directors’ Mata) - HEMEA S RE L L 5

quarters occupied by Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles as their residence.

TR et &g ¥ 5 S E fE AR
MEFET TS E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. EFLIEENS )

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No Director waived any emoluments for both years.

There has been no inducement for Directors to join the Group or

compensation for the loss of office for both years.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Group. The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments

shown above were their remuneration as Directors of the Company.

Senior management only comprises the Executive Directors
listed above, so no separate disclosure for remuneration of senior

management is presented.

During the year, the five highest paid individuals of the Group
included three (2020: four) Executive Directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emolument of the
remaining two (2020: one) highest paid fell within the band from
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 are as follows:

A TR 18] 4 JBE 1A B 08 S i 5 A £ T

é‘z\o

T T 1 A O S i A A 4 )
R AT o] 5% i = O 2 3 A o7 42 {3t
LA -

R AT 2 < S A B
A B2 ) 5 T 4 3t A A 5 i S A o
A ST AT S 2 P R 1S
PEALAS LN W FE 2 A A -

AR AT RN B AL SCHE s 2 AT
O WO RS RE AR
Z 3 o

R ANEE AL AT LA
SR CEF A L) BATESE
W& 2 M4 TR ESCabr sk o fk
WA (T — &) s
M A 1 22 B 4 A ~F 1,000,000 #5 7T &
1,500,000 e E > #EIEW T ¢

2021 2020

TR AR R R

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt Tt

Salaries, allowances and other benefits B EA M A AR A 2,478 1,451
Retirement benefits scheme contributions FEYY | o 36 18
2,514 1,469

1 25 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

12. TAXATION 12. BiIH
2021 2020
TR R COFAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T THTT
The charge (credit) comprises: S (K R) B EE
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax R B A AR SE TR BL
(“EIT”) 132,544 122,357
Mainland China LAT H B8] A b - 14 (R 198,781 301,892
Macau Complementary Tax WP P A L 820 1,459
Dividend withholding tax JBe AL 3,659 820
Overprovision in prior years AR AF B R AR
— Mainland China EIT — v 3 A b A SE T A A (35,658) (5,028)
— Macau Complementary Tax — P TS SR - (500)
— Dividend withholding tax — R B FnEmt - (42,536)
300,146 378,464
Deferred tax credit (Note 27) RS TR e (B 5E27) (3,119) (151,825)
Total tax charges for the year 4 B IE BA SRR 297,027 226,639

The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%). 7 #5 #l BT 2 Bl R £516.5% (—&F —

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made since the %4 : 16.5%) EEBA}E A v A EH 7R R

assessable profit is wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward — TH 5 8 2 HHE S ( =& —F4F « 45 4 lf #E

(2020: there was no assessable profit for the year). JRE R B s ) ) > R ULl 0 27 5 v R A5 B AR
4

The Macau Complementary Tax is levied at 12% (2020: 12%) on AR R R P BT A5 Al T AL TS DA RERR B A 2
the taxable income for the year. 12% (2 " FRAF 1 129) 0K -

The income tax rate of the subsidiaries in the Mainland China is  7E " B [A 3t 2 Kﬁ}%/\ A TS AL AL R 55 25%
25% (2020: 25%). (ZFFA 1 25%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

12. TAXATION (Continued)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

12. B (41

AR S B AR A HE 25 R 2 B AR A
ZHIEWMT

2021 2020
R D CF4E
HK$’000 HK$000
T#n THIT
Profit before taxation (excluding share of R BRI G ) (B35 AL Wk

results of associates and a joint venture) AR R—REEMFEZER) 587,710 406,715
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% & & LT AF BB % 25% (—F —

(2020: 25%) (Note) FTAE 1 25%) WA Z BUH (ff7t) 146,928 101,679
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR BLIE 18 2 B e 2 3,387 1,169
Tax effect of expenses that are not 7S S IR AL Y B AS ] MR

deductible in determining taxable profit B S 2 BB s 28 38,652 20,138
Tax effect of income that is not assessable 7 A IR LA Ve A IR B ZELAE LB

in determining taxable profit e A 22 B A5 5 22 (6,054) (17,919)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B I S Hil R iR 2 B TE s 18

recognised (2,698) -
Effect of tax rate in different jurisdiction ANTR] B M [ 2 o 2 202 (539)
Overprovision of income taxes in prior years #8{E4F & Fr 158 BH 1 (35,658) (48,064)
Effect on Mainland China LAT H I A 3t b (B 2 148,609 169,355
Dividend withholding tax Ji S Fnamt 3,659 820
Tax charges for the year SEREBIIA B S 297,027 226,639

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 27.
Note:

The domestic income tax rate is the income tax rate of the jurisdiction

where the major operations of the Group are based.

1 27 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]

HESEBLIA 2 G EAR RO Bt k27

it

LT A BB Ty A AR I T S T R
Z FERE N 2 P BLBLA o



13.

14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

DIVIDEND 13. iR &
In 2021, a dividend of approximately HK$108,406,000 (2020: REFE - FRCRMEE - -F
HK$216,813,000) in aggregate was paid to shareholders in respect FrZA=t—HIEFEZ P HRE
of the interim dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2020 (CZEFEEF BRI E -F— L
(2020: interim dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2019). fﬁ + “H=1+—HIFFEEZ R
B) A 3L49108,406,000% 0 (—F —F
F 1 216,813,000%70) TR ©
Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the Directors have AR > EREREE X
declared payment of an interim dividend of 5.50 HK cents per A+ ZA=+—H JJ:fﬁF"FZEF‘E;ﬁ
share (2020: 5.50 HK cents per share) amounting to approximately J BB 5. 50 Al (2 AR
HK$108,406,000 (2020: HK$108,406,000) for the year ended B 5.50 W All) - S EEA S 108,406,000
31st December, 2021. WOt (= F ZFA4E ¢ 108,406,000 ¥
Jo) °
EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. #F &
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the AN EHERS A N A B B A 2 )
owners of the Company is based on the following data: TR EREHA
2021 2020
. a2 R A
HK$’000 HK$°000
R Tt
Earnings B
Profit for the year attributable to owners N AR E A I A B A 2
of the Company for the purposes of AN I RE 2 R A A RE A i )
basic earnings per share 283,448 174,993
Number of shares et B H
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AT AR I SE A B | 2 4 st
for the purpose of basic earnings per share JIHET- 28 1,971,025,125 1,971,025,125
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there was no potential 7 R 4 B 1 SR A St 0 R AT
ordinary share in issue during both years. HOI 4 2 51 Uﬁﬂx%%Tﬁﬁﬂ S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. &Y
2021 2020
SR TERTEAE
HK$’000 HK$°000

Tt Tt
AT FAIR VALUE 2P
At 1st January w—H—H 8,311,639 7,846,533
Additions NE 3,295 8,654
Loss on fair value changes NTAE S B R EE A 2 1R (3,540) (12,329)
Exchange adjustments REE 51, 4] 2% 287,453 468,781
At 31st December BRt+=H=+—H 8,598,847 8,311,639

The Group’s investment properties are held outside Hong Kong

and are held under operating leases.
The fair value hierarchy of investment properties is Level 3.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st
December, 2021 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
as at that date carried out by the Valuer not connected with the
Group. The valuation was arrived by capitalising the net rental
income derived from existing tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary income potential of the properties on a recurring
basis. This involves making certain assumptions and the use of
estimates in respect of the reversionary yield by the Valuer. As a
result of the valuation, an unrealised loss on property valuation
of approximately HK$3,540,000 (2020: HK$12,329,000) was
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31st December, 2021.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use

of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the
fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

1 29 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continucd) 15. BEWE @)
The following table shows the valuation techniques used in RN R E BB AT ELZ
determination of the fair values of the investment properties: fhABHA -
Fair value Reversionary yield
A B
Description 2021 2020  Valuation techniques 2021 2020
W SR CRTRE S B ZF°FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THT

Commercial properties Investment approach

— not developed by the Group 361,786 348,506 2.75% 2.75%
[EYjikZES BEHA

—3lf FF AR B
Commercial properties Investment approach

— developed by the Group 1,472,529 1,418,800 6.25% - 8.50%  6.25% — 8.50%
[EYiikZES BET A

—HAEE%E
Residential properties 6,193,279 5,986,249  Investment approach 0.75% 0.75%
(FEat7/ES BETA
Industrial properties 571,253 558,084  Investment approach 6.75% 6.75%
T M BEHA

8,598,847 8,311,639

Notes: W&t -

(i)  The key inputs of investment approach are: (a) reversionary yield; () HEFTKZEEMABIES - F
(b) net rental income derived from existing tenancies; and (c) annual s R s G)RBBEAHEEZM
unit market rental. SULATFEE 5 M (o) ¥ T 354 BEAH

4o

(i)  Reversionary yield takes into account annual unit market rental (i) EEFI AR R E T AT EL ) 2E ) B
and unit market value of the comparable properties and adjustment T 35 4F B AH 4 T B T 5 R
factors for location and other individual factors such as road DA K JUT 7 1 1 5 2 R 2R e ELAth AR A
frontage, size of property and facilities. 2 (AN ER E  ~ WE RN Bk

KAL) o

(iii) The slight increase in the reversionary yield would result in a (i) 78 57 5 28 B S 6k b T BN
significant decrease in fair value, and vice versa. {ERNE T > 2 IR -

(iv)  The increase in net rental income derived from existing tenancies or (iv) B R T A 2 Al AR
annual unit market rental would result in an increase in fair value, FHB AL TG AR B 4 1 Tl S E
and vice versa. WFAE BT > RZIRER o
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for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. W3 ~ W i i

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Construction  equipment
land and Plant and work-in- and motor
buildings  equipment progress vehicles Total
R~ KA
s+ Ui
Btk R Rk e TR B WL okl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T oo T T T
At cost ﬁfhﬁzk
At 1st January, 2020 TR TEAE
*H H 624,085 25,619 4,540 115,727 769,971
Additions NE 73,371 11 = 20,296 93,678
Written off T (24,804) - (4,811) (7,304) (36,919)
Disposals e - (414) - (717) (1,131)
Exchange adjustments T b, 3R 38,060 1,530 271 6,018 45,879
At 31st December, 2020 A —E EAE
+=A 4+ H 710,712 26,746 - 134,020 871,478
Additions INE - 8 - 6,239 6,247
Written off €] (662) - - (3,245) (3,907)
Disposals & - (1,038) - (2,361) (3,399)
Exchange adjustments R 25,089 925 - 4,166 30,180
At 31st December, 2021 A -E . —4f
+-HA=+—H 735,139 26,641 - 138,819 900,599
Accumulated depreciation 2518 & A
and impairment
At 1st January, 2020 TR TEAE
*H H 457,100 22,268 = 88,228 567,596
Provided for the year A 30,048 228 - 14,768 45,044
Eliminated on written off {8/ RF3 8 (24,804) - — (7,304) (32,108)
Eliminated on disposals /& %5 - (372) - (659) (1,031)
Exchange adjustments T b, o 28,014 1,330 = 4,431 33,775
At 31st December, 2020 A —E EAE
+=A ;Jr H 490,358 23,454 - 99,464 613,276
Provided for the year GRINE 3 31,692 211 - 10,443 42,346
Eliminated on written off s FF 366 (662) - - (2,920) (3,582)
Eliminated on disposals ek - (934) - (2,126) (3,060)
Exchange adjustments I 3¢, i 2 18,015 811 - 3,061 21,887
At 31st December, 2021 A -E . —4F
+Z-A=+—H 539,403 23,542 - 107,922 670,867
Carrying values ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
At 31st December, 2021 A FE . —4F
+Z-A=+—H 195,736 3,099 - 30,897 229,732
At 31st December, 2020 TR
+ H=1t—H 220,354 3,292 — 34,556 258,202
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W3 ~ W Bak s (4)

(Continued)

The Group’s leasehold land is situated outside Hong Kong. AL [ 2 A L A IR S Ab

Depreciation of the above property, plant and equipment except PRTERE LAELISL » Bl - E K

for construction work-in-progress, is provided to their cost less aA o HAL EH AT AR > AR

residual values over their estimated useful lives by equal annual AR 1Y SO A R (E 0 B R I

instalments at the following rates per annum: B FERWT -

Leasehold land and 2% to 4% or over the terms of the HE L T 2% % 4%50H B
buildings relevant leases, whichever is the THE 2 4411

shorter (AR JE & B
%)

Plant and equipment 9% to 13% W75 K rA 9% % 13%

Furniture, fixtures and 18% to 40% AR ~ FeE B 18%%40%
equipment and B &R

motor vehicles

The Group as lessee A 52 [ 1 25 R AL
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and £ i HE & 2 (H A3 ~ W5 I
equipment) i)
Leasehold Leasehold
lands buildings Total
L 3 e ik
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Ry RPN
As at 31st December, 2021 W _E——H+_"H
=+—H
Carrying amount R THT {EL 12,336 11,816 24,152
As at 31st December, 2020 W ECFE A
=+—H
Carrying amount W Tl E 17,855 19,610 37,465

For the year ended 31st December, #Z% _—F _—4+_H
2021 =+—HIL4FE
Depreciation charge PRI 6,296 7,794 14,090

For the year ended 31st December, #% % %4+ H
2020 =t+—HIEFRE
Depreciation charge PrEEpasC 6,037 7,739 13,776
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W3 ~ W Bak s (4)

(Continued)
The Gl‘Ollp as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and
equipment) (Continued)

ASE M1 R R BN ()

o O RES 2 (G A ZE ~ W5 &
W) (4F)

2021 2020

I =t

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt Tt

Total cash outflow for leases FHEZ B A% 8,124 8,470
Addition to right-of-use assets B RS E - 23,051

For both years, the Group leases office and director’s quarter for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms from
one to three years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
with different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for

which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$11,745,000 (2020:
HK$19,390,000) were recognised with related right-of-use assets
of HK$11,816,000 (2020: HK$19,610,000) as at 31st December,
2021. The lease agreements did not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that were held by the
lessors. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

1 33 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]
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17.

18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 17. i
2021 2020
TR AR B CEUE
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt Tt
At st January, at cost A—H—H > A 4,348,666 3,388,166
Additions INE 235,468 70,690
Transfer from deposit paid for land use right R 5 b R BT & - 391,039
Transfer from prepayment (Note 23(a)) HHEL 8 AT EOH (B 5E23(a)) - 296,349
Exchange adjustments B b, e % 150,396 202,422
At 31st December, at cost BT+ ZH=1—H » A 4,734,530 4,348,666

Properties under development under current assets of approximately
HK$4,734,530,000 (2020: HK$4,348,666,000) are not expected
to be completed within twelve months from the end of reporting

period.

During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the real estate
ownership certificates of the land use rights of land lots located
in Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the Mainland China had
been obtained, therefore the deposit paid for land use rights of
HK$391,039,000 was reclassified to properties under development.
Details are disclosed in Note 34(a).

ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ%%%¢%%%
4,734,530,000 # JC ( = &F ZF 4 ¢
w@mmm%m,ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ%
WIS 8 H N TERL -

ERE_FRFE++ A =+—HIE
AEREIN > LA AP B A b VT I AR
5 2 3 2+ Hb A5 P R 2 A T
EAEEAS - it AR EAET S
391,039,000 7T B B B /0 JH 2 9% e o
W o FEE R34 P HEER -

GOODWILL 18. P&
HK$°000
T#n
Cost and carrying value AR % S T
At st January, 2020, 31st December, 2020 JA-F _F4AFE—H—H » “F-FF+H
and 31st December, 2021 = t—HEA=F -+ -HA=1+—H 33,288

Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit of a wholly owned
subsidiary which is engaged in property development and trading

activities.

During the years ended 31st December, 2021 and 2020,
the management of the Group determined that there was no

impairment of the cash-generating unit containing goodwill.

BRI E — R EE W E A RN B &

FEAE B - RZ A RIS SE R R L
B H -

=t HEEE $%@ ﬁ@mﬁ
Slfr 48 35 < A B (S P EHRUE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

18.

19.

GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit was measured
based on fair value less costs to disposal calculation by reference
to observable market price using market comparable approach
for similar properties, adjusted for location and other individual
factors such as road frontage and size. It was determined by the
management’s past experience, based on the estimated gross profit
from selling of properties, taking into the consideration prevailing

market price.

18.

T2 (1)

B A A A T i ] B AR AT
LTI S5 FE AR R (DA 3 LA T 355 L
EAEZE o T TE S HAR AR A R 3R
(B P2 B B HR /) AR R AR DAY
PR B AR R R R o H
PR R A AL B UE o AR S
WTERFBAMFHR > wF RE R TE -

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. BB A w] Z Bt
2021 2020
TR AR B CEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt Tt
Cost of unlisted investments in associates A IE TR R 2 A AR 8,356 7,071
Share of post-acquisition losses, net of FEAL IS iR 4R > 2L 4IBR
dividend received B i B (6,066) (5,514)
Exchange difference arising from translation W T N A R EE AR 22
of associates e b0, 2= %R 2,171 1,887
4,461 3,444
Amounts due from associates =NV 9,501 10,781
13,962 14,225
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free and A8 N A KGR T ISR ~ G B S JEE ]
have no fixed repayment terms. FE 4 23 o
In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the amounts due REHTL > BEARKHAE

from associates will not be repayable within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period and accordingly, the amounts have
been classified as non-current assets. The amount of HK$1,285,000

was capitalised as investment in an associate.

Details of principal associates at 31st December, 2021 are included
in Note 38.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. Wi 2 w) Z R i (42)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s AR A A g 8 ol B R 2 W A
associates that are not individually material is set out below. The A 1 BB R RN IR o AR B
summarised financial information below represents amounts shown W& REE T 48 B N AR IR I
in the associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance with Vo 765 s YA ) ) A S ) B 5 R BT
HKERS:s. B o
The associates are accounted for using the equity method in these KR P R B 2w AR 7 1
consolidated financial statements. N

2021 2020
RO AE DR
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt TH T
Total assets L 39,626 40,383
Total liabilities maH (32,839) (35,216)
Net assets FEE 6,787 5,167
Group’s share of associates’ net assets A48 [ EAL B A F 2 TR E 4,461 3,444
Revenue A 6,714 5,788
(Loss) profit for the year R (1) 6 A (2,001) 9,638
Other comprehensive income oA 2 i 4 961 1,136
Group’s share of associates’ (loss) profit ALE B4 AL I A R 2
for the year (JE518) i A1l (552) 2,598
Group’s share of associates’” other AL [ A R REAE B A R 2
comprehensive income for the year A 4 T A A 284 375
Group’s share of associates’ total ALE (B4 AL W A R 2
comprehensive (expense) income A TH) (BA 32 ) Wt s SE AR
for the year (268) 2,973
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 20. R KA ELEZ R
2021 2020
TR AR R CRUE
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFis T

B EHEEREL

Cost of unlisted investments in

a joint venture & A 130,185 130,185
Share of post-acquisition profits, net of JREAG AR v A - T ATER
dividend received Bz B 11,013 9,671
Exchange difference arising from translation WE—REENERFELEZ
of a joint venture [ifE b0, 25 H 41,436 35,371
182,634 175,227
Amount due from a joint venture —REELERK 513 513
183,147 175,740

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, interest free —REEAZER BRI ~ B K&
and has no fixed repayment terms. e o] 7 2 O o

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the amount due ARNFEERS  —REERERK
from a joint venture will not be repayable within twelve months of AR B A R IR T AR AR
the end of the reporting period and accordingly, the amount has 2o L s EE AR B E
been classified as non-current assets. E o

Details of a joint venture at 31st December, 2021 are included in B oEFE A T —HR—F

Note 38.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s joint
venture is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) ~ 20. R—KEEREZRER )

Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd. g SR YL % B KT A R 2 )
2021 2020
=g —EoaE
HK$000 HK$°000
T T
Current assets T A 329,356 313,632
Non-current assets BN EE 74,645 82,336
Current liabilities s A fE 38,733 45,515
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: bt e R B e A R AT
2021 2020
g5 —E-FH
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt TH T
Cash and cash equivalents Bl MBS EIEE 308,680 295,345
Current financial liabilities (excluding B A ORE ST
trade and other payable and accruals) B MR~ EoAth BEAT IR R K
TR E ) 661 406
Revenue A 115,911 92,646
Profit (loss) for the year A ] (Es1E) 2,684 (5,104)
Other comprehensive income for the year AR HA A T i AR 12,131 20,755
Total comprehensive income for the year AR A T i AR AR AR 14,815 15,651
Dividend received from a joint venture W —REEREZRE - 16,402
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 Bz

— e —

T

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd. (Continued)

The above profit for the year includes the following:

20.

—E+H=+—H ILFEE

R—REBEREZHELR )

b BT BRI A BR 2 ]

(%)

At A P A LA R S AT

2021 2020

—Boap CERCRE

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt THIT

Depreciation e 2,191 8,846
Interest income B A 9,547 9,439
Income tax credit Fr S ALK - 67

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to

A P BRI M B R 5 P S R

MRS 2 & B R A IRT(HZ

the carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture recognised

in the consolidated financial statements: HHR
2021 2020
RO RO
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt TH#sIT
Net assets FEE 365,268 350,453

Proportion of the Group’s AR ] 2 AT HERE i EE A

ownership interest 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AAE EIRE 45 2 MR (E 182,634 175,227
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE

21. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT

5l

21.

B £ BV 055 e A P

“EF A= HIREE

O PAE wE A At 4 1w 23

FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER ZBEARTH
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2021 2020
SR TR
HK$000 HK$’000
R T
Equity instruments at FEVTOCI (Note (7)): Fo N AR A A A2 T RR 2
A TH (M 7E@) -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong AW LT 2 AR RS SR
(Note (ii)) (ML i) - 150,849
Unlisted equity investment (Note (iii)) IE b T AT & (M 7 i) ) 293,452 257,967
293,452 408,816

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The above equity investments are not held for trading, instead,
they are held for long-term strategic purposes. The Directors of
the Company have elected to designate these investments in equity
instruments as at FVTOCI.

The Group held 9.80% equity interest in Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (“RHL”), a then listed company in Hong Kong, as equity
instrument at FVTOCI. The privatisation of RHL by way of a
scheme of arrangement under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
became effective on 19th August, 2021. The RHL shares held by
the Group were cancelled and extinguished at a cancellation price
of HK$0.65 per share and cash in aggregate of HK$166.19 million
was paid to the Group.

The unlisted equity investment represent investment in private
entities incorporated in the Mainland China mainly engaging
in property investment business. The valuation techniques and
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value is set out in

Note 29(c).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL represented equity securities held for

trading which are listed in Hong Kong,.

O]

(iii)

bl A B I AR o TR
FERIPRIEER - ARFEHD
PR % 5 BUE I R A PR
AF At T R 2 A TR

SR R A ) ] 48 E A BR 2] (1]
W —FEREA A BT 2 A )
29.80%ME %5 > DAME & 4% A P E R
AFAh 2 il g 2 AR T H o fi4#
B s CA R ) LA 31 22 By =t
JIMFA AL B =& = — 4 )\ H
TIUH AL o ALEE AT 2 )1
By E W RE Bl M A A > S 1 A B
$y0.65% TC M AL H BRI &G
F£4)166,190,000 7T °

e _E T A 15 2 B A B A
SR B SE K AR S ) SE AR S
HIRANARSE o 2 AFHET R Z
il (B B Al e A B RE29 (<)

22. A HEE AR 2 W5
2903

HAHERI AR SR 2 B B E TR
LW 2 B BRAE SR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

23. NET CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Trade and other receivables and prepayments

The general credit term of the Group given to trade
customers is 60 days. A longer credit period may be
granted to customers with long business relationship. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

receivables to minimise credit risk.

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables, net of allowance for credit losses and
their aged analysis based on invoice date as at the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

23. B & A
() MW 5 Mok ~ At RNk

Wik I P R IE

AEBGTHEIEFZ—K
FEEMAENTH o AERSE
HTARMEBRBRAZIEFEK
RZEEM o A4 [ & £ a
R AT Y JEE A AR A s B B 22 DA
WARAE SR b -

Tﬂﬁllﬁl%’%ﬁ%*” JH A JE W MR

BT R Lﬁ[ﬂ@%ﬁﬂﬁlé’%
EE,TA E RNy RSt )
FOR R I ARAR R 9% 5 EI,H;HZ
HRES AT T

2021 2020

SR TR TEAE

HK$°000 HK$°000

T#T T

0 — 3 months TR ={AH 364 52

Movement in the allowance for credit losses on trade

WK B 5 B ok 2 A5 B Ml 1R 48 A
)

receivables:

2021 2020

SR TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt Tt

Balance at beginning of the year FAGE AR 4,832 2,715
Impairment losses recognised B R 2 WE S E 92 2,053
Impairment losses reversed 43 ) 2 WAE (613) (45)
Exchange adjustments BEE 51, i % 62 109
Balance at end of the year LR 4,373 4,832

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are set
out in Note 29(b).

Included in the other receivables and prepayments of

HK$48,086,000 (2020: HK$46,479,000) related to prepaid

sale tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE

23. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Trade and other receivables and prepayments
(Continued)

During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the real estate
ownership certificates of the property project had been
obtained as disclosed in Note 17, therefore the prepayment
of HK$296,349,000 related to the development cost was
reclassified to properties under development.

B £ BV 055 e A P

“EF A= HIREE

23. TiBh & R E )

(a)

W W 0 3 Mk ~ LA R ML
ARk B TR sk I (47)

AR EE 17 PR BE F
“EEY T HZF—HIEFEE
N WEEHZZ ABERED
KEHUAS > B EE R AR A B 2
TE 15+ 7K T8 296,349,000 # JC £ F

BT R B R o
Inventories b) 78
Details of inventories are as follows: FEBUT -
2021 2020
S
HK$°000 HK$000
Tt THIT
Packaging materials and accessories 0 281 B} I e 44 3,754 4212
Bank deposit and cash and bank balances (o) SRATF DR & K iAT
ik

Bank deposit comprised the time deposit with an original
maturity over three months.

Included in cash and bank balances are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entities to which they relate:

AT AR B B =18 A
LB E A7

TEH & R MATRBR A > ABHE
MR B

2021 2020

SECE CRORE

HK$’000 HK$°000

Tt T

United States Dollars (“USD”) Ein 57,399 57,577
Renminbi (‘RMB”) N 19,002 45,846

Details of impairment assessment of bank deposit and bank
balances are set out in Note 29(b).

SRATAF AR LA R SRAT &6 R 2 Wl (E
AT A R O M EE29(b)
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£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

23. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 23. HiBhE R )
(d) Trade and other payables and accruals (d) FEAT® 5 MR - HAb A
MRk M TR 32 2 H
Included in trade and other payables and accruals are trade TEREAT B 5 HRAR - FC At B A R
payables and their aged analysis based on invoice date as at AR RN EAE 5
the end of the reporting period is as follows: MR > HOA B R AR R 9 R
H 32 BRI AT an T
2021 2020
TR B COEE
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt TH#sIT
0 — 3 months Z 2 =EH 24,929 8,533
4 — 6 months IEVAN iP5 83 181
7 — 12 months tE+2MA 38 485
Over 1 year —HPE 84,635 107,131
109,685 116,330
The credit period on purchases is 90 days. The Group has BRZEEHAEILT R - A%
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all I L ) AT B 5 L e A PR BB SR DA
payables are settled within the credit timeframe. il £ BT A B A R 3K 34 A A 0 4
B o
Included in the other payables and accruals of HK$275,941,000 H Ath B ASF B R K TE 4R O
(2020: HK$268,926,000) and HK$177,959,000 (2020: B 4% 275,941,000 # 7T ( —~F —
HK$172,011,000) related to the refundable deposit for golf EAE 1 268,926,000 {% 7T ) K
course and accrued land use tax respectively. 177,959,0005 7T ( —&F — T4 -
172,011,000 7T) J3 73 5l 45 Bl 55
R BRI 2 AR R M e T AR
T el ARG
Other payables of HK$80,838,000 (2020: HK$69,501,000) At 8 £ HR 3K 80,838,000 #5 7T
represent the refundable rental deposits received and out of (ZF = 1 69,501,000% 7C)
which HK$23,194,000 (2020: HK$12,541,000) is included J3 B AT AR [l A ?” > FH
in non-current other payables. 23,194,000 % 7 ( —F —F4F -
12,541,000 % 75 ) A JF it By
BT HRAK o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE

23. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(e) Lease liabilities

®

B £ BV 055 e A P

“EF A= HIREE

23. TiBh & R E )
() MEEH

2021 2020
—E—F  —xoak
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt TH#E T
Lease liabilities payable: fEft 2 B AfE -
Within one year —4ER 7,536 7,645
Within a period more than one year —4E DL EEAR R
but not exceeding two years Y AE 2 H ] 4,209 7,536
Within a period more than two years WAFE DL E AR A
but not exceeding five years TLAEZ A - 4,209
11,745 19,390

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities was 3.02% (2020: 2.94%) per annum.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities of HK$208,603,000, HK$46,874,000
and HK$277,192,000 represented the deposits received
from sales of properties as at 31st December, 2021, 31st
December, 2020 and 1st January, 2020 respectively.

The Group receives 20% to 30% of the contract value as
deposits from customers when they signed the sale and
purchase agreement. The deposits will be recognised as

revenue when the customer obtains control of the completed

property.

During the year ended 31st December, 2021, the amount of
HK$46,874,000 (2020: HK$277,192,000) included in the
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the year was

recognised as revenue.

®

HEE & 5 IR ) 2 i RE - 35 34
B EA R 53,0208 (CF
FAE 1 2.94JH) o

HHAE

W _F_—Ft+_HA=+—
H —F-FFE+_A=+—
Ak - _FFE—H—H &
% &8 B 9 Rl £ 208,603,000
W T 46,874,000 # JC M
277,192,000 7 > T 8B W)
W Z 5T 4 o

AEEE R K F #E] B E bk iy
I 5% 55 WCHR 5 40 15 {1 2 20% 2
30%1E BT 4 - TSN
F AT E R L) 3 2 ¥ i REIRF
TERR AR o

s E _F -+ A
=+tT—HIEFE > BIEEFY
B # AR 2 58 £ %#146,874,000
oo (ZF ZFA 1 277,192,000
Won) ELHERR A URA -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, JBEA
Number of shares Amount
It ¥ H 2%
2020 2021 2020
R ZECRE R0 CECRE
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tl T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each BTN (H0.507 T 2 @ Ak
Authorised W
— Balance as at 1st January and —R=A—HER+=A
31st December =t—HZ &R 3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid C#iTRCAR
— Balance as at Ist January and —-R—=HA—HER+=A
315t December =t—HZH#8% 1,971,025,125  1,971,025,125 985,512 985,512

25.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on Ist June, 2012 (the “2012 Scheme”).
The 2012 Scheme was set up for the primary purpose to provide
incentives or rewards to selected persons for their contribution to
any member of the Group or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”). Subject
to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by
the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”), the 2012
Scheme shall be valid and effective until 31st May, 2022. After the
expiry of such valid period, no further options will be offered or
granted but in all other respects the provisions of the 2012 Scheme

shall remain in full force and effect.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to (i) any
employee or proposed employee (whether full time or part time)
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity, including
any executive director of these companies; or (ii) any non-
executive director (including independent non-executive director)
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (iii) any
adviser, consultant or customer of or supplier of goods or services

to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (iv) any
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or

any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted under the 2012 Scheme is
141,452,380 shares, representing 10% of the Company’s issued
share capital at the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme, save as
otherwise approved by shareholders of the Company. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each participant
or grantee (including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual
Limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting
with such participant and his or her associates abstaining from

voting.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with
a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant thereof. An option
may be exercised at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not be more than 10 years commencing from
the date of grant of option. Save as determined by the Board and
provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
under the 2012 Scheme. The subscription price per share of the
Company in respect of any option granted under the 2012 Scheme
shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall
determine, save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the option, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option;

and (iii) the nominal value of the shares on the date of offer.

25. JRRESZ AR 5 (4)

AT AT BT 8 RS 2 AT TR A -
e 5 B 16 5% 45 28 A BB A SR
i BUIRBS 2 BERE R 5 B Gv) AN SR FAE
T BB 2 B BT AT BT 3B A 2 AT
R > AR 5 BT AR BB 2 R AT AT
I BB B AT AR (T 2 AR TR A
Ao

BRIE AT HEAR N R Z fiLUE > AR
P T — AFEEH R AT AR 2 B AR
AT 2 AR A A0y Fc o BR AR AR B 2
141,452,380/ » BPA /A EIR R AN %
— AR H BB TR A 10% o
B4 2 WE UK NTER B 5 B
WEE H AR+ R A R R K&
P 2 B P HE (B3 B AT 08 M it R
T8 ) T LAAT (6 G 1T 54T Mol 8 47
AN E A R > G RUERR
JEREE B 2 AR AR B BT 3 2
1% ([ME A EFR 1) o fif 7] 2 B & B AT
P A AR Al b PR 2 B ARERE > RiZE&E
JBERAE RO & bt > A B 22
EYSEN L PN Y T

AR N B % I IO ME 2 H e T
Bl WANE ISR RS 3 g SR A RS
ANF AT TE o AF B R IR 2
FRAB > RIS AS TR (B o i A
A E 2 R 7R S I U T A B R A T
e a2 B ANS B 352 I HE B RS ST
R4 o RPE T B
R ) A P E SRR A B I R
HRE TR E B AL > S MR A A T
fifi 2 BB FRA 0 B e PR - AR —
T — AT B BT AT ] B8 AR ARE T
T o AN AR B I BRI A e
HR R E > MR I AR
AN =FZEmEE © () FaRx i ik
R H (WEREER) EH & H
AR T A Z W8 5 (i) B R
% TRORE B AR 2 H R
2R H AR 2 T 5 By 2 ST
8 5 R (i) A 4 o 4% T IS I HEE H Y
R END
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Under the 2012 Scheme, 4,200,000 shares of the Company were
issued upon exercise of share options in 2013. Under the 2012
Scheme, no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
in 2021. Therefore, the maximum number of shares available
for issue under the 2012 Scheme as at 31st December, 2021 was
137,252,380 representing approximately 6.96% of the Company’s
issued share capital at the end of the reporting period. There are no

outstanding options granted under the 2012 Scheme during 2020

25.

JRAE S A 52 5 41)

95 =% — Z4EFH# > 4,200,000 %
AN BB A T FE — = AR AT o
WERIEEEAT o IRIBE_F— 450
RFE A MEERE - AT
PR BRI IR o Rtk A F
=+ -A=+—H > ®BE_F
— CAEREI R TR T 2 B BE ERR
£5137,252,380/8% > {542 B] A i 1

and 2021. K2 CBITIRAL6.96% ° HRiE—F
— ZAEEHE > RZFZRERE
TR o MRS B R A T R o
26. BORROWINGS 26. 6%
2021 2020
—E o SRR
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt THs T
Short-term borrowings, secured SRR A - 216,813
Current portion of long-term borrowings, B BIRER Ay » A HEAT
secured 29,433 518,450
Total amount due within one year shown RREN B N IR — 4
under current liabilities FIH 2 Ja %R 29,433 735,263
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 2 FE i E) & 1E [ 5l n 2 &5 264,900 284,495
294,333 1,019,758
Carrying amount repayable: JEAE R Z IR -
Within one year —4ER 29,433 735,263
Within a period more than one year —AE DL BB AN A
but not exceeding two years Z AT 29,433 28,450
Within a period more than two year WAE DA F AR A8 A
but not exceeding five years Z ] 88,300 85,348
More than five years AR 147,167 170,697
294,333 1,019,758

The borrowings were secured by assets of the Group as disclosed in

Note 35.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

26. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Borrowings were floating-rate borrowings of HK$294,333,000
(2020: HK$1,019,758,000) which carried interest rates at 5.39%

26. f&#K (4%)

%?A’ﬁ(ﬁjﬁwﬂﬂ K294,333,0004% 70
(CZF T4 019 758,000%57T) -

(2020: 1.53% to 5.39%) per annum. FEMESIJE(ZFFF  1.53EE
5.39J8) o
27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27. WEIEBIA
Accelerated ~ Revaluation Exchange  Dividend
tax of difference ~ withholding Tax
depreciation ~ properties IAT  recognition tax losses Others Total
T TR R TR T &
REE  WEEE WER AR e HEER Hib it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Fitr Fibn Fibn Fitr Fibn Tt Fitn Fibn
Balance as at Ist January, 200~ R_F_FE—H—H
pasi (146756)  (1909,154) 871,281 (47,019) - 7,604 (59467) (1,283,511
(Charge) credit o consolidated A S AR A &
statement of profit or loss (g0 e
for the year ‘ (12,936) 138,747 48,647 - - (8,098) (14,579) 151,825
Credit o other comprehensive ~  AFMBATHRX
expense - - - - = = 5,402 5,402
Exchange adjustments ExiaE (8768) (102909 48486 (2810) - 454 (427 (©9804)
Balance as at 31st December, R_ZFE+H
2020 =R (168,460) (18733160 968414  (49,829) - - (72897)  (1,196,088)
(Charge) credit o consolidated ARG AR K
statement of profit or loss (1) S el
for the year (13,709) 1,956 3,367 - (1,091) - 12,596 3119
Charge to other comprehensive TS IR XA
expense - - - - - - (6,641) (6,641)
Exchange adjustments B 582 (3573 34418 (1,725) - - (2460 (9,167)
Balance as at 315t December, REZ A
2021 =t-RZ& (187,996)  (1944933) 1,006,199 (51,554) (1,091) - (69,402)  (1,248,777)
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement MBI G EMBEARNEM T » & T8

of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities

have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax

balances for financial reporting purposes:

AEBLIEL T B FLREL TS - LT 2y
LI 4 ) 0 B 04
B

2021 2020

R CEFCFE

HK$°000 HK$°000

T THETT

Deferred tax assets R S o T - 37,941
Deferred tax liabilities RIEBIE AR (1,248,777) (1,234,029)
(1,248,777) (1,196,088)
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28.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31st December, 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$478.29 million (2020: HK$499.37 million) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such losses for both years due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of HK$40.46 million (2020: HK$75.09 million) which will expire

within five years. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31st December, 2021, except the amount of distributable
earnings of HK$21.82 million (2020: Nil), the aggregate amount of
distributable earnings of the Group’s Mainland China subsidiaries
in respect of which the Group has not provided for dividend
withholding tax amounted to approximately HK$5,938.35 million
(2020: HK$5,318.27 million). No deferred tax has been recognised
in respect of these amounts because the Group is in a position to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in Note 26 and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, share

premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. When necessary, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or

the repayment of existing debt.

149 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]
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PR HEBLIE (49)

RoF-—FE+H=1+—H &%
91 ] R B R Al s 1) 2 R B B
JE5 15 %) £ 478,290,000% 76 ( & %
F 1 499,370,000 C) ° A A B
IR A8 A R TR > O 1R AT AR
Mk a2 S R R MR R BB E - R
R BLIE R > 440,460,000 7T
(=& ZFAF 175,090,000 00 ) 2
PRI A TR N TR o HLAth s 15 T JE PR
WAk o

M-FE_—F+_A=+—H0 > &%
Al 4 UK 29 A £ 21,820,000 9 6 ( &
TR ) A > A R
B (A b B 8 A T 2 BT 40 UK 2R A8 A
%15,938,350,000 % JG ( —F —F4F -
5,318,270,000%5 76) - 1E 5 S Fn 4
FREEA o H AL B fE 12 i 438 )
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AT SR [ 5 [R] Ul 4 R 5% S K
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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29. &l TH
() T HZ R

Categories of financial instruments

2021 2020
—®o—E RO
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THIT
Financial assets W &
Financial assets at FVTPL e HEF AR 2
WA B 101,593 90,302
Financial assets at amortised cost TR AT 8 2 I B 4,690,982 5,087,029
Equity instruments at FVTOCI Foe N B 7 A A A T A 5
ZBARTH 293,452 408,816
Financial liabilities A% £ 18
At amortised cost TS R AR 806,190 1,516,794

Financial risks management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and other receivables, amounts due from associates, pledged
bank deposits, bank deposit, bank balances, trade and
other payables and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner. There has been no significant change to the
Group’s exposure to financial risks or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risks.

(b) o5 JE B 48 P H B R BOR

AEEZ EESHM T HAFEE
O~ {EL T A A 22 T i 4 2
ATH -~ A FEFFARGRZ
MBS EE - BIWCE 5 IR
b FE WSO B > B 4 R R
AP IRAT A0~ AT~ R
Fr&ses - MEATE 5 MR % H At
AR B A B A R o 7% 5 < il
TH 2 w45 B 7 A B B T A 45
B o TS ZE M TEA
PR 2 JEL gy A% e i AEK 5% < Ja g
ZBUR o PR B e B
G Ja B > DAHE £R BE K IRF A A 2L
3 PR B A 15 0 o AR SR T
Bl 2 P 5 JL gy R A PR Y R
JE B 2 i I EE R SR o
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks

(@)

Currency risk

Certain bank balances of the Group are denominated in
USD and RMB which are foreign currencies other than
functional currency (i.e. HKD) of the relevant group
entities (see Note 23(c)). The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to currency risk at the end of the

reporting period.

No analysis is presented on HKD against USD as
HKD is pegged to USD and the management of the
Company believes the foreign exchange exposure is

insignificant.

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2020: 5%) appreciation/depreciation in HKD against
RMB.

. Profit for the year ended 31st December, 2021
would decrease/increase by HK$950,000 (2020:
HK$2,292,000).

1 5 1 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]
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(b) %5 ks

(#)

HELH B R BUR

T 355 L B

G) R

A B2 [ T RAT &5 8 )T DA
FT R AR (S50 T
JF 45 FH BRI B ) )
(B 7T) FIME (R 5E
23(c)) o AEE [ H Al 4R
A1 S o BORE < SR
PR B SRR JEL R
ST A T R 25
E SR DN 9 e

R 2 B AT T DA
48 15 2 B B
HE T o

H AV T B 5 T B - i
3 4 2 3 o S R T 2
SR > HLAR S R4S PR A
15 3l 4 5 KA/ LBy

B A 4R s T
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. &k T H )

(b) o5 JE B 48 P H B S R

(#)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued) T 35 JE\ B (42

(i) FIFE

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposit, lease liabilities, and
pledged bank deposits (see Notes 23(c), 23(e) and 35
respectively for details). The Group is also exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank deposit,
bank balances and variable-rate borrowings (see Note
26 for details of these borrowings). It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at variable-rate of interest
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant

interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market deposit
rate and the Mainland China official lending rate
and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from
the Group’s RMB borrowings and HKD borrowings

respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates risks for
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and variable-rate
borrowings. The analysis is prepared on the balances
at the end of reporting period. 100 basis points (2020:
50 or 100 basis points) increase or decrease is used
which represents the management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

AEBFRITAR - HE
B fE KA R AT A7 3K (G
150 Bl BB 5E23(0) ~ 23(e)
B 35) 1M 28 A %2 s ~F(E
RJE Ry o AL E IR FRAT
TR~ SRATH 8 )7 B
K (S 18 3G I LR 5
26) T 8 A 52 Bl 4 i A1) 5 &L
B o AS4E [ 2 BUK 5 4R
77 B B DA AR A B F
IRy o AL H B A
FIREFPHBOR o SR > B
P i B R 22 R By o i A
T B INF i e 7 i T B
) 2R SR

A 4 ] 2 3 < O A R Ja
F B A T 35 A EOM R
FFE) DA R A SR N R A
AL T A AR il A A
A B 7 B M) R A i
SRATIR) SR BT B SRR -

IR T

DLTR 4 B0 BE A BT T AR 15
WHRATA R - BATH
FiF B 3K 2 A 2 B
Ly BLUET B E o MIH BT
FE R B R 2 & B T AR
oo 1005 (—F
FAE 0 508 1005 2 ) A1
TRk D A PR R A B
| 2% 5 ) ] fE PR Y A BRAG
e
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

—

T

—E+H=+—H ILFEE

29. &b T H 4)
(b) BAH bGP H B K BUR

(/f?g;)

T 55 LB (A7)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In relation to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
risk on bank balances, if interest rates had been 100
basis points (2020: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31st December, 2021
would increase/decrease by HK$27,331,000 (2020:
HK$15,222,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates risk on its variable-rate borrowings, if
interest rates had been 100 basis points (2020: 100
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended
31st December, 2021 would decrease/increase by
HK$2,208,000 (2020: HK$8,249,000).

(iii) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its equity instruments measured at FVTPL and
FVTOCI quoted in the Stock Exchange. For equity
instruments measured at FVTPL quoted in the Stock
Exchange, the management intends to manage this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles. In addition, the Group also
invested in certain unquoted equity instruments for
long term strategic purposes which had been designed
as FVTOCI. The Directors of the Company closely
manage the price risk by regularly reviewing the
performance of the unquoted equity instruments.

1 53 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]
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(b) %% E ks

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
HELH R BUR

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued) (%)

Market risks (Continued) T 355 LB (4

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued) (CONZS-L0 AC Y
Sensitivity analysis K E 2 BT

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of reporting period for equity instruments. Sensitivity
analysis for unlisted equity securities with fair value
measurement categorised within Level 3 is disclosed in

Note 29(c).

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 10% (2020: 10%) higher/lower:

e profit for the year ended 31st December, 2021
would increase/decrease by HK$10,159,000
(2020: HK$9,030,000) as a result of the changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL; and

e for the year ended 31st December, 2020, other
comprehensive income would increase/decrease
by HK$15,085,000 for the Group as a result

of the changes in fair value of listed equity
instruments at FVTOCI.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is not representative of the Group’s equity price risk
as it only reflects the impact of equity price changes
to equity securities held at the year end but not the

exposure during the year.

5 2 U Sy A T AR 5
REEMRZ AT R
JBC A B g R B A Ak YE T
i E o N TEFE RS
5 =Ry IF b AR @ 2R
Zﬁi@&ﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁwui
29(c) °

ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂiiﬂzﬁﬁﬁi
T+ B10% ( —F %
1 10%) o HI

s WE_ZF_ 4+
A=+—HIEEZ
T A R 4% P R
AR5 2 W5 & E A
S 585 B I 184 Ik
10,159,000 70 (=
E 4 19,030,000
W) 5 &

s WE_ZF_ZHFI
A=+—HIFE
A A 18] 2 Ath 4 T i
st A R # A F(EFEA
Hih 2wk s 2 b
mkA T RAFE
56 ) T BE n s >
15,085,000%5 JG °

EHER S o mRBURE
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. &k T H )

(b) o5 JE B 48 P H B S R

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets in the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management will monitor the payment status of customers
and perform necessary procedures to ensure that follow-up

action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The credit risk on bank balances, pledged bank deposits
and bank deposit with original maturity over three months
is limited because the counterparties are banks with good
reputation. The Group use 12m ECL to perform the
assessment under ECL model individually. The impairment
yet to be recognised are insignificant. Other than
concentration of credit risk on bank balances, pledged bank
deposits and bank deposit with original maturity over three
months which are deposited with several banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
the Group does not have any other significant concentration

of credit risk.

1 55 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Directors of the Company regularly reviewed and
assessed the gross amount of the Group’s trade receivables
of HK$4,737,000 (2020: HK$4,884,000) for impairment
under lifetime ECL using reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort
in accordance with requirements of HKFRS 9. Since the

balances of the trade receivables are insignificant, no further

disclosure on the impairment were disclosed.

For other receivables and amounts due from associates, the
Directors of the Company regularly reviewed and assessed
the credit quality of the counterparties. The Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model individually.
In this regard, the Directors of the Company consider
the exposure of credit risk, historical settlement and other

forward-looking information. The losses under lifetime ECL

of HK$340,000 (2020: Nil) are recognised.

29. &b T H 4)
(b) A% E B 45 PE H B R BUR

(4
s B L e % AR T A (72

AN ) AR PR W S
MRS M L E - i M7
A7 R L B A SOk 0
156 B B B SR Y R
7 4 [ 1) B i B ) W kiR T A
64,737,000 70 (& —FA4F
4,884,0005 70) 2 W (E 4% 4 A TE
W5 B0 15 W0 A ol I
i o 8 HE R 5 R &5 R B
T ABE R U A A o — 2 B

==

2% ©

0 L At 8 A R R % B A R R
o AN F S E AR AR
Wt s2 ¥ FHEEEE -
AL B ARBE G S EEAEX
i 1 I o = M o s s o
T ARAFEEREEEREEE
B ~ A8 A &5 R0 Bk S L Al AT IS
&R - CHEREWENGE
T3 18 N B 5 1E340,000% 00 (%
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. &k T H )

(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) A% E B 45 PE H B R BUR

Policies (Continued) (45

s B L e % AR T A (72

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

AR [ A B T B AR
Al E4E AR -

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

Internal credit

Amounts due from

associates and

rating Description other receivables
- & 93
R A BT AR we ] Ll W MR ik
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12m ECL
have any past-due amounts
Bz 25 J5 WA A SR AR > LI 48ATful 20 0 1248 A G B4R
Watch list Debtor usually settles after due date 12m ECL
R BB A\ SEH R B H AR E AT 1248 A G B4R
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL
initial recognition through information developed (not credit-impaired)
internally or external resources
fE5E 75 A A S 1 B R B AN B TR BN B B RHERR DASR 2 HITE IS B 1R
15 B g BH 2 34 n (RAEAE EWUE)
Loss There is evidence indicating that the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
<Ei! AR BN & 1 BUE BE 2 I E SR
(EAE(E BBE)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
] A BTN B A i 765 R A 4 (BT A B SRR LA

ATl 2
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. s TR (4)
(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) s m b s PR H AR R BUR
policies (Continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 15 & Jal i B AR oA (42
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the T FBaralh AR R 2 TE B E
Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank deposit and bank B L 2 IR AT AR K
balances, amounts due from associates and other receivables, SRATIE DA R AT 45 1 - B
which are subject to ECL assessment: N TR K T HoAth E Ui BE 3k 2 (S
B -
External Internal 12m or Gross carrying amount
creditrating  credit rating  lifetime ECL i T AR
AR M 1218 H 84 2021 2020
fr BREAR fa BEREaR TEfE B8 - S S S <2
HK$°000 HK$’000
T Tt

Financial assets at

amortised cost

TS AT R Z
U7 32073
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL 2,899 94,852
oAt RENCAR 3K NTEH R 121 A EHE Bl 1R
Watch list 12m ECL 113,139 110,726
ERAH 121/ 7 (S Bl 1R
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) 21,548 14,578
friE TG Bk
(R BWHE)
Loss Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) 4,024 3,579
518 2 G B E
(C A5 B E)
141,610 223,735
Amounts due from N/A Watch list 12m ECL
associates 9,501 10,781
k- NEIUG Y A ERyE 121F F TG SR8
Pledged bank deposits, BB+ orabove  N/A 12m ECL
bank deposit and
bank balances 4,543,531 4,856,040
IEARETAE N BB+IkI L AHH 1218 H = Bk R
AT K
RATHBR
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. &R T H 4)
(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) A% E B 45 PE H B R BUR
policies (Continued) (4
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) £ B Jm\ g B AR AN (42)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances T 2R 5 7 it LA FEE oA B R R
that has been recognised for other receivables: Z iR 2 FHR
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
2 7 )
fa B 18
(TR W)
HK$°000
T
As at 1st January, 2020 MEFEZFE—H—H 4,599
Changes due to financial instruments NoEZFFE—H—HERZ
recognised as at 1st January, 2020: B TRIPES %)
— Impairment losses reversed — BB Il 2 S E 1R (1,1806)
— Exchange adjustments — [ 5 g 2 166
As at 31st December, 2020 AR TR H =+ —H 3,579
Changes due to financial instruments WoEZ—F—H—HERZ
recognised as at 1st January, 2021: W TR E S 8
— Impairment losses recognised — ELiERR 2 WE 1R 340
— Impairment losses reversed — B 2 W E R (1
— Exchange adjustments — [ S0 106
As at 31st December, 2021 WoE - —®F+_"H=+—H 4,024
In accordance with HKFRS 9, the management has assessed R CHE S I B HE R 589
the impairment in relation to pledged bank deposits, bank 95 - BB O RIS R AT A
deposit, bank balances, the amounts due from associates and K BRATAEEK - RATH R~ W
other receivables which are categorised under 12m ECL and B ] R B At 1 i B BRGEE
lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). The impairment yet to be e - HrBIA R 1218 A
recognised is insignificant. TG SRR A2 E G S

Jei 1B ORVEMR BB ME) o WR T
AR WAE 2 B R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. &k T H )

(b) o5 JE B 48 P H B S R

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued) (4
Liquidity risk B & & b

The Group is not exposed to any significant liquidity risk as

it has sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations when

they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
generated from operations which are deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations and to
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group

will consider to raise bank borrowings when it is necessary.

Liquidity risk table

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived

from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

M A SR B A TS E & R U
TR B3 F AR AT A T B A
A AR ) T 2 O ) 4 LB
AAEK

T PR B m By > AR
I B S RO TR Y
Hakile%HARZEHE
4% 78 R B9 7K T DL RE £+ A 42
BENS L ERERERS
W AEFMTER T ERE
JE I SRATIE 6 o

0 B B <2

TR A 4R B G A AR RS
BEZEBTERFNEI -
R RAR A 45 B R AT RE B R
R 5 B R i R H O 2
B B0 R W BB 4 A R T Al
Al e MR FIR RA e 2 Bl
EUWE o FEM B E S A
AT - RNGE BT
o AR 2 P2 AT 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

29. &b T H 4)

i B < LB (4

(b) o5 JE B 48 P H B S R

(#

Liquidity risk table (Continued) B G 2 bE 7 (4)
Weighted On
average  demand or Total Total
effective lessthan ~ 3months 7 months undiscounted carrying
interestrate 3 months  to 6 months tolyear  Overlyear  cashflows amount
miry  EERK WA t]A KBS
ERHE =ZWANR ~A £ CERE O WBAE  REARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Ti#n Tin T#x T T
Asat31st December, 2021 B-% 4
SE
Non-derivative financial ~ FE A2 B £ 14
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ RERTE AR LAl
Btk - 488663 - - Bl SIET SIS
Lease liilies HERR 302% 2124 1,416 4,248 4,48 12,036 11,745
Bortowings - varible ate {5515, 349% 4,334 3,961 36,988 379,126 424,409 294333
495,121 5377 41,236 406,568 948,302 817,935
Asat31st December, 2020 R-F-FEF A
-4
Non-derivative financial ~ FE A7 B £ 14
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ TENE Sy Ra R FA
EEfiRt - s - - IS4 4706 497086
Leases bl HES R 294% 2268 1,560 429 1203 20,160 19390
Borrowings - variable e~ 57— 1.8 352% 666 71386 6518 4504 L1803 1019758
494,429 715,403 40,814 447,081 1,697,727 1,536,184
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. 4k TH ()

(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) WAHs)E B4 BE H AR R BUR
policies (Continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) i B & 4 BB (42
Liquidity risk table (Continued) WEE & I Fi 7% (4)
The above undiscounted cash flows amounts could change if fisg S i W 2 R B ED [ J}
there are movements in floating interest rates subsequent to 2R B BB < U R O A
the reporting period. g o

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (o0 & THZAVFHEGE
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at A A [ R AR 4 E@I/E:f/:\%%’(%
fair value at the end of each reporting period on a recurring R 42 8 PR B ME DL S FE R
basis. The following table gives information about how the o :F PR B o] 7 E 5%
fair values of these financial instruments are determined (in Lo T H 2 N TE (R AL T
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used). 15 I 4 s (55 9l A i A B8 R

EH} o
Fair value

as at 31st December

BtZA=t—HZAFE

Fair value
Financial assets 2021 2020  hierarchy Valuation techniques and key inputs
BPH A5 1 &
B e e . Jne S L ER3 YN ¢
HK$000 HK$°000
Tt T#T
Financial assets at FEVTPL 101,593 90,302  Level 1 Quoted prices in an active market
TATEF ARG B EE R T T 2 B
Equity instruments at FVTOCI
TNFEF AR T 2
AT E
— Listed equity investment - 150,849  Level 1 Quoted prices in an active market
LA E H—# TG B 2 R
— Unlisted equity investments 293,452 257,967  Level 3 Market approach for business enterprises

valuation with reference to the market
capitalisation of listed entities in
similar industries with consideration
of marketability discount of 25% and
adjustment of idle cash

F EiRARE B SEATER LB R T E %
8259 T 5 T A PE AT e ) B
;@%fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%

I

395,045 499,118
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. &k T H )

(0 & THZAHEGE

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Note:

A slight increase in the marketability discount used in valuation
would result in a significant decrease in the fair value measurement

of the private equity investments, and vice versa.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no Level 2 fair

value measurements financial instruments.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 1 and Level 3 during

the year.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

Unlisted equity investments measured at FVTOCI

(#)

Wi -

L 1735 0 T S 2
55 BORL 35 W S0 2 -
REFWD LI -

P IR A B —
PR TR -

R RS — B =
5 — A B = A o
B PR R Bk

APt A A 2 IR 4k
Z LA &

HK$’°000
R LY
As at st January, 2020 Wo_E-FFE—H—H 264,117
Disposal of equity instruments at FVTOCI & #/ PAEFH A H A 2 it 2
A T H (1,752)
Fair value loss recognised in other A S At 4 T AL 25 AR R 2 O THEL R 18R
comprehensive income (20,159)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes | it B 2 5 ) 2 2 15,761
As at 31st December, 2020 R-Z-FHE+_A=+—H 257,967
Fair value gain recognised in other A S At 4 T WAL 25 W RR 2 B 4
comprehensive income 26,564
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes A7 e 4R 54 ) 2 %88 8,921
As at 31st December, 2021 Wz _—HF+_H=1+—H 293,452

Except the financial assets that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis, the Directors of the Company consider that
financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised
cost recognised in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 30. REE TG E) A 2 AE IR

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

RSB G S B E A AfE
BE > USRS RIEH S - @&
WEE A ARG EE S B ECR
%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁAZ’-‘%@ﬁgéﬁiﬁﬁ%%

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing are those from which

cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from RO ARERE EAE eSS
financing activities. B -
Interest payable
(included in
trade and
Lease  other payables
Borrowings liabilities and accruals) Total
JE A L Gt A
WE 5 52 5% ek ~
fiiak HE A HRER) it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T
At Ist January, 2020 REZFZZF—H—H 1,293,510 4,297 2,801 1,300,608
Financing cash flows MEREHE (292,197) (8,470) (41,869) (342,536)
New lease entered Bl E = 23,051 = 23,051
Interest expenses LillsNEs - 512 40,204 40,716
Effect of foreign exchange HHERE 5 2
rate changes 18,445 = = 18,445
At 315t December, 2020 REFZFFE+ZA=1—H 1,019,758 19,390 1,136 1,040,284
Financing cash flows AER &R E (735,733) (8,124) (22,927) (766,784)
Interest expenses FIEBX - 479 21,791 22,270
Effect of foreign exchange HMHERE % 5 ) 2
rate changes 10,308 - - 10,308
At 315t December, 2021 REF_—F+ZA=1—H 294,333 11,745 - 306,078
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. B AR
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no material TR BAOR > A SR 1 7 T 08 47 B 24731
contingent liabilities for both years. s RER LR -

32. COMMITMENTS 32. i

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

material commitments:

R IR AR 2 EERIE

T

(a) Commitments in relation to expenditure on properties under () FHERPYZETH 2R
development:
2021 2020
“ROFE ZEZCXF
HK$’°000 HK$000
Tt R
Properties under development Ry
— Contracted but not provided for — AT AME R 428,732 224,499
(b) Operating lease arrangements: (b) EHELH
The Group as lessor A 4R [ A 2 AL

The properties held have committed tenants from the
majority of one year up to the maximum of nine years (2020:

ten years).

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as

B4 3 2 R A 2 R L
KREB—F > BRERBNE(ZE
— ) -

HEZ RIGBUEUAR 201 -

follows:
2021 2020
e e S S 02
HK$°000 HK$000
Tt T#IT
Within one year —4ER 197,199 131,096
In the second year - 67,988 45,989
In the third year g5 =lE 27,787 28,482
In the fourth year RIS 16,274 21,050
In the fifth year AR 7,268 12,801
After five years AR 9,557 15,276
326,073 254,694
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33.

34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 055 e A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
MPEF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and the employees are obliged to make

contributions at the specified rate under the scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss represent contributions paid
and payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules

of the scheme.

The employees in the Mainland China are members of respective
state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local governments. The employers and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage
of the payroll under rules of the schemes. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to

make the specified contributions.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following significant transactions with related

and connected parties:

(@ On 10th January, 2020, Shanghai Tomson Real Estate
Investment & Development Co., Ltd., (“Tomson Real
Estate”) and Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited, both being
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into
a conditional agreement (the “Supplemental Framework
Agreement”) with Shanghai Pudong Land Holding (Group)
Co. Ltd. (“SPLH”), a substantial shareholder of Shanghai
Tomson Pudong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. which is
an indirect 70% owned subsidiary of the Company.

33.

34.

JB PR A

ALEE G T T LA A AR
Rt A T wt # R ) 2 Bl —TH 5
PR AR (TRA ) wh & - A&
it B 2 B LA G 2 R Ay B
o WUEEE A — B G N
B o RIRIRAE BRI A - R K
1 B4 BT w37 B L3R4
P -

TR B 1H A R AN BR 2 At o A <
P2 K> SR AR SR I AR B AT
Z R OAT RIEATFREZ 3K -

o A M B TS R T BURE
2 180 58 LR E OB AR A 2
A o MREERTEIALAN - R E LR B
AREALIEF & 24 T 8 o AR it
B o AL BB FIFHE LA
BAE A HET K

R 235 B BRSEN 1- 22 5

4 L S O T B\ AT DA R
K35

@ R-F_FF—-H+H, L
P B B M R A IR W) ([ 3
EpE#E]) kGEREER(E
) ARAF (B AARAFZ 2
T 2w ) B L i R st
Jie (el AR A ([ £ 8] > A&
28 T AR A 70% HHE 2 [ B 2
R i i B RS M B A
PR Rl 2 BB 5T 52 A Rt
ik (T CH FEHEZR Woh ek 1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

Pursuant to the principal terms of the Supplemental

Framework Agreement:

(i) there was an adjustment of the land lots entitled by
Tomson Real Estate and land lots with aggregate site
area of approximately 328,687.50 square meters in
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the Mainland China (the
“Revised Portions”) were adjusted to Tomson Real
Estate. There was a slight decrease of 298.70 square
meters in aggregate in site area as compared with the
original aggregate site area of approximately 328,986.20

square meters.

(i) Certain land lots (including the land lot of which
prepayment of development costs had been included
in trade and other receivables and prepayments) have
been planned and varied as land for public welfare and
will be resumed by the local government and will be
developed by the relevant government authorities and/
or any entity authorised by the government authorities
of the Mainland China. The said land lot was not

delivered to Tomson Real Estate.

(iii) The total consideration payable for the land lots
remains unchanged at RMB2,951 million and has
already been paid.

During the year 2020, the real estate ownership certificates of
the Revised Portions had been obtained, therefore the deposit
paid for land use right and related prepayment included in
trade and other receivables and prepayments were reclassified

to properties under development (see Notes 17 and 23(a)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

The Company executed a guarantee (the “Guarantee”) in
favour of SPLH on 10th January, 2020 to guarantee the tax
indemnification obligation of Tomson Real Estate under
the Supplemental Framework Agreement and undertake
not to dispose of the shares of Tomson Real Estate and not
to transfer any rights in relation to the Revised Portions.
The Company complied with the requirements under the
Guarantee during the year.

The Supplemental Framework Agreement and the Guarantee
had been approved by the Board. More details are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 10th January,
2020 and 24th January, 2020.

SPLH is a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level and the transaction therefore constituted a
connected transaction for the Company under the Listing

Rules.

A substantial shareholder of RHL together with her close
family members control the Company and that sharecholder
has significant influence over RHL. Accordingly, RHL is
considered as a related party of the Company. The Company
agreed to share administrative resources and office premises
with RHL and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, and in
return, RHL is required to share an attributable portion
of the administrative expense of the Company on a cost
basis. During the year ended 31st December, 2021, the
administrative expense of the Company shared by RHL
amounted to HK$4,656,000 (2020: HK$4,992,000). As at
31st December, 2021 and 2020, no outstanding balance was
owed by RHL.

The above transaction constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company but is exempted from disclosure
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.

B £ BV 055 e A P

“EF A= HIREE

34. BT RN 25 4

(a)

(b)

(#)

ARFEL R Z S AR —F
TFAE—H A+ HERTREK)
(TCPRREERD 1) > iy B b5 &
JACHE FEHEZR 1 ) TH T Z Bk
MR R AR - R A
5 8 5 E BS A 2 By B A
15 R AT B A AE W ) Ml 2 AT AR
HER o A% RIAEAS 4 R B P (R
i PR ) Z BUE o

CHHFEMEZR 1) KRB KD E
EEHRAE 2B EH
FINAR AR HM A & %
F—HTHE -Z_FF—H
“HHEZ A o

Ty AR F A K8 2 W) T
Z BN L SRR TR
J) > S5 FIEM A A R — A
BRI 5

AN a) N — o R
HATBE® > T % 4 B R
WA EREET) o S > )1
B B AN T 2 BT o AR
) [ 2 A s L )| 9 R i
s ) LR d R AT BUE U8 KA
o T ) 0T 2E 44 B A F e )
A FEATHUE B 2 AL FR AL o
BE_F_—F+_HA=1+—
HIEERE > W ERAF 2
1T BUE 1 F54,656,000% 00 (— %
TEAE 1 4,992,00040C) o i
R FERE T A
=+—H > NIl R AT AR
AR RIE R AR

PA b 52 5 W JAS 23 W) 22
Ay MR S s r R TTA
RI)) 2 B i T J8 S FBC SR v 2 A

g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

34. BT RN 25 4

() FEEHABZME

The remuneration of Directors of the Company during the WAL A EEZ FH T
year was as follows:

2021 2020
“ROFE ZEZCXF
HK$’°000 HK$000
T#T TH#IT
Short-term benefits FLIAE A 27,613 29,702
Post-employment benefits IRARAE A 36 36
27,649 29,738

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the Board (or
under the authorisation of the sharcholders of the Company
as the case may be) by reference to market terms, individual
responsibilities and performance, and recommendation from

the remuneration committee of the Board.

(d) The balances due from associates and a joint venture at the
end of the reporting period are set out in Notes 19 and 20

respectively.
The above transactions were conducted in accordance with

terms mutually agreed between the Group and the respective

related parties.

1 69 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]

(d

T HN Y B R (BUREA
NRIBOR 2 370 > HE UL )
2% W35 H M AKCF ~ J R L
W KRB > MK HE R
T HNZE B g e

T AR 2 B S 8 N R
— R EE LR A R
B 19 520 ©

Rl 5 T AR PR A S ] B A% B
7 85 R R RAOEAT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. ¥
Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged IR (B 2 B e Ol R A 4R B 1
to secure the Group’s borrowings of HK$294.33 million (2020: X £49294,330,000% 0 (ZF —F
HK$1,019.76 million): 4+ 1,019,760,000% 78 fEEAT -
2021 2020
o SR
HK$°000 HK$000
Tt TH#T
Properties held for sale eV 460,001 441,606
Pledged bank deposits (Note) IANSRAT A7 (Mt 84,172 1,131,476
544,173 1,573,082
Note: Mt -
The deposits of HK$84,172,000 (2020: HK$218,721,000) have been TF K 84,172,000 ¥ oG (= F — F 4F :
pledged to secure long-term borrowings and were therefore classified as 218,721,000%% 70) B /EHEH - DLIE{E =1
non-current assets. For the year ended 31st December, 2020, deposits EAC IR A RE & E - B2
amounting to HK$912,755,000 had been pledged to secure short-term CERCREFTF A S —HIEEE > 7
borrowings and were therefore classified as current assets. The pledged 912,755,000 %5 76 L AEHEA » DAIE PR 5
bank deposits pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings carry interest at g > Hp A REEE - BB
rate of 0.30% (2020: 0.30% to 3.85%) per annum. PR A £ (] T HE A Y B AR SR AT A7 K

TR 2030 H (K F4E 1 030EE
3.85/H) 51 o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF 36. A 2Z WM& R

THE COMPANY
The Company’s Statement of Financial Position is as follows: ANF Z ABARRWT -
2021 2020
RO R CFUE
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt THs T
Non-Current Assets FEmBE B
Investments in subsidiaries R NGIE S <y 537,404 597,404
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WAL BFF JB 2 ) R IE 2,267,532 1,724,735
Right-of-use asset o I HE 11,816 19,280
Club debenture o P fE S 315 315
Other receivable HoAth B ISR X 2,361 2,361
2,819,428 2,344,095
Current Assets A
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WAL o BB > ) 2 TE 386,416 435,705
Other receivables and prepayments A RS HR K R AT RO 715 1,357
Cash and bank balances B4 K RAT AR 219,664 816,423
606,795 1,253,485
Current Liabilities i B £ &
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAT BFF J& 2 ) 3 3E 571,008 533,304
Other payables and accruals A REAST R S TR 2 13,929 14,159
Lease liability HE A 7,536 7,313
592,473 554,776
Net Current Assets i B A A 14,322 698,709
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities HEUE A U B B £ 2,833,750 3,042,804
Capital and Reserves A B At i
Share capital i@ 985,512 985,512
Share premium and reserves FBE A7 v 5 I foti 1,844,029 2,045,547
Total Equity A HE 4 2,829,541 3,031,059
Non-Current Liability ke By £ 18
Lease liability HE A K 4,209 11,745
2,833,750 3,042,804
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

37. COMPANY’S SHARE PREMIUM AND 37. Al B i 06 % fakh 1
RESERVES
Capital
Share redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
EA

Beprimf  EEGEG BARLE  REGRN At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
Tt Tt Tt T Tt

Balance at Ist January, 2020 AFERE—~A—H

&5 776,974 72,014 327,645 1,150,942 2,327,575
Loss for the year 1R - = = (65,215) (65,215)
Dividend paid for 2019 R —F— AR

i 5 (216,813) - - - (216,813)

Balance at 31st December, 2020 & —F4HF+_—H
=t—Hz#% 560,161 72,014 327,645 1,085,727 2,045,547

Loss for the year @W&é?ﬁ - - - (93,112) (93,112)
Dividend paid for 2020 RN T
iid=) (108,406) - - - (108,406)

Balance at 31st December, 2021 A& _——4+_"H
=t+—HZ &% 451,755 72,014 327,645 992,615 1,844,029
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£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 38. REMIBAN ~ BiE A w K&

AND A JOINT VENTURE —RKEEME
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2021 W _F -4+ "H=1+—H
Z BB
Paid up Proportion of issued share
Place of issued ordinary capital/voting power/effective
incorporation share capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MROCH ARVFH T8I
kL R LERmA [l V& L1 V4
i1 0 2 B FRUNZEN B AEREG R REER
Directly Indirectly
Hi fil
% %
Charlesville Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 100 - Investment holding
FBARRES 10078 RERR
Classic Era Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
AR ik 26T AR
Cosmos Success Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Inactive
BB EA AR B 10,0001 ¢ i
Farskill Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
R RA AR ik 26T AR
Garland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
FHARAF i 10,000%7C RERR
Grand Lion Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
EEARAH ik BT AR
Grand View Property Management (Shanghai) ~ Mainland China US$500,000 - 100 Property management
Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
IR () AIRA R (M) I st 500,000% 7 YEEH
Humphreys Estate (Strawberry Houses) Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS$200 - 100 Securities trading
il 20078 W HE
Ideal Movement Limited Hong Kong HK§$2 - 100 Property holding
BFERAR it BT YRR
Island Sky Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100 Inactive
REHRAR i N R
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

38. LEFE AW ~ B A v &

AND A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) —XOELE @
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2021 W _F -4+ "H=1+—H
(Continued) 2 EEE A W] (48)
Paid up Proportion of issued share
Place of issued ordinary capital/voting power/effective
incorporation share capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRCHn AR R CH#AT
kAR R EER A/ e Vg V4
i) Ak BN At MHE A AMEARREGILR  REEH
Directly Indirectly
Hik Fil %
% %
Jentime Limited Hong Kong HK§2 - 100 Providing property services
to the Group
RARAT ik 2T ES b e
Kuto Limited Hong Kong HK§2 - 100 Investment holding
A A R A Fi 2T BB
Maxi Charm Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
ERAMARS EST igceid
MHK (Penha Hill) Limited British Virgin Islands US$30,000 - 70 Property development
Ed EApY 30,000% 7T VES T
Model Year Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
HEARAT ik 2T igceid
Multiclassic Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands US$40,200,000 - 100 Investment holding
Ed EApY 40,200,003 7% BEER
Owina Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
WA R A ik 2T igceid
Shanghai Cheng Qi Technology Limited Mainland China US$15,000,000 - 100 Property development
(Note (1)
IR RAA (Wit (1) G 15,000,000 VES
Shanghai Tomson Huangpu Real Estate Mainland China US$18,500,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (Noze (1))
iR EREREREARAA (W) FER 18,500,000 7C UES T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 38. REMIBAN ~ BiE A w K&

AND A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) —XOELE @
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2021 W _F -4+ "H=1+—H
(Continued) 2 EEE A W] (48)
Paid up Proportion of issued share
Place of issued ordinary capital/voting power/effective
incorporation share capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRCHn AR R CH#AT
kAR R EER A/ e Vg V4
W 2l 1 BN At MHE A AMEARREGILR  REEH
Directly Indirectly
Hik fil%
% %
Shanghai Tomson Investment Management Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co. Limited (Note (3))
LEGEREERARLE (i) Gl NB1,000,0007 B
Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real Estate Mainland China US$46,000,000 - 70 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (Noze (2))
LEGERRE R R RAR G 46,000,000% 7T VES G
(M)
Shanghai Tomson Real Estate Investment & Mainland China US$100,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. (Noze (1)) investment holding
LEGEFREREARARA M) R 100,000,000 VESLI G el
Toben Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment
EAARAR ik 2T e
Tomson Administration Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Providing administrative
services to the Group
and property holding
&k 10,000 7E A S R T AR B
JLIE S
Tomson (China) Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
Gl (P E) AR FE & 2T TER
Tomson Corporate (L.P.) Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 100 Trademark holding
Vo (R ) IR ik 2T [ElzEszi)
Tomson Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 100 Investment holding
SRR b Bt
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 38. REMIBAN ~ BiE A w K&

AND A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) —XOELE @
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2021 W _F -4+ "H=1+—H
(Continued) 2 EEE A W] (48)
Paid up Proportion of issued share
Place of issued ordinary capital/voting power/effective
incorporation share capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRCH ARTRAC#ET
Ak L K LA/ e vEicd 74
Y 24 2% 1 Rt A& A AMEAEEEGILE  FEER
Directly Indirectly
HE fe)
% %
Tomson Empire View Co. Limited British Virgin Islands U5$65,010,000 - 100 Investment holding
W R ERARAR KBRS 65,010,000 7C fEHER
Tomson Financial Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
GEMEREARAH Bk 10,0004 ¢ R
Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited (Noze (1)) Mainland China US$40,000,000 - 100 Golf course and club
operation, and property
development
VEREE (L) HRAR (2 ) R 40,000,000 7 ARG RETEE
VY EIEL
Tomson Group Garland (Shanghai) Mainland China US$16,000,000 - 100 Property development
Housing & Estate Led. (Noe (1))
Gk R (L) EEARAH B 16,000,000 72 E SIS
(i)
Tomson Group (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$20 - 100 Providing nominee services
to the Group
GEER (RN ARAR il 20T B GR ERAL AR B
Tomson Group (Nominees) No. 2 Limited Hong Kong HKS$20 = 100 Providing nominee services
to the Group
ViR B Z (RN ARAR il 20T AR AT
Tomson Haijing Garden (Shanghai Pudong Mainland China US$58,200,000 - 100 Property development
New Area) Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
G R (LR R ARA Bl 58,200,000% 7 ESHS
(i)
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for B A 5 S P

For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BE - F - —F+_HA=1+—HIFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

38. LEFE AW ~ B A v &

AND A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) —XOELE @
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2021 W _F -4+ "H=1+—H
(Continued) 2 EEE A W] (48)
Paid up Proportion of issued share
Place of issued ordinary capital/voting power/effective
incorporation share capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRCB ARTRAC#ET
Ak L K LBRA e Ve L1 Ve
I 24 W) 44 48 Rt Ak A AMEREREGILE  FEER
Directly Indirectly
H# fil %
% %
Tomson International Entertainment Company ~ Hong Kong HK§2 - 100 Investment holding and
Limited investment in live
entertainment shows
business
LS ) YN i 26T RETR R R ETmFE
i F 35
Tomson International Entertainment Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Film distribution
Distribution Limited
P BRI BT A R A ik 1T YT
Tomson International Trade Building (Shanghai) - Mainland China US$16,800,000 - 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (Note (4))
BB E KR (L) HRAT (M) B A 16,800,000 ¢ EEE
Tomson Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$3 100 - Investment holding
WE R EARA il 3T HEHER
TPR Secretarial Services Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Providing secretarial services
to the Group and
investment holding
i 10,000i7¢ FeAtR B T AR A R
AR
Yamako Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
OCE R it BT ieceide
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 38. REMIBAN ~ BiE A w K&

AND A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) —‘Hﬂﬁﬁ % (#&)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2021 W _E 4+ H=1—H
(Continued) Z BB A (4)

Notes: MIZE -

For those subsidiaries established in the Mainland China, their T F B A M B ST RO RS N ) H R AT 4
classification of establishment is as follows: ESE =

(1)  limited liability company (solely funded by Taiwan, Hong Kong or (1) AREEAF(ABREANEE)

Macau corporate)

(2)  limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau and ) FAMRFALAR (BEREENEE)

domestic equity joint venture)

(3) limited liability company solely funded by a foreign invested () EREAEEABER R EL
enterprise ]
(4)  limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau equity 4 FAREEAR(ABRAE)

joint venture)

There have been no material changes on the details of the principal TR AR e =R T — WA

subsidiaries for both years 2020 and 2021. MBS ) AR LR R N
ﬁ o

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the 25 B I8 2 R A A5 H B4R AT o] IR

end of the year, or at any time during the year. RS AT o A (2 2 75 5
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 38. REMIBAN ~ BiE A w K&

AND A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) —RKEERE
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2021 W _F -4+ "H=1+—H
(Continued) 2 FEWE A E ()

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s non-
wholly owned subsidiary that has material non-controlling interest
is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intergroup eliminations.

MHK (Penha Hill) Limited

A BRI AS SR AT R R 2 BB ROR A A 2
I A R B 2 W 2 A S R 5
TR o LA AR5 ORI B )Y 45 45 I [H]
A B o

MHK (Penha Hill) Limited

2021 2020

e =

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T

Properties held for sale rrEYE 457,230 465,821
Other current assets HAth i B & 54,706 58,309
Total current assets A B 511,936 524,130
Non-current assets FEEN G E - =
Current liabilities A E (22,610) (23,545)
Equity attributable to owner of the Company 72 Rl HE 4t 450 A A\ A HE £ 342,528 350,409
Non-controlling interest FE = 1 R R 2 146,798 150,176
Revenue A 20,094 33,840
Expenses BH 3 (16,353) (17,933)
Profit for the year 4 B Vi A 3,741 15,907

Profit and total comprehensive income JRRE A i R B 4 T A A
attributable to: AN -

Owner of the Company /NIl SRR S DN 2,619 11,135
Non-controlling interest FE 2 IR B R 2 1,122 4,772
3,741 15,907
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For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 38. REMIBAN ~ BiE A w K&

AND A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) —HaER¥E
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2021 ﬁ@;$:~$+:}% =+—H
(Continued) 2 BB A W] (48)
MHK (Penha Hill) Limited (Continued) MHK (Penha Hill) Limited (7
2021 2020
R ECEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T THETT

Net cash inflows (outflows) from operating WEEBBERA ()

activities I 11,384 (52,289)
Net cash inflows from investing activities BT B B A B 13 36
Net cash outflows from financing activities il & 1% B B & Uit 11 1F 48 (15,000) -
Net cash outflows for the year AR B R AR (3,603) (52,253)
The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that a complete )N T o R R SR R G A B A
list of the particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length 2 ER e E S IR T E > ik
and therefore the above list contains only the particulars of those AR 5 A Y A A B 2 A A E
subsidiaries which significantly affect the results or assets of the KRR BN T 2 R o
Group.
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£ A e R B 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 38. REMIBAN ~ BiE A w K&

AND A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) —XOELE @
Associates and a joint venture RoF 4+ "H=1+—H
as at 31st December, 2021 ZHBEAR R —FKGEMNE
Paid up Proportion of issued
issued ordinary  share capital/voting power/
Form of Place of share capital/ effective interest in
Name of associate/ business incorporation registered registered capital
joint venture structure and operation capital held by the Company ~ Principal activities
MROHIT  AXARHCHGRA/
B nw,/ kR K TR A, SORHE /Mg A
HRRELN RBEMEX MW Ak A T MR BE SR L %R ER =37
Directly  Indirectly
Hi% fil %
% %
Associates
P o il
Abundance Tomson Incorporated ~ Hong Kong HK$2,663,990 - 50  Under liquidation
Management Limited
L2V HREE IN G P VA i 2,663,990% 7T it
HIRAT
China Boom Enterprises  Incorporated  British Virgin US$1,280,000 - 44 Investment holding
Limited Islands
BERFEARA A bl B 1,280,000 ¢ BRI
it
Roma Era Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong HK$3,935,206 - 26.7  Investment holding
ARARAR G A - 3,935,206% . AR
Tomson Entertainment  Incorporated ~ Taiwan NTD25,000,000 - 45 Investment in film,
Co. Limited television and
entertainment
businesses
BB ARAR  FERAL HiE 25,000,000 & HEEY - BHK
PREESETS
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LR A R B G
For the year ended 31st December, 2021 BEFZ -+ A=+—HILFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 38. REMIBAN ~ BiE A w K&

AND AJOINT VENTURE (Continued) *Hﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁ(fﬁ)
Associates and a joint venture RoF 4+ "H=1+—H
as at 31st December, 2021 (Continued) ZHBEAFE - KGERE
(%)
Paid up Proportion of issued
issued ordinary  share capital/voting power/
Form of Place of share capital/ effective interest in
Name of associate/ business incorporation registered registered capital
joint venture structure and operation capital held by the Company ~ Principal activities
MRECHG  ARERFHCRTRA
BEnd,/ ik B TR A, U HE/REM B A
e Al RBEHMEA SR ak Mg A PSR ER-E 37
Directly ~ Indirectly
Hi% i3
% %
Joint Venture
AReE
Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson  Limited liability Mainland China US$24,340,000 - 50  Hotel owning and
Hotel Co., Ltd. company operation
(Taiwan,
Hong Kong
or Macau
and domestic
equity joint
venture)
EESIEE A AREEAA  FEkS 24,340,000 7T A AT
HIRAH (AR
BAEE)
There have been no material changes on the details of the associates B BE R B — AR
and a joint venture for both years 2020 and 2021. NN T ] — A B EN S
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Schedule of Principal Properties
ERWEER

At 31st December, 2021 A —F _——4+_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP ARBFFH W%
Investment Properties L&MW
Approximate Gross Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.)  Use Interest
o 24 48 o i
wf A HoBe sk it CEIk) R ARG 2 b g
The whole of basement level 1, Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 19,521 for offices  Commercial 100%
part of the level 1 and Lujiazui Finance and and podium;
the whole of level 2 to 5 Trade Zone 7,594 for car parks

of the commercial podium and
141 car parking spaces of
Tomson Commercial Building,
710 Dongfang Road,

Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

e \ [R5 7 SR R PERWE & E 5 T WaLES R 100%
e 5K < L R B 71058 221550 B 19,521F7K 5
e YN ] AH AL
A 1B 28 7,594 F Ik
LAV rA Y E kS ST e
K141 fEA B
The whole of level 1 to 3 Lot C3-001 Medium term 36,082 for offices  Commercial 100%
of the commercial podium, Waigaogiao Free and podium;
4/F., 9/F. to 12/E., 17/F. to 25/F. Trade Zone 4,299 for car parks

and part of 7/F. to 8/F., 12A/F.
and 14/F. of the office tower and
105 car parking spaces of
Tomson International Trade Building,
No.1 Jilong Road,
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e \ R LA L 1 SR Ah et R i N YT 100%
Bh i R A e B 1 5% C3-001 5B 36,082°F K 5
IS YN JAH AL
e R 4299F K
WARIEARE - oEE 128
1782252
KRBt - DAME 142 T
Je10sfAiAHEA
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FERYIEER
At 31st December, 2021 * —F . —%F+_"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) ARAEFEFEH ZWE )

Investment Properties (Continued) B&EW*E#)
Approximate Gross Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.)  Use Interest
W40 A i i
it 1 B AR 9% ik (FJik) M A2 R4
Whole of level 1 to 4 Lot 1/1, 244 Street, Medium term 11,903 for offices ~ Commercial 100%
of the commercial podium and Weifangxincunjiedao, and podium;
136 car parking spaces of Lujiazui Finance and 5,054 for car parks
Tomson Business Centre, Trade Zone

158, 188, 228 Zhangyang Road,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

i \ RSB 3 R PERWE 2 S [ i WAL WX 100%
PERWE 2 5 [ BRI - 11,903/ K 5
TRbAE158 - 188~ 2285 U4 G
GEREHORE 5,054k
T 2 AR 2 R
136{HIAHfL

Tower B, Tomson Riviera, Lot No. 1, 17 Jiefang, Long-term 35423 Residential 100%
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, Meiyuan Road

Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

e \ BN 38 T R MR 7E e R 35425 [T 100%
L A1E% 285
Vil — fh B
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Schedule of Principal Properties
L/ E
At 31st December, 2021 A =% ——4F+ " =+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) ARAEFEFEH ZWE )

Investment Properties (Continued) L&Y 4t)
Approximate Gross Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.)  Use Interest
oA A v i

it HuBe B ik CEik) - M AR B2 B b
Tomson Waigaogiao Industrial Park, Lot 1/1 & 1/4, Medium term 108,561  Industrial 100%

No. 381, 383, 1 Futexi Road, 19 Jiefang,

27 & 29 Huashen Road, Waigaogiao

358 Futebei Road, Free Trade Zone

Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

GEINES Sh AR R il 108561 T 100%
LI T AU 1988 1T
Ah i IRBL R4k
BT 185381 3839 »
ik R29%:
B B384
BN E LR R
72/F., Shanghai World Financial Center, Lot 1, 20 Jiefang, Medium term 3,222 Commercial 100%
No. 100, Century Avenue, Meiyuan Xincun
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Jiedao, Pudong
People’s Republic of China New Area
I H R Gk 300 ¥ 100%
LI A B i
ALK IE 1005 20841
FiEREkERT 0724

1 85 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]



Schedule of Principal Properties

FEWEL
At 31st December, 2021 * —F . —%F+_"H=+—H
PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) AWM S 2 W3k )
Golf Course 1w T R Bk
Approximate
Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Term of Lease (Sqm.) Use Interest
2 M i i
Ga ik CFIX) Mg AEHZ W4
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, Medium term 12,652 for Club houses, driving range ~ An 18-hole golf 100%
No. 1 Long Dong Avenue, and maintenance room course
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, with site area of 952,154
People’s Republic of China
GE NS ik G REARAEG R 18WEER 100%
R R B R SRR 1% WERIZGLFIK WG
Gk Ll RA ARG (M ERE 952,154 oK)
Properties under Development wRhyE
Approximate
Gross Gross
Site Area Floor Area Group’s  Stage of Estimated Date of
Description Lot Number (Sq.m.) (Sqm)  Use Interest  Completion Completion
HOBATER BEA A T B
it H B (Fik) (Fhk) Mg AREMZ MR TRRER st 2 e H
Three land lots near the junction of ~ A2-04, A2-02 328,687 230,081  Residential 100%  The land lots will be Phase I - 2023
Loushan Road and and A2-21 developed in phases.
Long Dong Avenue, Jingiao-Zhangjiang Superstructure for
Jingiao-Zhangjiang District, District Phase [ and original
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Phase VIII was topped
People’s Republic of China out in December 2014
N REINGEIE EE-RILE 38,687 20081 fHE 100% wELEEIEE 0 HM-
IR:Ty AL-0433 BIE - F—HR I SEYS
ER-RILE AR NGRS
g YT N | A2 “R-MEFZA
RRZ =t AEHRHTE
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Schedule of Principal Properties
L/ E
At 31st December, 2021 A =% ——4F+ " =+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) ARAEFEFEH ZWE )

Properties Held for Sale (RR=E/ES
Approximate
Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sqm.) Use Interest
20 A
it Hh B A CEiX) M@ A 4
Part of 6/F. to 7/F., 10/F., 11/F., 17/F. of ~ Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 3,039  Commercial 100%
Tomson Commercial Building, Lujiazui Finance
710 Dongfang Road, and Trade Zone

Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

e \ RSB 3 T R HERESHE S E it 3,039 ¥ 100%
ERESHE S R 22-15E 0B
T BE710%
HEERAE

CRTHE 108 > 1R 7 B

Part of 5/F., 6/F., 15/F., and 16/F. of Lot C3-001 Medium term 4,035 Commercial 100%
Tomson International Trade Building, Waigaogiao Free
No. 1 Jilong Road, Trade Zone

Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

W \ RN T R AR VNS i 4035 T¥E 100%
NS C3-001 54 B
TR 158

ARG VPN
SHE -~ 6~ 1SHER I TR

Part of Towers A & C and Tower D, Lot No. 1 Long-term 28,322 Residential 100%
Tomson Riviera, 17 Jiefang,
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, Meiyuan Road

Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

HhE A BN 38 T R R g % =i 2832 f%E 100%
ERESHE S R 178307 15 B
LR AR#28F
Yrki—h
AR CHEZ F1 bl R DB
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FERYIEER
At 31st December, 2021 * —F . —%F+_"H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (Continued) ARAEFEFEH ZWE )

Properties Held for Sale (Continued) HEMEE)
Approximate
Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sqm.)  Use Interest
240 A 0
it Hh B ik CEAk) i A A B 2 g
Phases VI, VIII & IX, Lot 23/10 Long-term 1,741  Residential 100%
Tomson Golf Villas, Tong Le Cun,
1 Long Dong Avenue, Hua Mu Xiang

Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

SNSRI MR & feAsh =2l 1741 fE 100%
RO 15 [FI 4kt 23/10/
Gk AR
B BARENN
Part of Block B & F and Lot 47/1, Long-term 363 for residential;  Residential 100%
131 car parking spaces of Zhangbang Cun, 3,702 for car parks
Tomson Golf Garden, Jingiaozhen,
1 Long Dong Avenue Pudong New Area
(2 of North District),

Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

e \ [RS8 17 SR TSR =2 E f% 100%
FERURAE 198 (F020R) SREREN 363 Ik 5
GERWRIER 47Nk IEE XD
BRI b - 3,702°F )ik
DA R 131

Part of One Penha Hill, No. 22356 folio 100, Long-term 9,240 for residential;  Residential 70%
Travessa do Colégio No. 7 Book B16K 3,244 for car parks

¢ Calcada do Bom Parto No. 2,
Macao Special Administrative Region,
People’s Republic of China

EINGETI] B16K % fit =3t FE H#=E 70%
TR T H100E 9,240°F K 5
BT LK RS 25 sEifHR 3522356 JHELA
CIEE Il P ) 3,244 Ji K

Annual Report 2021 4 4F 43 1 88



Schedule of Principal Properties
L/ E
At 31st December, 2021 A =% ——4F+ " =+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY A JOINT VENTURE —RKOBERERAZIWE
Properties Held for Investment FfEt g2
Approximate
Gross Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Term of Lease (Sqm)  Use Interest
2 A i i
G B 9% fil¥) CFiik)  Hi ARG H 2 b
InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel, Lot 12 Zhangyang Medium term 52,622 Hotel 50%
777 Zhangyang Road, Road Commercial
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone, District
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e \ [RFEAE 36 7 SR etk i 52,622 HJE 50%
FEXWE &M 5 TSR 1255 0 B
R 7775%

itz iRin e YN
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hAE A B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF HAEHEAEER
PROFIT OR LOSS
Year Ended 31st December
BEF A=+ IR4ERE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

“F—bF ZFN\FE ZFNF ZZ0FEF ZF°F
HK$000 ~ HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tt THIT T T Tt

Gross proceeds from R MR

operations 2,167,464 684,829 938,057 936,303 787,012
Profit before taxation R Al i A1 2,400,505 700,722 391,398 406,761 588,500
Taxation BLIA (1,055,840)  (313244)  (160,855)  (226,639)  (297,027)
Profit for the year A JE i A1 1,344,665 387,478 230,543 180,122 291,473
Attributable to: FEMG IR -
Owners of the Company EY/NGIL TR DN 1,255,486 407,681 172,513 174,993 283,448
Non-controlling interests R PERC R RE 89,179 (20,203) 58,030 5,129 8,025

1,344,665 387,478 230,543 180,122 291,473
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Five-Year Financial Summary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF e BN DL
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31st December
R+—H=1+—H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“EF—bFE 2R\ ZZ-FE SR CRFE R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
THIC T Tt T o Tl
Fixed assets 2 B 8,287,655 8,176,159 8,048,908 8,569,841 8,828,579
Lease premium for land + b B 30,410 22,753 - - -
Film distribution rights BT 4,942 150 - - -
Goodwill 7 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets R ALl VE A 281,729 273,982 35,503 37,941 -
Interests in associates and NEE AR K&

a joint venture —FAEER¥EZHR 201,581 196,809 195,575 189,965 197,109
Other receivable Ho A RIS AR R - — = 2,361 2,361
Available-for-sale investments ~ AJ ff & & 189,228 - - - -
Equity instruments at fair N TEFTA AL

value through other e &

comprehensive income A TR - 436,031 389,399 408,816 293,452
Club debentures o &S - 515 515 515 515
Pledged bank deposits FEASRATAE K 941,848 798,733 627,778 218,721 84,172
Net current assets T A 5,473,479 5,792,887 5,359,329  5297,736 5,940,039

15,444,160 15,731,307 14,690,295 14,759,184 15,379,515
Equity attributable to owners 45\ R & R A A

of the Company JRE At 2 13,224,128 13,027,057 12,259,425 12,888,642 13,500,950
Non-controlling interests I 2 g P R A 296,461 256,316 312,388 327,732 337,485
Total equity At 13,520,589 13,283,373 12,571,813 13216374 13,838,435
Other payables and HoAth A BR R K

lease liabilities HE A HE - - 14,166 24,286 27,403
Borrowings fE K 345,780 944,673 785,302 284,495 264,900
Deferred tax liabilities IR BIE A & 1,577,791 1,503,261 1,319,014 1,234,029 1,248,777

15,444,160 15,731,307 14,690,295 14,759,184 15,379,515

1 9 1 Tomson Group Limited ¥ Fi £E [B] 7 FR 23 7]




i

Tomson Group

Tomson Group Limited

U SR A R A




	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Group Profile
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Profile of the Directors and Officers
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Schedule of Principal Properties
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.5
  /CompressObjects /Off
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize false
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSongHK-Light
    /CFangSongHKS-Light
    /CGuLiHK-Bold
    /CGuLiHKS-Bold
    /CGuYinHK-Bold
    /CGuYinHKS-Bold
    /CHei2HK-Bold
    /CHei2HK-Xbold
    /CHei2HKS-Bold
    /CHei2HKS-Xbold
    /CHei3HK-Bold
    /CHei3HKS-Bold
    /CHeiHK-UltraBold
    /CHeiHKS-UltraBold
    /CJNgaiHK-Bold
    /CJNgaiHKS-Bold
    /CKanHK-Xbold
    /CKanHKS-Xbold
    /CNganKaiHK-Bold
    /CNganKaiHKS-Bold
    /CO2YuenHK-XboldOutline
    /CO2YuenHKS-XboldOutline
    /COYuenHK-Xbold
    /COYuenHK-XboldOutline
    /COYuenHKS-Xbold
    /COYuenHKS-XboldOutline
    /CPo3HK-Bold
    /CPo3HKS-Bold
    /CPoHK-Bold
    /CPoHKS-Bold
    /CSong3HK-Medium
    /CSong3HKS-Medium
    /CSuHK-Medium
    /CSuHKS-Medium
    /CWeiBeiHKS-Bold
    /CXLiHK-Medium
    /CXLiHKS-Medium
    /CXYaoHKS-Medium
    /CXingHK-Medium
    /CXingHKS-Medium
    /CXingKaiHK-Bold
    /CXingKaiHKS-Bold
    /CYuen2HKS-Light
    /CYuen2HKS-SemiBold
    /CYuen2HKS-Xbold
    /CYuenHK-SemiMedium
    /MBanquetPHK-Medium
    /MBanquetPHKS-Medium
    /MBeiHK-Bold
    /MBitmapRoundHK-Light
    /MBitmapSquareHK-Light
    /MComicHK-Medium
    /MComicHKS-Medium
    /MComputerHK-Bold
    /MComputerHKS-Bold
    /MCuteHK-Light
    /MCuteHKS-Light
    /MDynastyHK-Xbold
    /MDynastyHKS-Xbold
    /MEllanHK-Xbold
    /MEllanHKS-Xbold
    /MElleHK-Light
    /MElleHK-Medium
    /MElleHK-Xbold
    /MElleHKS-Light
    /MElleHKS-Medium
    /MElleHKS-Xbold
    /MFinanceHK-Bold
    /MFinanceHKS-Bold
    /MGentleHK-Light
    /MGentleHK-Xbold
    /MGentleHKS-Light
    /MGentleHKS-Xbold
    /MHGHagoromoTHK-Light
    /MHGHagoromoTHK-Medium
    /MHGKyokashotaiTHK-Light
    /MHGReithicTHK-Light
    /MHeiHK-Bold
    /MHeiHK-Light
    /MHeiHK-Medium
    /MHeiHK-Xbold
    /MHeiHKS-Bold
    /MHeiHKS-Light
    /MHeiHKS-Medium
    /MHeiHKS-Xbold
    /MHeiSungHK-UltraBold
    /MHeiSungHKS-UltraBold
    /MJNgaiHK-Medium
    /MJNgaiHKS-Medium
    /MKaiHK-Medium
    /MKaiHK-SemiBold
    /MKaiHKS-Medium
    /MKaiHKS-SemiBold
    /MLadyHK-Medium
    /MLadyHKS-Medium
    /MLiHK-Bold
    /MLiHKS-Bold
    /MLingWaiFHK-Light
    /MLingWaiPHK-Light
    /MMarkerHK-Bold
    /MMarkerHKS-Bold
    /MMetallicHeiHK-Bold
    /MMetallicHeiHKS-Bold
    /MNgaiHK-Bold
    /MNgaiHKS-Bold
    /MQingHuaHK-Xbold
    /MQingHuaHKS-Xbold
    /MRazorHK-Xbold
    /MRazorHKS-Xbold
    /MRockyHK-Bold
    /MRockyHKS-Bold
    /MSmartHK-Bold
    /MSmartHK-Medium
    /MSmartHKS-Bold
    /MSmartHKS-Medium
    /MStiffHeiHK-UltraBold
    /MStiffHeiHKS-UltraBold
    /MStreamHK-Bold
    /MStreamHKS-Bold
    /MSungGoldHK-Black
    /MSungGoldHKS-Black
    /MSungHK-Bold
    /MSungHK-Light
    /MSungHK-Medium
    /MSungHK-Xbold
    /MSungHKS-Bold
    /MSungHKS-Light
    /MSungHKS-Medium
    /MSungHKS-Xbold
    /MWindyHK-Bold
    /MWindyHKS-Bold
    /MYoungHK-Medium
    /MYoungHK-Xbold
    /MYoungHKS-Medium
    /MYoungHKS-Xbold
    /MYoungHeiHKS-Xbold
    /MYuenHKS-Light
    /MYuenHKS-SemiBold
    /MYuenHKS-Xbold
    /MYuppyHKS-Medium
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 72
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 72
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 300
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier (JC200103)
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName (http://www.color.org)
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
  >>
  /ExportLayers /ExportAllLayers
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting true
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /UseName
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [595.276 841.890]
>> setpagedevice




